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2017 2016 2015 2014

Tt I 3 ZT-1% ZZ-mE
For the year ended 31 December RMB 000 Change RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
HETZA=t-RLER ANREFT 29 ANREFT AREFT ANREFT
Revenue WA 16,306,375 17.5% 13,647,731 10,574,854 10,470,321
Gross profit £ 2,439,959 28.9% 2,645,143 1,905,832 1,294,214
Profitfor the year ERadl 1174725 ~0.6% 1,201,073 588,968 306,721
Profit atiributable to TEREERR
shareholders 1,151,862 1.0% 1,187,531 590,826 306,721
Eamings per share BRER
— Basic —&X RMB AR 1267 08% RMBAR®133m RMBAR0677T RMBARM0357T
— Diluted —&% RMB AR 1.26 7T 08% RMBARM133T RMBARE067TT RMBAR®0357
2017 2016 2015 2014
“3-tF IB0E —3-1f 3
As at 31 December RMB 000 Change RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
Rt=A=t+-A AREFT g ARETT AREFT NREFT
Total assets haE 15,534,431 20.8% 15,284,349 11,401,097 9,138,546
Non-current assets ERBEE 7,813,552 19.5% 7,142,656 5773867 4,753,644
Current assets THEE 7,720,879 22.2% 8,141,693 5,627,230 4,384,902
Total liabilities ek 9,558,718 24.8% 10,092,905 7,462,528 5,683,914
Current liabilities THAE 6,420,730 5.5% 7,419,903 4,625,335 2,490,947
Non-current liabilities FnBEE 3,137,988 64.4% 2,673,002 2837193 3,192,967
Net current assets THAERE 1,300,149 104.6% 721,790 1,001,895 1,893,955
Net assets EEFE 5975713 14.4% 5,191,444 3,938,569 3,938,569
Equiyatiibutableto  REME(LER
shareholders 5910127 14.0% 5,148,721 3,911,155 3,454,632
For the year ended 31 December 2017 2016 2015 2014
BEt-A-t+-HLEE —ET—+tF ZE-xF ZE-1F ZE[F
Inventory tunover days FEREXRY 87 79 73 77
Trade and bill receivables ~ fEIRE 5 R ZE A
turnover days EEVS - 36 35 40 39
Trade and bill payables ENESREERE
turnover days BEXH 78 87 82 72
Current ratio e X 1.2 1.1 1.2 1.8
Net debt to equity ratio BRFEERLE
(Note 1) (1) 0.68 080 048 0.54
Return on equity (Note 2) B EIRE (f1i£2) 21% 26% 16% 9%

Note 1: Based on total borrowings net of cash and cash /i1 RESFEENEELENIRESRRSSE
equivalents and pledged bank deposits over equity BV KRB IEIRRITERGR AR R EL R
attributable to shareholders at each year end. FTHEGH -

Note 2: Based on each year’s profit attributable to A2 RESFOREEMGEF R IAZY BEEF
shareholders over the average of the equity MRERRRE (LS 2 FHEGTEEL -
attributable to shareholders at the beginning and
ending of the financial year.
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CORPORATE PROFILE AND STRUCTURE

Texhong Dyeing and Printing Vietnam Limited
MERIAEEFRRAR

CORPORATE PROFILE

Texhong Textile Group Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) (stock code: 2678) is
one of the largest cotton textile manufacturers in the
People’s Republic of China (“China” or the “PRC”) and is
a leading textile enterprise focusing on manufacturing
high value-added core-spun textile products. The Group
is principally engaged in the manufacture and distribution
of quality yarn, grey fabrics, garment fabrics as well as
garments, especially high value-added core-spun yarn.
Since 1997, the Group has grown rapidly and has over
3,000 customers in China and overseas, with its sales
network spanning across the PRC, Vietnam, North
America, Europe, Brazil, Turkey, Bangladesh, Japan and
South Korea. With its sales headquarter established in
Shanghai, the Group has production bases in the PRC,
Vietnam, Cambodia and Nicaragua respectively, with
major production facilities comprising about 3.50 million
spindles and 1,389 weaving and knitting machines.

TEBN

K EBER AR ([AAR] - EREM
BRRmE I AEE]) (BRMHARSE : 2678) =
REARKEFE([FE])KRKAORLS R
ERZ— ERPBEELHNSHINER S
BEREELE AEENTEEKARE
MIHEEEYER - B  BmRARE S LE
BEILEAEASHRNENERRY R B
—NNEFHR AEBEKLEERR B
BiBi1E 3,000 AEAIEFE - SHEMKEBRF
H-#E BN -BR-+EH-Z
A BAKRmEE AEEN EBAEER
o RHRE - BE RIEERENNLS 5
REEEEM  TELEERBEEIEARLI50
BA4E 121,389 B 18 5% K STAE AR -
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Texhong Textile Group Limited
(Stock

Hong Korg Stock Exchange: 2676)
(ERBRAIE S : 2678)

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Texhong Textile Texhong Textile I,f:g‘;’r‘,? m:,‘:";"?g"a, Texhong Texhong Global Zhong Zhan
estiso TVN Investment Holdings Limited Investment Holdings S LEstiion fleinsliodnas
Limited i L reatel nge Investment Ltd. Limited Limited
T A e R RS AR HRGMRE
HRAR ERAT ERAT HRAR BRAF BRAT
100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
’ Texhong Shandong Zhong Zhan
Texhong Textile Texhong Textile TUN (Renze) Te;m“gKTe"“'e Investment Textile
Nantong Ltd. (Hong Kong) Ld | 1y k) i Limited }4 long s"[‘%) (Hnng Kong) (Hong Kong)
i (5% - TN (-2) R EE) Limited
HRAT A7 HRAT BRARAR %ﬂlll§& (E/&) ‘Pﬁﬁ(&&)‘ﬁﬁ
2 e 43
T\ /TN /TN T\ T\
g )Y /TN T\ T\
100% 100% 100%
100% 10%| 90% 100% 100%. 5% | 90%| 5% 100% 100% 100%
Texhong
Texhong
- Sunray Macao | | Texhong Galaxy Uruguay
Texm’r‘ﬁo};"“'e Texhong Yinlong | Texhong Yinlong Te;;‘g;‘foﬁz';m Texfong enze | Sunray Trading | Billon Wealthy Commercial Holdings Limited ‘ﬁ‘vr‘fsal:“z; Investment
o TechnologyLtd. | Textile Ltd. Hik, Stock Gompany | (Hong Kong)Lid. | Trading Limited |  Offshore Lid. FATETER o Limited
RAGATE Roamns | NGRS | xocwss T | TS (ER) bl ?ﬁﬁ;?‘!g BRAT Pte. Lid FARBE
ReARAR 28 28 ARAR BHERAR 28 28 hy s BRARAA
|1oo% | 100% | 100%
" " Texhong Galaxy ’
50% 50% Investment | Texhong Textile Te""‘:\’j‘gll";"‘"e
Limited Turkey Tekstil ;
Texhong RALRARE Limited Sirketi | COMPany, Limited
Lo SA.
Logistics Joint Shelink Limited
Stock Company FHXBRAT
RAFENT 100%
RBRHAF
Texhong Galaxy
Technology
Limited
RATERSARHE
ARAF
48% 100% 100%
Nantong Textile Texhong (China)
Group Co., Ltd Investment f&'zﬁ‘: g;"ﬂ‘g
FBSIRE Co,, Ltd IR
= RSL(HE) R IR
ARAT BRAF
49% |51% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 88%
Texhong Texile Shanghai nghai Xuzhou Texhong Shanghai Hongan Texile Zhejiang Changzhou Shandong Chung Charm
(chna) Hongyue Tracing TexhongTradmg Intelligence Textile | Hongrun Textile (Huaian) Textong Textle | Texhong Texte Textong Textio ot
Lid. ., Co,, Ltd o, Lid. o., Lid . exis Limied
*ﬂﬁﬁ(*l iﬁﬂéﬁi iﬁ%%ﬁgi HRMKAERE LiSEES SIRGACGER) ZﬁI*@HEﬁ ﬁmiﬂlﬁﬁ mﬁiﬂﬁﬁ ” /EBEl/Ail
ARAR HRATF BRAF HARRAR HRARF HRAF BRAF BRAF AERAF
100% 100%
Texhong Textile ‘4"3‘;’;3:;‘ Dongxing
uaian Texhong Textile
Co,, Ltd. IEEIET 0., Ltd.
g Limited :
RAHEER BLFATRHE R G4
A e
ARATF BRAT BERAF
48% 45% 49% 27% 49% 49% 80% 49% 49% 5% 49% 13%
hangZh
Jiangsu Century | Xuzhou Century | Xuzhou Texhong | Xuzhou Texhong | Taizhou Century | Taizhou Texhong | 1w oo | Nantong Century | Xuzhou Texhong CT:;'?,O“; . X“Zm‘u';;’:;mg
Textong Textle | Teshong Textl |~ Times Textle | - vineng Textle' | Textong Texti |~ Yintai Textle | (G0, (57 og Textong Textle | Yinlan Textie Grand Toxtie | Texhong Yinhai ]
Co,, Ltd Co,, Ltd Co. Co,, Ltd Co., Ltd Co., Ltd Pttt Co,, Ltd Co.. Ltd Industrial Co le &5
sRuExe | aMUERT | saiawe | sedoee | sheexe | midoes R maveRa | aNiaRs HMNE B3 BARIRS
HMERAT HEAERATE ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ/‘j HEARAT SEAERAR HRERAT HWERAT HEARATE GEERAE E*Eﬂﬁ’l}j 0 e
£ A BEERLF
52% 5% 51% | 73% | 51% 51% 20% 51% 51% 95% 51% 87%

* As at 31 December 2018
* RZE-NF+ZA=+—H
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100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Textiong Western| Huafeng Kriting | - TeXhong United Prosperous Time Jovial Global Texhong Winnitex Texhong Winnitex
[ Satong et RgIKT Technology perous Tl Investments. Americas Holdings
oldings Limited | Holdings Limited | [€inoiogy, Holdings Limited P e i)
*mugn | ssnask | Sglag pEANS, RERBER RBATHM RAEAER
° BRARAR ARATE ARAT ARAE
| [
Vi
9 100% | 100% 100%
100% 100% 00% 00% 00% 100% 65% 100% 100%
90% | | 1%
Texhong Western Texhong United Treasure Reap | Te*hong Fashion o
p HEN United Virtue
:“‘95‘2‘9“' T;C““‘I’("’QY Limited '“gﬂgg'ﬁ‘é\“ Limited Toxh Precious C Square Foster Capital
( ono X ;"9’ long Kora eEARAR [oiadel e BRERAT Theng C,}ggﬁg Béi/rr‘\it:o]d Investment Management
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(BR)BRAT BERARAT SA.
99.8%
T\ g )Y /1
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; Chu Hsi C s
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HBERAR ERAR) BRAR BRAR BRAF
A7
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100%
100% 100% 100%
100%
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Hong Tianzhu X o
Chairman * /& \)

On behalf of the Company’s board of directors (the HRAZRREAQFNE=S(EEZT)) MA
“Board”), | am pleased to present the annual results of MARFRREIALEEHEEZE=-"ZT—N\F
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 to the +_A=+—HIFENE2FELE -
shareholders of the Company.
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In 2018, the friction between China and the United
States escalated from trade issues to a full-scale conflict
as against changing complicated landscapes in global
politics and economy. As policies and reforms in China
triggered rising costs of domestic enterprises amid
changing international market conditions, the second half
of the year witnessed a significant impact on the
domestic economy and consumer sentiment, while
consumer spending and various economic indicators
demonstrated a sign of economic slowdown. As a result,
corporations were exposed to enormous threats and
pressure.

Notwithstanding the abovementioned conditions, in order
to satisfy customers’ strong demand for the differentiated
products of the Group, we continued to expand our yarn
production capacity. In 2018, approximately 470,000
spindles were added in accordance with the original two-
year expansion plan. However, as most of the new
capacity was only put into trial production in the second
half of the year or even in the fourth quarter, alongside
the accelerated production rate due to vertical integration
of the industry chain in Vietnam during the year, the
output of our self-produced yarns used for grey fabrics
production increased rapidly, even though the Group’s
sales of yarns hit record high for the twelve consecutive
years at approximately 660,000 tonnes, only
representing a slight increase when compared with
647,000 tonnes last year. As the selling prices of yarns
returned to a relatively normal level in 2018 from the
abnormal sales market in 2017, revenue from sales of
yarns increased by approximately 6.7% to RMB15.5
billion when compared with last year. We also broke
sales records of garment fabrics, which was produced by
our vertically integrated production line of spinning,
weaving, and dyeing and finishing processes in Vietnam.
The sales of our self-produced woven dyed fabrics
reached 42 million metres, with revenue exceeded
RMB600 million.

Affected by Sino-US trade frictions in the second half of
2018, especially the fourth quarter, the consumer market
saw a temporary impact on the sales orders and product
mix of yarns, and the expectation that sales and profit
margin during the second half would outperform that of
the first half was missed. Nonetheless, the annual gross
profit margin of yarns returned to 17.9% from 16.3% last
year, while the profit attributable to shareholders of the
Group for 2018 was RMB1.16 billion and the basic
earnings per share was RMB1.27, both representing an
increase of 1.0% over the same period last year.
Excluding the one-off accounting gain of RMB177 million
derived from acquisition of subsidiaries in the same
period last year, the profit attributable to shareholders
would have increased by approximately RMB189 million
in 2018 as compared to that of last year, representing a
year-on-year increase of over 19%.

—F)\F 0 RIRBUA  RBEBEMSE
PRZENFEBRE ST EEZERETMIH
R - FEBEANBRAESHE AT EK
AFEET - M EBERTZE( - THFH
BYEENKEERBREE  HEERA
REBEERSHBETNEEENETR -
TESRERNERE NEN -

MBI ARREFPHAEEZELLER
e HE K BMFERTYBRER KR
FRMERTAE RS- N\FLENT
W4T EWER - BRRARIDFILELRN T E
FEENFNFTEAMBAEE  MEAREF
ERMESEELETEERAREMNIRR
B BESGRAREEREMEENEER
R MEAEBOKRIEEEE12FEH
[EEL e EL 66BN - L EF64.7EMER
REMEE BARYBREEERE-Z
—tE T EENHEERRE_Z— \FO 5
A EEKTE  BEYREERAZERA
R¥1551870 © L EFHEINL6.7% 0 ML
MEEEAHY  Bm - 2E—KEEEN
AR EBIMERE  BEXREENBELE
MHEECIED 42008 K » HEWAREA
R#se6{ET -

o —E—NETHFERERNEFITER
ERREESERYEHETNS  HBRNE
ETENEREAOIIEEYE  BXT
FENHEENFEEZL FEFFHNTEE
BE S BENL PEHGRENRREFD
16.3% B A ZE17.9%  c AEB _—_ZT—N\FE
R EEZF AARE1M6ET  FREAR
BRARA27T MEREFRPEE L
FH1.0% - EHEBREFRIHUENB AR ESE
H—REetRFzARB1I77TELT —F
—N\FHNRREEREF S EZFEMHAR
# 1,898 IMEFLIBHEIBE19% °
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To better facilitate the vertical integration of the Group’s
industry chain, we, following long-term exploration and
months of negotiations, entered into an agreement with
the Winnitex Group, a leading group in the weaving and
dyeing industry, on 7 December 2018. Both parties
thereto merged their woven fabrics, and dyeing and
finishing businesses into a joint venture, 80% of which is
held by Texhong and 20% by Winnitex Group. The joint
venture will harness the existing resources of both
parties to develop the dyeing business of high-quality
woven fabrics that are produced through our vertical
integration of spinning, weaving, and dyeing and finishing
processes. Such business is managed by the existing
management team of Winnitex Group, and will become
an important cornerstone for the Group to carve out a
global leading vertically integrated businesses within the
industry chain.

Since 2015, we have been developing our midstream
and downstream production lines in Vietnam, all of which
have reached sizeable operations in 2018. In particular,
the dyeing and finishing and garment businesses are
brand new for the Group, thus recording losses due to
insufficient sales orders and proven production
technology at the initial stage of production. Owing to
tremendous teamwork efforts, targeted acquisitions in
the market, and our cooperation with powerful partners,
the losses in the said business operation is believed to
end in 2018. Looking into the year of 2019, our
jeanswear business is expected to enter a profitable
period. The garment company, which is a joint venture
between Changzhou Hualida and us and started
generating profits in 2018, will continue to expand in
2019.

As for the woven dyeing and finishing business, a joint
venture with Winnitex Group, leveraging on over 50
years of their experience and reputation of Winnitex
Group in the industry, we will firstly build a premier
woven fabric enterprise, operating production bases
integrated with the spinning, weaving, and dyeing and
finishing processes in China, Vietnam and Nicaragua at
an annual production capacity of 180 million metres of
fashion fabrics and special workwear fabrics, as well as
having the ability to distribute products to customers
worldwide. It is expected that its sales revenue can reach
RMB4 billion annually. By tapping into the production
techniques, product development capacity, solid
customer base and popularity of Winnitex Group, we
expect that the existing woven dyeing and finishing
plants in Vietham and Nicaragua will turn from losses
last year into profits in 2019. In addition to the profitability
of Winnitex Group, the Group will achieve horizontal
expansion based on our yarn business, and vertically
attain the vertical integration of the midstream and
downstream businesses, so as to enhance profitability
and stability.
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Having built premium production and operation
conditions for our industry chain platform in the industrial
park in Northern Vietnam, we rapidly achieved high-level
industry chain integration in Vietnam, allowing us to
complete production, operation and management of the
entire industry chain in a single industrial park. Our
expedient delivery can satisfy the requirements of the
current brands to minimise inventory risks and place
additional orders to meet consumer demands during the
same season. The Group began to invest in and
establish plants in Vietham a decade ago, having proven
to be an initiative that has enabled us to maintain our
industrial leadership to date. We expect to implement
and carry out our industry chain integration concept so
that the Group will continue to thrive in the future.

Lastly, | would like to express my sincere gratitude on
behalf of the Board to all our shareholders for giving the
Group their care and support over the years.

Hong Tianzhu
Chairman

7 March 2019
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The Group is pleased to present to the shareholders the
annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018. During the year, the Group’s revenue
grew by 17.5% to RMB19.16 billion when compared with
last year. Profit attributable to shareholders of the
Company increased by 1.0% to RMB1,163 million
against last year. Basic earnings per share also
increased slightly to RMB1.27 from RMB1.26 last year.
Excluding the one-off accounting gain of RMB177 million
from acquisition of subsidiaries in the same period last
year, the profit attributable to shareholders increased by
approximately RMB189 million when compared with last
year, representing a year-on-year increase of 19.4%.

According to statistics from the National Bureau of
Statistics of the PRC, the aggregate sales achieved by
sizeable textile enterprises amounted to RMB2,786.3
billion in 2018, representing a 0.2% decrease year-on-
year, with profit totalling at RMB126.5 billion, up by 5.3%
year-on-year. Sizeable garment and apparel enterprises
recorded total sales in the amount of RMB1,741.8 billion,
representing a year-on-year increase of 4.2%, with net
profit at RMB100.68 billion, up by 10.8% year-on-year. In
terms of production volume, in 2018, 29.16 million
tonnes of yarn, 49.4 billion metres of fabrics and 49.21
million tonnes of synthetic fibre were produced.
According to data from PRC Customs, in 2018,
US$119.1 billion worth of textile products were exported
from the country, representing a year-on-year increase
of 8.12%. US$157.6 billion worth were garments,
representing a year-on-year increase of 0.29%.

According to statistics from Vietham Customs, the sales
volume of yarn and staple of the country grew by 8.7% to
1.466 million tonnes in 2018, bringing in sales income of
US$3,987 million, up by 11.0% when compared with
2017. Garments exports grew by 16.6% to US$30.447
billion.

For the whole year of 2018, revenue of the Group
reached record high at RMB19.16 billion, representing
an increase of 17.5% when compared with last year. In
addition to the steady growth in sales of yarns, all the
midstream and downstream business segments also
recorded growth.
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The Group derives revenue from sales of yarns, grey
fabrics, garment fabrics as well as jeanswear. During the
year, sales of yarns reached RMB15.5 billion, an
increase of 6.7% when compared with last year,
accounting for 81.2% of the Group’s total revenue for the
year. The increase was mainly driven by the rebound in
selling prices of products. Following the development of
the other midstream and downstream businesses over a
period in the past, these businesses recorded sales
revenue of RMB3.6 billion in 2018, which is more than
double of the sales revenue in 2017, mainly as a result
of growth in sales of dyed fabrics.

In 2018, the Group’s total production volume of yarns
was approximately 720,000 tonnes. As trial run for most
of the new capacity only started in the second half the
year and approximately 45,000 tonnes of the yarns
produced by the Group were used by its midstream and
downstream businesses, growth in external sales of
yarns slightly slowed down in 2018. In addition, the chain
effect sparked by the Sino-US trade dispute affected
consumer market and in turn the sales orders received
by the Group in the fourth quarter. As a result, external
sales of yarns increased by a slight 2.0% to
approximately 660,000 tonnes, falling short of the target
of 700,000 tonnes set for the year of 2018. The Group’s
new yarn production capacity after satisfying internal
needs shall be fully utilized to fulfil external demand.
During the year under review, in the absence of
abnormal market demands in the same period last year,
the gross profit margin of yarns returned to normal at
approximately 18%. Assuming that the Sino-US trade
dispute had no impact, the Group would have made
higher sales and have a higher gross profit margin.

As for our grey fabrics production, the Group’s grey
fabric factory in northern Vietnam started full production
in mid-2018 after completing trial run in the second half
of 2017. Although a fair portion of the fabrics produced
was used by the Group’s dyeing factory in Vietnam to
meet increased sales orders, sales of grey fabrics still
saw a significant increase by approximately 45% against
last year, to approximately 96 million metres. Benefitting
from partial vertical integration of the fabrics and yarn
factories in Vietnam, the average gross profit margin of
grey fabrics also increased markedly to 14.8%.
Nonetheless, as production of grey fabrics in China did
not involve in the vertical integration, the overall gross
profit margin of grey fabrics production business has
been dragged down. As commanded by the need for
vertical integration of the various factories in Vietnam,
the grey fabrics business in Vietnam will first satisfy the
internal demands of the dyeing factory in Vietnam,
whereas a part of the production capacity of grey fabrics
in PRC market will be used to satisfy the demands of the
joint venture with Winnitex Group to better benefit from
vertical integration. Therefore, the Group expects
external sales of grey fabrics to temporarily reduce until
new production facility will be built in future.
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As for woven dyed fabrics, with the completion of trial
production of the Group’s woven fabric factory in
northern Vietnam in the second half of 2017 and the
acquisition in May 2017 of the Asian denim business
(including a woven fabric factory in Nicaragua) of Nien
Hsing Group in Taiwan, revenue from sales of woven
fabrics amounted to approximately RMB612 million in
2018, representing an increase of 24% when compared
with last year, with sales volume reaching 42 million
metres. As for woven fabrics trading business, as textile
trading companies in North America were acquired by
the Group during the year, sales of woven fabrics
increased notably to 24 million metres, generating
revenue of RMB511 million. Despite incurring loss in the
first half year due to serious order shortage, the woven
fabrics production business in Vietham managed to
breakeven by the fourth quarter with capacity utilization
reaching more than 80%. As the Group’s woven fabric
production business is at an early stage of development,
it currently has a single-digit gross profit margin.
However, with the integration of the relevant production
business of Winnitex Group with that of the Group, the
production technology, product development and
marketing capabilities of the woven dyed fabric business
will markedly improve. The business is expected to turn
around to profit in 2019 and gradually reach world-class
level under the management of Winnitex Group.

Regarding knitted dyed fabrics, following the acquisition
of the knitting and dyeing plant which was originally an
associate company at the end of 2017 by increasing
51% to 100% equity interest, the Group also began to try
to build a dyeing production line for knitted fabrics in
Vietnam in 2018. For the year of 2018, the Group sold
self-produced dyed knitted fabrics of approximately
15,000 tonnes in all, and approximately 1,900 tonnes
were sold via trading. The gross profit margin of self-
produced knitted fabrics was 15.5%. As the knitted fabric
factory only became wholly owned by the Group this
year and the Sino-US trade dispute also affected the
business in the second half of the year, internal reform
will be required to improve production and order taking
efficiency of the business. Alongside, with the increasing
use of self-produced yarns which help vertical integration
and increase in production capacity in Vietnam, the
business is expected to see notable enhancement in
profitability.
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As for jeanswear business, as the acquisition of
jeanswear business was completed on 1 May 2017,
together with the production base in Shandong of China,
sales of the jeanswear business exceeded RMB822
million, representing an increase of approximately 30%
when compared with the same period last year. The
sales volume was approximately 15.5 million pairs of
jeans in 2018, which was lower than the original sales
target of 18 million pairs of jeans, mainly due to the
slightly slower adjustment of business orders than
expected. As the adjustment was completed in the
second half year, the business has been improving and
is expected to start making profit in 2019.

The overall gross profit margin of the Group increased
from 15.0% in 2017 to 16.4% in 2018, which was mainly
attributable to the fact that the prices of some yarns
survived from the market pressure in 2017. Except for
impacts of the Sino-US dispute in the fourth quarter of
2018, market conditions basically remained normal.
Gross profit margin of the yarn business was 18%, back
in the normal range. Moreover, other business operations
have also improved and contributed to the increased
overall gross profit margin of the Group. However, the
new business segment was still in early development
stage with a much lower gross profit margin than the
yarn business. It is expected that such business will
outperform the profitability of the yarn business following
constant improvement and enhancement of the vertical
integration initiatives, which in turn will further improve
and stabilize the overall gross profit margin of the Group.

In 2018, the Group recorded profit attributable to
shareholders of RMB1,163 million and basic earnings
per share was RMB1.27, representing a slight increase
of 1.0%, respectively, when compared with those last
year. In spite of the rebound in profit of the yarn business
and improved profits in other business segments, the
profit attributable to shareholders remained basically the
same as in the previous year because of the absence of
the one-time accounting gains on acquisitions in the
same period last year.

With the two sides in the Sino-US trade dispute in active
negotiations, the market is seeing a ray of hope. Even
though complete agreement between the two countries
might not be reached within a short period, latest
progress should help ease pressure on the market and
stabilise the consumer market and commodity prices,
otherwise the market would feel a severe blow and
almost industries would be affected.
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As at the end of 2018, the Group’s major production
facilities were equipped with approximately 3.50 million
spindles and 1,389 looms. Of all the spindles,
approximately 2.12 million were in the PRC and
approximately 1.38 million were in Vietnam. With the
uncertainties in Sino-US trade dispute, the Group will
slightly slow down its investment in China. Outside China
though, to back the woven dyed fabrics business which
the Group and Winnitex Group jointly invested in, the
Group will focus on expanding the existing woven dyed
fabrics production lines in Vietnam and Nicaragua in
2019, as well as adding spinning and weaving facilities
to supply for the dyeing and finishing process. We target
to build a vertically integrated dyed woven fabrics
production base with spinning, weaving, dyeing and
finishing processes handled all under one roof. Those
undertakings, when all completed, combined with
Winnitex Group’s existing production base in China, will
see the Group become a comprehensive integrated dyed
woven fabrics business that can effectively avert trade
barriers and restrictions and serve customers worldwide,
showing its integrated capability to develop, produce and
distribute annually more than 180 million metres of
woven dyed fabrics for fashionable garments and special
workwear.

In addition to the original two-year expansion plan for
2018 and 2019, in developing overseas yarn bases, the
Group will acquire and build facilities with approximately
80,000 spindles in Turkey so that it may quickly respond
to and directly meet local markets demand, and in turn
increase related profit.

The expansion plan of the Group in 2019 is expected to
cost approximately RMB1.5 billion, excluding the
consideration for the acquisition of Winnitex Group to
form the joint venture. Excluding the sales volume under
trading business, the Group targets to sell 720,000
tonnes of yarns, 80 million metres of grey fabrics, 120
million metres of woven dyed fabrics, 18,000 tonnes of
knitted dyed fabrics and 18 million pairs of jeans in 2019.

After the Group’s efforts to adjust and consolidate the
jeanswear business in the last two years, the business is
set to advance more efficiently in the future. Thanks to
the continuous exertion of the Group in seeking garment
and fabrics suppliers outside China by famous brand
names, the business is expected to start generating
profits in 2019. The Group will also continue to
implement the strategy of establishing industrial chain
platforms in Vietnam to foster vertical integration of
production for its various dyed fabrics and garment
businesses.

On 19 July 2018, the Group was again named among
the “Fortune 500 Chinese Companies 2018, and ranked
third by the China Cotton Textile Association among
cotton textile enterprises in terms of comprehensive
competitiveness, a strong endorsement of the Group
continuously expanding business and proven business.
The Group will continue to work tirelessly, putting in its
best effort, to bring long term and sustainable returns to
shareholders.
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The Group’s sales mainly comprises the sales of yarns,
grey fabrics and garment fabrics, as well as jeanswear.
Yarns continued to be the Group’s major product. With

AEEMEETRRAHEED R KA KA
FHEFFIRE - W RBER R AEBENER
Eme EIBAZJSE@EA%EEE’JEJX REIEE I

the commencement of operations of our new production 28 ABHME N —E— \FEBRYEHE
facilities, and the commitment of staff members, the %a@:%—tii*ﬁi’m?% TIAEREER
sales of yarns increased by about 6.7% in 2018 as  &EERNEEDHT
compared to that of 2017. Sales analyses of the Group
by products are shown below.
RMB million
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—F—F LN
RMB’000
ARBTFT
Stretchable core-spun yarns BHBENHLER 7,958,705 0.4%
Other yarns Hiv#h 4z 6,621,455 14.2%
Stretchable grey fabrics 5% S 467,367 38.9%
Other grey fabrics HAbm 131,402 58.4%
Woven garment fabrics TR E R 493,554 127.4%
Knitted garment fabrics StERmE R - -
Jeans 417 4% 633,892 29.7%
Total wEt 16,306,375 17.5%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued) B 7SR (2)
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Sales volume

(Tonne/RMB per tonne) ARHBEH) = = -

#E
2017
ZT+fF
Stretchable core-spun yarns BHRTHR
(Tonne/RMB per tonne) (W ANRESE) 337,7%
Other yarns (Tonne/RMB per  E-Af1#)#& (15, /
tonne) AREEIE) 309,672
Stretchable grey fabrics BNER (BB
(Million metres/RMB per metre) AR &) 481
Other grey fabrics (Million metres/ E %% (BEX,/
RMB per metre) ARBEX) 178
Woven garment fabrics BEEH(BEXR/
(Million metres/RMB per metre) A REEX) 293
Knitted Garment fabrics SHEEER (8,
Jeans (Million pairs/RMB per pair) 4 i& (H &%/
ARBEE) 13.1

The Chinese textile market is the Group’s major market,
accounting for 73.5% of our total sales of 2018. The ten
largest customers of the Group for 2018 are as follows:

Toray International, Inc.

Shaoguan Beijiang Smart Textile Technology Co., Ltd.
Guangdong Qianjin Jeans Co., Ltd.

Ningbo Dagian Textile Co., Ltd.

American Eagle Outfitters, Inc.

TCE Vina Denim Joint Stock company

Chintex Enterprises Ltd.

Yixing Magnolia Garment Co, Ltd.

Haining Denim Weaving Co., Ltd.

Zhejiang Limayunshan Textile Co., Ltd.

As at the date of this report, the Group has more than
3,000 customers. As the Group produces differentiated
products, the Group does not rely on orders from a
particular customer. The ten largest customers only
accounted for 17.0% of the total sales of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018 and each one of
them has a more than 5 years’ business relationship with
the Group.

Selling price Gross profit margin
&8 EHS
2017 2017
“TtF “BtF
23,561 17.1%
21,382 15.3%
9.7 5.1%
74 -5.3%
16.8 7.5%
484 2.3%
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Gross profit of the Group increased from RMB2.44 billion
to RMB3.15 billion, representing an increase of 28.9% as
compared to that of 2017. The overall gross profit margin
also increased by 1.4 percentage point to 16.4% as
compared to that of 2017. In 2018, the gross profit
margin of the yarn business recovered to the normal
range of 18% and the operation of other business
segments also improved, leading to an increase in the
overall gross profit margin.

Cost of sales increased by 15.5% to RMB16.0 billion
when compared to that of 2017. Raw materials cost
accounted for about 77.6% of the total cost of sales of
2018. Cotton is our major raw materials.

The breakdown of our cost of sales is shown below:

Consumables
JERER

1.9%
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WE - BETHERGREF

WER AR T — L N155% 2 AR
16018 7T - 1 =B — N\ 2 FH B R A (58
WERAKITT.6% o 187 AR PN E B R
B o

T AAREEHERARRMA
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Utilities
B Rk
5.8%

Utilities
B ) R
6.2%

Depreciation
e

3.7%

Depreciation
e

4.2%

Direct Labour
HETH
9.9%

Raw Materials

77.6%

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s
selling and distribution costs amounted to RMB685.1
million, representing an increase of 17.8% when
compared to that of 2017. The increase was attributable
to the increase in transportation costs and salaries of
sales personnel due to increase in sales volume.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s
general and administrative expenses increased by
40.8% to RMB721 million when compared to that of
2017, which represented 3.8% of the Group’s sales. The
increase was mainly due to the increase in research and
development expenditures and expenses of the newly
acquired business.
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2017

—E—+F
RMB’000
ARETFIT
Net cash generated from operating KETEB TSRS 558
activities 2,192,611
Net cash used in investing activities RE RSN T IFHE (1,337,721)
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEEFTS,(FTFE)
financing activities REF5 (1,201,380)
Cash and cash equivalents RERNE S K
at end of the year HeEEY 1,466,718

For the year ended 31 December 2018, net cash
generated from operating activities amounted to
RMB766.7 million, which represents an significant
decrease comparing with 2017 mainly because of the
significant increase in cash outflow of raw material
purchase this year. Net cash used in investing activities
amounted to RMB1,821.9 million, which was mainly used
for the payment of capital expenditures for capacity
expansion and acquisitions of subsidiaries. During the
year under review, net cash generated from financing
activities amounted to RMB643.2 million, which was
mainly used in financing for capital expenditures.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s bank and cash
balances (including pledged bank deposits) amounted to
RMB1,199.7 million (as at 31 December 2017:
RMB1,555.0 million). The Group’s inventories increased
by RMB1,447.1 million to RMB5,211.3 million and our
trade and bills receivables increased by RMB153.6
million to RMB1,783.8 million (as at 31 December 2017:
RMB3,764.2 million and RMB1,630.1 million
respectively). The inventory turnover days and trade and
bills receivables turnover days were 101 days and 32
days respectively, compared to 87 days and 36 days in
2017. Increase in inventory turnover days was mainly
attributable to the increase in average inventory for the
year due to the increase of raw material purchase for
new production capacity in the second half of 2018.
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Trade and bills payables increased by RMB561.0 million
to RMB3,522.7 million as at 31 December 2018 (as at 31
December 2017: RMB2,961.7 million), the payable
turnover days was 73 days, compared to 78 days in
2017. Decrease in the payable turnover days was mainly
due to early settlement of part of bills payable to try to
reduce the overall liability level.

The total bank borrowings of the Group increased by
RMB1,578.1 million to RMB7,127.7 million as at 31
December 2018. Current bank borrowings decreased by
RMB309.8 million to RMB2,252.5 million while non-
current bank borrowings increased by RMB1,888.0
million to RMB4,875.2 million. The increase in the
proportion of non-current bank borrowings enhanced the
stability of the financial structure. Despite its higher
interest rate than current borrowings, the Group will
continue to maintain a considerable portion of long-term
borrowings to achieve a better debt portfolio.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group’s financial
ratios were as follows:

Current ratio BN &
Debt to equity ratio’ AfEREsLE
Net debt to equity ratio? BEFEER

! Based on total borrowings over equity attributable to
shareholders

2 Based on total borrowings net of cash and cash
equivalents and pledged bank deposits over equity
attributable to shareholders

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s total bank
borrowings amounted to RMB7,127.7 million, among
which RMB1,860.1 million (26.1%) was denominated in
Renminbi, RMB1,356.2 million (19.0%) was denominated
in United States dollars (“US$” or “USD”) and
RMB3,911.4 million (54.9%) was denominated in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$” or “HKD”). These bank borrowings
borne interest at rates ranging from 2.0% to 5.0% per
annum (2017: 1.2% to 6.5%).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has outstanding
current bank borrowings of RMB2,252.5 million (2017:
RMB2,562.4 million). Decrease in current bank
borrowings was mainly due to the optimization of long-
term and short-term debts to strengthen its financial
security.
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In respect of the Group’s borrowings, the Group has to
comply with certain restrictive financial covenants.

As at 31 December 2018, bank borrowings of RMB877.4
million (2017: RMB464.7 million) were secured by the
pledge of the Group’s property, plant and equipment with
a net book amount of approximately RMB834.9 million
(2017: RMB180.9 million), bills receivable with a net
book amount of RMB97.5 million (2017: Nil) and bank
deposits with a net book amount of RMB68.5 million
(2017: Nil). No land use rights and inventory were
secured as at 31 December 2018 (2017: RMB26.7
million and RMB261.2 million).

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and Vietnam.
Most of the Group’s transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in RMB, US$ and HK$. Foreign
exchange risk may arise from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations. The Group’s exposure
to foreign exchange risk is mainly attributable to its
borrowings and raw material procurement denominated
in US$ or HK$. The Group manages its foreign exchange
risks by performing regular reviews and closely
monitoring its foreign exchange exposures.

To mitigate the risk of depreciation of Renminbi, the
Group has taken steps to purchase a suitable amount of
currency option contracts and cross currency swap
contracts. Other than bills payable in US$, the Group did
not have exposure on foreign currency without protection
of option contracts or cross currency swap contracts as
at 31 December 2018. However, since the mark-to-
market value of those financial derivative instruments are
calculated based on forward exchange rate, this may not
reflect the actual protection of those instruments on the
risk of foreign exchange rate fluctuation.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the capital
expenditure of the Group amounted to RMB2,003 million
(2017: RMB724 million). It was mainly comprised of the
investments in fixed assets in Vietham and the PRC.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

AEEAREEE B TE TSR B -

R N\F+-_A=+—8 AR¥8.774
BL(ZZ—tF: ARM46471E L) HIE
TEEEUEmFENAARES.349ETT(=
T—+F: ARB1.809ET)NYE  BE
N REFEAARKITSOETT(ZT
—tF  D)NEREEAREBFEAAR
6,850 B LR IRITIF BRI (=T —+4F -
T)o R_T— A¢+*H*+ H REE
MEEFLERERFE(ZE—EF - A
E%zwo%ﬁ&AE%zmzf JL) °

ci|

REEETBHEPE R EE - NEE KIS
DR QE&ETMAE% ETRETT
FTHE - SNERBR AT 2R B R R HBINETSF
SEES=EZ Eﬁ?ﬁ?&%ﬁ&&ﬁ”%°
AEBEHEMENIIMNERBREZREAEUET
BT ENEENRMREER - A%£E
EITESHRF REIE T EINERBRIEE I
EIRHIMER [ o

REHARERZERR - 28K EREE A
BABENESHMBZANLRINERIZHAE
#) e BRUETXNNREIN  R_F—N\F
T-A=+—8 AEEELEHEAONK
XX EBERENFRENER T L EINEE
e AT ARBRATBRIIETARTER
ENEEDZEMERE  ErL TR
R %% T A E KRB RN BERRE -

RBE_Z—)\F+_A=+—HLFE "
AEBZEARI ABAREE20.03ET(ZF
—+F: ARET724ET) TEABEET
BEHETEERE -

RIE-NF+_A=+—H FEELE
EXSARBE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 =Z—N\FF# 21



As announced by the Company on 18 May 2015, by an
agreement dated 18 May 2015 (“2015 Facility
Agreement”) entered into by, among others, the
Company as borrower and a syndicate of banks and
financial institutions as lenders, the lenders have agreed
to grant a term loan facility (“2015 Facility”) of up to the
aggregate principal amount of US$110 million for any
refinancing, repayment, redemption, purchase or
repurchase of the 2011 Notes due in January 2016
issued by the Company, in whole or part, at or before
their maturity. The 2015 Facility shall be fully repaid in
May 2018 and is guaranteed by certain subsidiaries of
the Company. The amount of the 2015 Facility
represents approximately 27% of the total amount of
banking/credit facilities (including the 2015 Facility)
presently available to the Group. The 2015 Facility
Agreement contains the usual cross default provisions
and a further requirement that Mr. Hong Tianzhu shall be
and continue to be the chairman of the Company, directly
or indirectly beneficially own not less than 25% of the
total voting shares issued by the Company, and be and
remain the single largest holder of the voting shares
issued by the Company. A breach of such requirement
will constitute an event of default under the 2015 Facility
Agreement, and as a result, the 2015 Facility is liable to
be declared immediately due and payable. The
occurrence of such circumstance may trigger the cross
default provisions of other banking/credit facilities
available to the Group and, as a possible consequence,
these other facilities may also be declared to be
immediately due and payable. The 2015 Facility was fully
repaid by the Company in January 2018.

As announced by the Company on 20 April 2016, by an
agreement dated 20 April 2016 (“2016 Facility
Agreement”) entered into by, among others, Texhong
Galaxy Technology Limited (“Texhong Galaxy”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as borrower
and a syndicate of banks and financial institutions as
lenders, the lenders have agreed to grant a facility (2016
Facility”) in the aggregate principal amount of up to
US$103,000,000 to finance the development of Texhong
Galaxy's production plant in Haiha District, Quang Ninh
Province, Vietnam. The 2016 Facility shall be fully repaid
in April 2023 and is guaranteed by the Company.
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The 2016 Facility Agreement contains a requirement that
Mr. Hong Tianzhu shall maintain, directly or indirectly,
the status of the largest individual shareholder of the
Company and maintain the position of chairman of the
Group. A breach of such requirement will constitute an
event of default under the 2016 Facility Agreement, and
as a result, the 2016 Facility is liable to be declared
immediately due and payable. The occurrence of such
circumstance may trigger the cross default provisions of
other banking/credit facilities available to the Group and,
as a possible consequence, these other facilities may
also be declared to be immediately due and payable.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company is in
compliance with the 2016 Facility Agreement.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a total
workforce of 38,076 employees (as at 31 December
2017: 38,024), of whom 18,211 employees were located
in the sales headquarters and our manufacturing plants
in Mainland China. The remaining 19,865 employees
were stationed in regions outside Mainland China
including Vietnam, Cambodia, Nicaragua, North America,
Hong Kong and Macao. New employees were recruited
to cater for the Group’s business expansion during the
year. The Group offers a competitive remuneration
package to its employees. In addition, discretionary
bonuses and share options may also be granted to
eligible staff based on individual and Group’s
performance. The Group is committed to creating a
learning and sharing culture in the organization. Strong
emphasis is placed on the training and development of
individual staff and team building, as the Group’s
success is dependent on the contribution of all skilled
and motivated employees.

The Board intends to maintain a long term, stable
dividend payout ratio of about 30% of the Group’s net
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company,
providing shareholders with an equitable return. The
Board has resolved to distribute a final dividend of 20 HK
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of
member on 9 May 2019 and will be payable on or about
23 May 2019, subject to the approval by the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company on 26 April 2019. An interim dividend of
23 HK cents per share was paid by the Company on 24
September 2018.
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The following are the key risks that the Group considers
to be of great significance to the Group in its current
status. These risks may have materially adverse effect
on the Group’s business.

For the possible impact of each risk on the Group should
it occur, we have made a detail description and set down
corresponding control measures and mitigation plan to
manage the risk.

The impact of risk relating to the business of the Group
will change over time. The size, complexity and coverage
of our business and the changing environment in which
the Group operates also mean that the list cannot be an
exhaustive list of all material risks that could affect the
Group.

Major control measures

Risks description and risk mitigation
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Changes of risk
level from last year

¢ TEREERER AR K BB L FR1E
Product concentration: The Group has * Enhance customer communication with
established its market position as a an outstanding marketing team which Unchanged
manufacturer of high value-added thoroughly and promptly understands the
core-spun cotton textile products and requirements of customers.
core-spun cotton is the major earning Step up cooperation with raw material
source of the Group. In the event of any suppliers and monitor the market trend of
change in fashion trend, customers may change in new textile materials
prefer other textile materials. Boost input for research and
Competition in such market may also development team and improve product
intensify suddenly. If the Group fails to functionality and develop new products in
respond to the change in an efficient response to market demands
and effective manner, the profitability of Explore downstream industries and
the Group may be adversely affected. increase the contribution of downstream
products
Geographical concentration: The Facilitate the development of import and
Mainland China is the major market of export business continuously to tap into
the Group and, thus, the Group is overseas markets
subject to the economic, political and
social condition and change in domestic
demand for the products of the Group in
China.
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Major control measures Changes of risk

Risks description and risk mitigation level from last year
. B 4 TEERERRERYEE BEBKFRLFR(L
Cotton is the major production material +  Closely monitor the dynamics of cotton

of the Group and the fluctuation of futures and supply and demand balance Unchanged

cotton prices may not align with and correlation in the spot market and

fluctuation of end-product prices at all hedge risks mainly through measures

times. In the event of intense fluctuation like maintaining stable procurement and

of cotton prices, the gross profit margin inventory strategies

of the Group will be heavily affected. + Diversify the development of the

synthetic fiber category and reduce the
Group’s reliance on the cotton category
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Risks description

Jlogip

Fluctuation of exchange rate may result
in material losses on foreign currency
and affect the raw material procurement
costs and financing costs of the Group.
In the event of intensified fluctuation of
the exchange rate of USD/RMB, the
profitability of the Group may be subject
to material uncertainties.

In the event of increase in prevailing
interest rates of banks, liabilities at
floating rates may cause an increase in
financing costs of the Group.

EXRB AR EHBAINEERL FE
Kglmﬁﬂ%%&ﬁuﬁﬂéiﬁ

BET/AREBHEXRBME - K
E@m%ﬂ ENFI R EEREATHEE
1 o

WMERITRIME LT FHAENR
EREEHAREREKAIELM

Major control measures
and risk mitigation

IRERERREAREE

» Foster communication with financial
institutions and market analysis
institutions to interpret the dynamics of
financial market and make specific
adjustments to financing structure

* Increase loans in RMB to reduce the
ratio of loans in USD to directly mitigate
risks

* Lock up exposure of liabilities in foreign
currencies, including foreign liabilities
arising from daily operation and
financing, using foreign financing
products, such as forward contracts and
options

*  Closely monitor various important
economic data published by the People’s
Bank of China and the Federal Reserve
and keep abreast with its interest rate
policy

+ Obtain quotations for interest rate swap
from financial institutions regularly and
utilize financial instruments in a timely
manner to switch from floating to fixed
interest rate
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Changes of risk
level from last year

RIBAKTE L F#{

Causes of the trend:
+  Substantial part
exposure to

foreign currency
liabilities has
been locked up
+  Structure of the
financings in
various
currencies has
been optimized
gradually
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Major control measures Changes of risk

Risks description and risk mitigation level from last year
. B 4 TEERERRERYEE BEBKFRLFR(L
The Group is now in the stage of + Enhance the transparency of the Group’s
business expansion with higher operation for banks’ understanding and Unchanged
financing needs. In the event that the maintain good working relationship
financial institutions which provide the between the Group and financial
existing facilities cease to offer such institutions
financing to the Group or banking Monitor various financing indicators in
facilities on similar terms and the Group real-time and provide timely alerts to
fails to obtain alternatives, the Group ensure compliance in respect of various
may not have sufficient funds for its indicators
commitment of capital projects and may Diversify the portfolio of financial
restrict or hinder the business operation institutions and financing products
of the Group. Devise a reasonable spread for financing

with different terms to strike a balance

between financing costs and risks
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Major control measures
and risk mitigation

IRERERREAREE

Changes of risk
level from last year

RIBAKTE L F#{

Risks description

Jlogip

The Group focuses on producing a wide
range of products and does not rely on
a particular individual customer. The
Group works with more than 3,000
customers from an enormous and

Monitor and evaluate credit terms
granted to customers regularly

Monitor the collectability of receivables in
real-time and provide alerts and warnings
for amount overdue and customers with

Causes of the trend:

Increasing
business volume
and business

widespread portfolio. As a result of the abnormal business operation type lead to

difficult market environment and request Closely monitor market dynamics and increasing total

from part of the customers to extend operation of customers to devise plan for receivables

credit terms, the Group is facing a risk customer visit and collect the latest + Unfavorable

of the receivables turning into bad information of customers operation

debts. Enhance customer reconciliation system environment in
Adopt collectability of receivables as a the textile

criterion of staff performance assessment
to promote staff members’ awareness of

industry spurs
operation risk for

payment demand customers
Arrange export credit insurance for all
overseas customers with newly
established relationship
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Risks description

BRI

The Group offers a wide range of
products and its portfolio is ever-
expanding, creating a huge risk of
product liability for the Group. Although
the Group has not incurred any material
losses from product liability, there have
been individual claims from customers
in respect of product quality.
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Major control measures
and risk mitigation

IREERRREREE

+ Increase efforts on quality control and
devise improvement solutions for quality
fluctuation

+  Control production process using state-
of-the-art measurement equipment and
online quality control system

+ Improve production technology training
for staff members and cultivate
responsibility awareness of plant
production staff and management
members at each level

+ Actively reach out to customers for
product liability incidents and coordinate
for resolution and hold relevant staff
accountable internally
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Changes of risk
level from last year
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Causes of the trend:

* Increased
product portfolio

+  More stringent
requirements on
product quality
and differentiation
from customers
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Risks description

Jlogip

The operation presence of the Group
covers various countries and regions,
including the Mainland China, Hong
Kong, Macau, Vietham, Cambodia,
Turkey and North America. In the
course of tax preparation and daily
operation, we are subject to the
following tax risks:

+ Risk of tax incompliance caused by
misunderstanding of regional tax
policies;

+ The interpretation of tax policies and
the legal conformity of tax
preparation must be confirmed by
the tax administration authority. In
the course of such confirmation, the
enforcement of tax administration
may be different.

ARERAKEREBETEALE  F

& ORF - BRE - RME - LEERE

XEZEBRRMLE - ARBEERA

FELBET  BAEEATHERR :

- HHEURBRRERERMEL
MBI AR -

« BBBREEERBEINA AN
FEGIMBIIBAPINER - £
B RRBRET RGITRIAR
REHBRIRE -

Major control measures
and risk mitigation

IRERERREAREE

Engage financial officers familiar with
local tax policies and regulations to
conduct tax audit and handle tax
examination of the government

Engage professional local tax
consultation institutions for consultations
on tax compliance advices, tax incentive
policies and tax preparation solutions
Liaise with local tax authority frequently
to have thorough understanding of
change in tax policies and policy
interpretation, thereby reducing risks of
tax incompliance and enforcement of tax
administration
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Changes of risk
level from last year

i

BAFPBRLES(

Causes of the trend:

f
.

Intensifying tax
regulations in
different
countries
Increasing
international
coverage of
operation
presence,
resulting in
mounting
overseas tax risk
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Major control measures

Risks description

BRI

As a listed company on the Stock .
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the

“Stock Exchange”), the Group must

comply with the “Securities and Futures
Ordinance” and the “Listing Rules” of .
the Stock Exchange as well as the laws

and regulations in places which the

Group operates in. As social and

economic environment evolves, many
countries and relevant authorities

continue to promulgate laws and rules

to update economic matters, such as
corporate governance, foreign

investment, commerce, tax and trade.

The introduction or amendments of

these laws and regulations may

adversely affect the business and

prospects of the Group.

AEBER—REEMAXZMH -
Rl EmRTE - wAETER RS
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ERREMEARIER - BELEEE .
RENEL  SRAREERES T
RAEHLRER  BIMRE BE-
BELBEFEEEEHREERRM -
BERERARIE B E e
AREXGRASEXEATE

and risk mitigation

IREERRREREE

Engage qualified legal advisors or
consultation institutions to review and
provide advices on relevant documents
to ensure legal compliance

The company secretary is responsible for
offering advices to the board of directors
and board committees in respect of the
latest legal, regulatory and governance
matters and ensuring their awareness of
such matters

CEEERNEERR N FARESH
BEANETRHER  BREWEEEH
Ex
REANEEENESERESZESH
BHRERE  BEEREREERHEEAR
BROMEEZSER

Changes of risk

level from last year

Rk TE EF#{L

Unchanged

)
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Major control measures
and risk mitigation

Changes of risk

Risks description level from last year

B 4 TEERERREBRYEER BBKFRLFERL
Electricity consumption of the Group’s Equip production factories subject to
production process is huge and potential electricity shortage with Unchanged
electricity shortage may adversely affect generators to minimize the duration of
the operation of production facilities of electricity shortage
the Group. Conduct technological renovation on

equipment to reduce energy consumption

Liaise with the government to seek

permit for uninterrupted electricity supply
AEERREBRTRARNENES RATREHIRE NI £ E TR HE
ENHRERAGEHAEEEEREN B ROREEENHEERNERE iy 4

BEEKTMTE -

HREEITRITUE - FEREIRERE
BEFTER R RERSEHES N
FA]
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Risks description

[ B i it

The Group operates in a labour-
intensive industry. While our new plant,
with more advanced production facilities,
has helped to reduce our deployment of
labour force to a certain extent, our
need in manpower remains relatively
high compared to some other industrial
segments. If we experience any labour
shortage or technical inadequacy of its
labour force, the efficiency in utilization
of our production facilities will be
impaired, and our profitability will be
affected as a result.

The Group has been expanding its
operation abroad. The cultural difference
between our foreign and Chinese
employees may bring risk to the regular
and normal operation of our Company.

AEREFMRTERSHERUNITR  #
R IHERETERATENEERE

E-ERELRETST  BRMELE
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AEBBINRETEER  BHETH
FEBEE TN XL ERAERALENE
FESHIER

Major control measures
and risk mitigation
TEREERER BB K

Commence effective performance-based
unit count in recognition of the principle
of ‘better reward comes with greater
contribution’

Expand the scope of staff training to
create a highly efficient and capable
workforce

Prepare and work further ahead on any
decisions related to employees and that
any issue which may arise will be
promptly dealt with

Address issue concerning the conditions
of our canteen and staff quarters,
enhance the quality of our employees’
livelihood, and improve our backup
supporting service

Train up and enhance the management
capability of our management staff, roll
out skill and capability reinforcement
programme, strengthen the sense of
belonging and honour of our staff
Improve staff retention through
maintaining and expanding our presence
in the locality

Unchanged
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Risks description

Jlogip

The Group’s production process must
comply with the environmental
protection laws and regulations in
various countries and territories. The
Group has not been subject to any fines
or penalties concerning environmental
pollution in the past. However, there can
be no assurance that governments of
any countries and territories will not
introduce new laws and regulations to
impose stricter control on environmental
pollution in the future. Additionally, the
risk faced by the Group may also
increase as a result of investments in
downstream sectors.

Changes in existing environmental
protection laws and regulations may
require the Group to incur substantial
expenditure to upgrade its existing
environmental protection facilities and
the profitability of the Group may be
adversely affected.

AEELERRAETSEIMENR
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Major control measures
and risk mitigation

IRERERREAREE

»  Selectively pick our suppliers, enter into
purchase agreements with suppliers
which guarantee the raw materials
supplied are in compliance with
environmental protection standard (in
particular dyestuff and chemicals)

+ Establish a factory internal check system
and procedure in compliance with
product-wise regular core environmental
protection standard, set up a highly
regulated control system and strictly
implement it

+ Pay attention to news about development
in environmental regulations, cause new
factories to operate in strict compliance
with any new regulations and existing
factories to transform and upgrade their
facilities in order to meet with
environmental protection standard.
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Changes of risk
level from last year

RIBAKTE L F#{

Causes of the trend:

* Increase in
number of dyeing
factories and
higher risk in
environmental
governance

+ ThePRC
government
tightens its
control over
environmental
protection, which
may affect the
production
operation of
business
enterprises
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The Group is committed to maintaining a high level of
corporate governance with an emphasis on the principles
of transparency, accountability and independence. The
Board believes that good corporate governance is
essential to the success of the Group and the
enhancement of shareholders’ value.

The Company is committed to maintaining high level of
corporate governance and has steered its development
and protected the interests of its shareholders in an
enlightened and open manner. The Board comprises five
executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. The Board has adopted the code provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code Provisions”)
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. During the
reporting period, the Company had complied with the
Code Provisions.

The Board currently comprises eight Directors and its
composition is set out as follows:

Hong Tianzhu (Chairman)

Zhu Yongxiang (Vice Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)

Tang Daoping

Hui Tsz Wai

Ji Zhongliang

Tao Xiaoming

Cheng Longdi

Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA
(PRACTISING), ACA, CTA(HK), FHKIoD

AEBBHEFSKTF2EEER - ARH
SERE BEURBIMARE -EEg
MEERZEEERHAKE 2K MRS
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ARB—EBNRFESKFLEER AR
AMFAROESEEARRE O ERRRER
RfiEs - EFTEHARBTEER=F
BYFNTEFER -EFSCRMAEN L
i AR R BT 8%+ IR A 2 S EDA ST RIEY ST R SC
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HRB(E/E)
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b & AR

FEREAR

T R.}E MH, FCCA, FCPA
(PRACTISING), ACA, CTA(HK), FHKIoD
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The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out
in the “Directors and Senior Management” section on
pages 62 to 65. There was no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship) among members of the Board.

The Company has three INEDs representing more than
one-third of the Board. At least one of the INEDs has
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise under Rule 3.10
of the Listing Rules. The Board has received from each
INED an annual confirmation of his independence and
considers that all the INEDs are independent under the
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board meets regularly to discuss the overall strategy
as well as the operation and financial performance of the
Group, and to review and approve the Group’s annual
and interim results. During the year, four Board meetings
and one general meeting were held and attendance of
each Director at the Board meetings and the general
meeting is set out as follows:

Executive Directors: PITES:
Hong Tianzhu HR
(Chairman) (/%)

Zhu Yongxiang (Vice Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)

EECvEEABHNFERESAEZ[EFR
BREERE] 8RN - EE K ERBELM
BE(RERS 275 KEXEMEKR
BRR) -

ARRZ=Z2FUFNTEFHEFTETAR
ZR=nz—  RELWRAUE30MK =
D-RBIUFBTEFLRAAREEZEE
ERIET ARV BEREXNE - EF
CERESRBUNFNTESARAB L
ZEEHERE  URRABABLIFNTES
BEELETRAEIAGMEZIESI T 2B
S e

ErgrHaRed TRniREZEER
BE AR 8 M RRIR - BN EARE
Brz2FERPHEE RFER - DRITHR
Exged - RBERAE BEFLFE
FEeRMERASZERLT

KoK (BIE FEARTTIABEL)

Tang Daoping % B
Hui Tsz Wai FTE
Ji Zhongliang HER
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BI#TES :
Cheng Longdi TR

Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA T R # MH, FCCA, FCPA

(PRACTISING), ACA
CTA(HK), FHKIoD
Tao Xiaoming

b5 H B3
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(PRACTISING), ACA,
CTA(HK), FHKIoD

Number of Number of

Board General

meetings meetings

attended/held attended/held
wES

BITEEY HE BT

EERE RRERKEXH

4/4 11

4/4 11

4/4 11

4/4 11

4/4 11

4/4 11

4/4 11

4/4 11



The Board has reserved for its decision or consideration
matters covering mainly the Group’s overall strategy,
investment plans, annual and interim results,
recommendations on Directors’ appointment or
reappointment, material contracts and transactions as
well as other significant policies and financial matters.
The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to
the senior management under the supervision of the
Board.

Board meetings are scheduled to be held at
approximately quarterly intervals and as required by
business needs. At least 14 days’ notice of a Board
meeting is normally given to all Directors who are given
an opportunity to include matters for discussion in the
agenda. The company secretary assists the chairman of
the Board in preparing the agenda for meetings and
ensures that all applicable rules and regulations are
complied with. The agenda and the accompanying Board
papers are normally sent to all Directors at least three
days before the intended date of a regular Board meeting
(and so far as practicable for other Board meetings).
Draft minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to all
Directors for their comment before the same will be
tabled at the following Board meeting for approval. All
minutes are kept by the company secretary and are open
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice by any Director.

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers
and related materials and has access to the advice and
services of the company secretary. The Board and each
Director also have separate and independent access to
the Company’s senior management. Directors will be
continuously updated on the major development of the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good
corporate governance practices.
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To ensure the Directors’ contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant and in compliance with
paragraph A.6.5 of the CG Code, the Company would
arrange and fund suitable continuous professional
development for the Directors to participate in order to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company
had provided all the Directors with regular updates
regarding the Company’s performance as well as
updates on latest amendments and developments to the
Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory
requirements from time to time.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct (“the
Securities Code”) regarding securities transactions by
Directors and officers on terms no less exacting than the
required standard set out in the Model Code (“Model
Code”) for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

A copy of the Securities Code has been sent to each
Director of the Company first on his/her appointment and
thereafter twice annually, 30 days and 60 days before
the date of the Board meetings to approve the
Company’s interim result and annual result respectively,
with a reminder that the Director cannot deal in the
securities and derivatives of the Company until after
such results have been published, and that all his
dealings must be conducted in accordance with the
Securities Code.

Under the Securities Code, the Directors are required to
notify Mr. Hong Tianzhu or Mr. Zhu Yongxiang or a
Director (other than himself/herself) designated by the
Board for the specific purpose (the “Designated Director”)
and receive a dated written acknowledgement from such
Designated Director before dealing in the securities and
derivatives of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Company, having made specific enquiry on all the
Directors, confirms that all the Directors have complied
with the required standard set out in the Securities Code
and the Model Code.
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Code A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual.

Mr. Hong Tianzhu is the chairman of the Company. Mr.
Zhu Yongxiang is the vice chairman and chief executive
officer of the Company.

Each of Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen, Professor Cheng
Longdi, Professor Tao Xiaoming has been appointed as
an independent non-executive Director for an initial term
of one year commencing from their respective date of
appointment as an INED renewable automatically for
successive term of one year each commencing from the
next day after the expiry of the then current term of
appointment, unless terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either the independent
non-executive Director or the Company expiring at the
end of the initial term or at any time thereafter. The
Company has paid an annual director’s fee of
HKD300,000 to Mr. Ting Leung Huel Stephen,
HKD150,000 to Professor Cheng Longdi, and
HKD180,000 to Professor Tao Xiaoming for the year
ended 31 December 2018. Save for the above directors’
fees, none of the independent non-executive Directors
has received any other remuneration for holding their
office as an independent non-executive Director.

The Board has established a remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”), an audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”) and the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”), each of which has its specific
written terms of reference. Copies of minutes of all
meetings and resolutions of the committees, which are
kept by the company secretary, are circulated to all
Board members and the committees are required to
report back to the Board on their decision and
recommendations where appropriate. The procedures
and arrangements for a Board meeting, as mentioned on
page 35 in the section “The Board” above, have been
adopted for the committee meetings so far as
practicable.
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The Company has established the Remuneration
Committee since November 2004, which currently
comprises three independent non-executive Directors of
the Company, namely Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen,
Professor Tao Xiaoming and Professor Cheng Longdi
and the chairman and an executive Director of the
Company, namely Mr. Hong Tianzhu. The chairman of
the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Ting Leung Huel,
Stephen. The Remuneration Committee has adopted
terms of reference which are in line with the code
provisions of the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice in accordance with the Company’s
policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are:

(a) to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all directors’
and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing remuneration policy;

(b) to review and approve the management’s
remuneration proposals with reference to the
board’s corporate goals and objectives;

(c) to make recommendations to the board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, this should
include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of
their office or appointment;

(d) to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors;

(e) to consider salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities
and employment conditions elsewhere in the
Group;
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(f) to review and approve compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management for
any loss or termination of office or appointment to
ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms
and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

(g) toreview and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate; and

(h) to ensure that no director or any of his associates
is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once a
year. One committee meeting was held in 2018 to review
and discuss the existing policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors, the remuneration packages of
both the executive and non-executive Directors and the
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Committee member ZEERE
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE
Hong Tianzhu R
Tao Xiaoming b8 A
Cheng Longdi TEERR

In addition to the Committee meetings, the Remuneration
Committee also dealt with matters by way of circulation
during 2018. The remuneration payable to Directors will
depend on their respective contractual terms under their
employment or service contracts as approved by the
Board on the recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee.

In order to attract, retain and motivate the senior
executives and key employees of the Group, including
the executive Directors, the Company adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) in April
2014 for a term of ten years. Details of the share option
scheme are set out in the Directors’ Report on pages 70
to 72 and note 16 to the financial statements.
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The Audit Committee has been established since
November 2004, the current members of the Audit
Committee are Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, Professor
Tao Xiaoming and Professor Cheng Longdi. The
chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Ting Leung Huel,
Stephen. To retain independence and objectivity, the
Audit Committee has been chaired by an INED with
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Audit
Committee has adopted terms of reference, which are in
line with the code provisions of the CG Code. The Audit
Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent
professional advice according to the Company’s policy if
considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee
are:

(@) to be primarily responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor,
and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and any
questions of resignation or dismissal of that auditor;

(b) to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard;

(c) to develop and implement policy on the
engagement of an external auditor to supply non-
audit services;

(d) to monitor integrity of financial statements of the
Company and the Company’s annual report and
accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgments contained
in them, and to review the Company’s annual
report and accounts, half-year report and, if
prepared for publication, quarterly reports before
submission to the Board;

(e) to discuss problems and reservations arising from
the interim and final audits, and any matters the
auditors may wish to discuss;

(f) to review the Company’s financial controls, risk
management and internal control systems;
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to discuss with the management the risk
management and internal control systems and
ensure that management has discharged its duty
to have effective systems;

to consider any findings of major investigations of
risk management and internal control matters as
delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response;

to review the Group’s financial and accounting
policies and practices; and

to review the external auditor's management letter,
any material queries raised by the auditor to
management in respect of the accounting records,
financial accounts or systems of control and
management’s response.

The Audit Committee shall meet at least twice a year.
Two committee meetings were held in 2018 and the
attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Committee member EJ=R-§o4-
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRIE
Tao Xiaoming K8 H A
Cheng Longdi TEEAR

During the meetings held in 2018, the Audit Committee
had performed the work as summarised below:

(i)

(ii)

reviewed and approved the audit scope and fees
proposed by the external auditor regarding the final
audit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 (the “2017 Final Audit”);

reviewed the external auditor’s report of findings in
relation to the 2017 Final Audit;
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(iii) reviewed the financial reports for the year ended
31 December 2017 and for the six months ended
30 June 2018; and

(iv) reviewed the effectiveness of internal control
system of the Group including financial, operational
and compliance control and risk management
functions of the Group.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditors.

On 19 March 2012, the Board has approved the
establishment of the Nomination Committee which
became effective on 1 April 2012. The current members
of Nomination Committee comprises an executive
Director and the chairman of the Company, Mr. Hong
Tianzhu and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Professor Tao Xiaoming, Professor Cheng
Longdi and Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen. The chairman
of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Hong Tianzhu. The
Nomination Committee has adopted terms of reference
which are in line with the code provisions of the CG
Code. The Nomination Committee is provided with
sufficient resources to discharge its duties and has
access to independent professional advice in accordance
with the Company’s policy if considered necessary.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination
Committee are:

(a) to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the
board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy;

(b) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
members of the Board and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships;

(c) to assess the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors;
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(d)

to make recommendations to the Board on:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

x)

(xi)

the role, responsibilities, capabilities, skills,
knowledge and experience required from
members of the Board;

the policy on the terms of employment of
non-executive Directors;

the composition of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and other board
committees of the Company;

proposed changes to the structure, size and
composition of the Board;

candidates suitably qualified to become
members of the Board;

the selection of individuals nominated for
directorship;

the re-election by shareholders of the
Company of any Directors who are to retire
by rotation having regard to their performance
and ability to continue to contribute to the
Board;

the continuation (or not) in service of any
independent non-executive Director serving
more than nine years and to provide
recommendation to the shareholders of the
Company as to how to vote in the resolution
approving the re-election of such independent
non-executive Director;

the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors;

succession planning for Directors in particular
the chairman and the chief executive; and

the policy concerning diversity of Board
members;

(d)
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(e)

46

to give full consideration to the following in the
discharge of its duties as mentioned above or
elsewhere in these terms of reference:

(i)  succession planning of Directors;

(i) leadership needs of the Group with a view of
maintaining or fostering the competitive edge
of the Group over others;

(i) changes in market environment and
commercial needs of the market in which the
Group operates;

(iv) the skills and expertise required from
members of the Board;

(v) the Board’s policy concerning diversity of
Board members adopted from time to time;
and

(vi) the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules
with regard to directors of a listed issuer;

in respect of any proposed service contracts to be
entered into by any members of the Group with its
director or proposed director, which require the
prior approval of the shareholders of the Company
at general meeting under rule 13.68 of the Listing
Rules, to review and provide recommendations to
the shareholders of the Company (other than
shareholders who are directors with a material
interest in the relevant service contracts and their
respective associates) as to whether the terms of
the service contracts are fair and reasonable and
whether such service contracts are in the interests
of the Company and the shareholders as a whole,
and to advise shareholders on how to vote;

to ensure that on appointment to the Board, non-
executive Directors receive a formal letter of
appointment setting out what is expected of them
in terms of time commitment, committee service
and involvement outside meetings of the Board;

to conduct exit interviews with any Director upon
their resignation in order to ascertain the reasons
for his departure; and

to consider other matters, as defined or assigned
by the Board from time to time.
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The director nomination policy of Company aims to set
out the criteria and process in the nomination and
appointment of directors of the Company; ensure that
the board (the “Board”) of directors of the Company has
a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the Company; and ensure
the Board continuity and appropriate leadership at Board
level.

The criteria for selecting any candidate for directorship
are set out as follows:

. bringing an independent judgment and make
constructive recommendation on issues of strategy,
policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standards of conducts;

. taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests
arise;

. serving on the Audit Committee, and the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee (in the case of candidate for Non-
Executive Director) and other relevant Board
Committees, if invited;

. devoting sufficient time to the Board and/or any
Committee(s) on which he or she serves so as to
allow them to benefit from his or her skills,
expertise, and varied backgrounds and
qualifications and diversity through attendance and
participation in the Board;

. scrutinising the Company’s performance in
achieving agreed corporate goals and objectives,
and monitoring the reporting of performance;

. ensuring the Nomination Committees on which he
or she serves to perform their powers and functions
conferred on them by the Board; and

. conforming to any requirement, direction and
regulation that may from time to time be prescribed
by the Board or contained in the constitutional
documents of the Company or imposed by
legislation or the Listing Rules, where appropriate.
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If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an INED,
his or her independence shall be assessed in
accordance with, among other things, the factors as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to any
amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange
from time to time. Where applicable, the totality of the
candidate’s education, qualifications and experience
shall also be evaluated to consider whether he or she
has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise for
filling the office of an INED with such qualifications or
expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

(a) Appointment of New Director

(i)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should, upon receipt of the proposal on
appointment of new director and the
biographical information (or relevant details)
of the candidate, evaluate such candidate
based on the criteria as set out above to
determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship.

(ii)  If the process yields one or more desirable
candidates, the Nomination Committee and/
or the Board should rank them by order of
preference based on the needs of the
Company and reference check of each
candidate (where applicable).

(i) The Nomination Committee should then
recommend to the Board to appoint the
appropriate candidate for directorship, as
applicable.

(iv) For any person that is nominated by a
shareholder for election as a director at the
general meeting of the Company, the
Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should evaluate such candidate based on the
criteria as set out above to determine whether
such candidate is qualified for directorship.

Where appropriate, the Nomination
Committee and/or the Board should make
recommendation to shareholders in respect
of the proposed election of director at the
general meeting.
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(b)

(c)

Re-election of Director at General Meeting

(i)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should review the overall contribution and
service to the Company of the retiring director
and the level of participation and performance
on the Board.

(i)  The Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should also review and determine whether
the retiring director continues to meet the
criteria as set out above.

(i) The Nomination Committee and/or the Board
should then make recommendation to
shareholders in respect of the proposed re-
election of director at the general meeting.

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect or
re-elect a candidate as director at the general
meeting, the relevant information of the candidate
will be disclosed in the circular to shareholders
and/or explanatory statement accompanying the
notice of the relevant general meeting in
accordance with the Listing Rules and/or applicable
laws and regulations.

Re-election of INED at General Meeting

Where the Board proposes a resolution to elect an
individual as an INED at the general meeting, it
should set out in the circular to shareholders and/
or explanatory statement accompanying the notice
of the relevant general meeting:

(i) the process used for identifying the individual
and why the Board believes the individual
should be elected and the reasons why it
considers the individual to be independent;

(ii)  if the proposed INED will be holding their
seventh (or more) listed company
directorship, why the Board believes the
individual would still be able to devote
sufficient time to the Board;

(i) the perspectives, skills and experience that
the individual can bring to the Board; and

(iv) how the individual contributes to diversity
(including gender diversity) of the Board.
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The Nomination Committee will conduct regular review
on the structure, size and composition of the Board and
this Policy and where appropriate, make
recommendations on changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy and
business needs, to comply with all applicable laws and
regulations from time to time and maintain good
corporate governance practice.

On 5 August 2013, the Board adopted a board diversity
policy which aims to set out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board. All Board appointments will be
based on merit while taking into account diversity
including gender diversity. The Nomination Committee
will regularly review the measurable objectives to ensure
its effectiveness to achieve diversity on the Board. The
following measurable objectives have been set for
implementing the board diversity policy:

. inclusion of candidates for Board members with
overseas working experience (outside of PRC);

. ensuring that there is no limitation on gender on
selection of Directors;

. inclusion of candidates for Board members with
working experience in other industries; and

. inclusion of candidates for Board members with
knowledge and skills in different aspects.

As at the date of this annual report, the above objectives
have been achieved, 7 out of 8 members of the Board
have overseas working experience and 2 out of 8
members of the Board have accounting or other
professional qualifications.
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The Nomination Committee shall meet at least once a
year. One committee meeting was held in 2018 to review
the structure and composition of the Board and the re-
election of the retiring Directors and the attendance of
each member is set out as follows:

Committee member EJ=R-§54-
Hong Tianzhu R
Tao Xiaoming K8 H A
Cheng Longdi TEEAR
Ting Leung Huel, Stephen TRE

The Nomination Committee has adopted a written
nomination procedure (the “Nomination Procedure”)
specifying the process and criteria for the selection and
recommendation of candidates for directorship of the
Company. The Nomination Committee shall, based on
those criteria as set out in the Nomination Procedure
(such as appropriate experience, personal skills and time
commitment etc.), identify and recommend the proposed
candidate to the Board for approval of an appointment.

New Directors, on appointment, will be given an
induction package containing all key legal and Listing
Rules’ requirements as well as guidelines on the
responsibilities and obligations to be observed by a
Director. The package will also include the latest
published financial reports of the Company and the
documentation for the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Board. The senior management will
subsequently conduct such briefing as is necessary to
give the new Directors more detailed information on the
Group’s businesses and activities.
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The Company has not set up any corporate governance
committee. Since April 2012, the Board has adopted
written terms of reference in compliance with the code
provisions of the CG Code.

The Board is mainly responsible for keeping the
effectiveness of the corporate governance and system of
internal non-financial controls of the Group. The Board
shall introduce and propose relevant principles
concerning corporate governance and to review and
determine the corporate governance policy, so as to
enhance and to ensure a high standard of corporate
governance practices in the Group.

During the year, the Board regularly reviews and
monitors the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors, and the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing, with the support from finance department, the
financial statements of the Group. In preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018, the requirements of the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Listing Rules and the
Companies Ordinance were complied with.

The reporting responsibilities of the Company’s external
auditor, Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers, are set out in
the Auditor’s Report on pages 126 to 132.

Framework

The risk management and internal controls system will
assist the Group to fully achieve its strategic objective by
identifying and assessing all the risk exposure of the
Group and setting down corresponding control
measures, with a view to attain the long-term vision of
the Group. We believe that effective risk management
and internal controls system will enhance shareholders’
value in the long term. The risk faced by the Group
directly relates to its control measures and mitigation
plan.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued) BER&H 2

Risk Management and Internal Control (Continued) B EE R AT (E)

Framework (Continued) R (E)

Accordingly, the risk management and internal controls 1t - 7%= [ & &\ % & 12 K2 1) BB B 4 HE 28 40
framework of our Group is as follows: ™~

Audit Committee
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The Board
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Risk Management and
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Framework (Continued)

The operating model of the Group’s risk management
and internal control framework conforms to the internal
controls framework of COSO (the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission)
in the following five aspects:

54

Control Environment

The Group has established a clear organization
structure and delegated powers necessary to
perform different business functions to
management at different levels but it is subject to
the limit set by the Board. The Board meets
regularly to discuss and approve the business
strategies and working plans set by each operating
units. The Group will report our financial
performance to the Board on monthly basis.

Our governance rules and requirements are very
transparent to employees. We hope to build up risk
awareness and internal controls responsibility in
our corporate culture by creating an internal
organizational environment driven by the
management operating philosophy, risk awareness,
integrity and ethical values.

Risk Assessment

The Group identifies, assesses and grades the
risks that are most relevant to the success of the
Group based on the possibility of occurrence and
the impact on the financial result of the risk). Risk
management and internal controls team is
responsible for setting the appropriate tone from
the top, performing risk assessment, as well as
taking care of the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal controls. Meanwhile, it
requires department heads from each of the
operating units to identify operating risks from the
bottom in order to determine the major risks and
the risk levels of the Group.

Control Activities

The Group has policy and procedure in place for all
business functions, including authorization,
approval and audit, recommendation, performance
review, asset protection and division of duty, to
ensure effective execution of organization
objectives and mitigation of risk activities.
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Framework (Continued)

. Information and Communication
The risk management and internal controls team
performs risk assessment and prepare the Annual
Report of Risk Management on a semi-annual
basis, which sets out the identified risks and related
control procedures. The report will be submitted to
the Board and reviewed by the Audit Committee
annually.

. Monitoring
The Group self-assesses its controls and risks by
internal review and circulating major control
procedures to its employees to maintain continuous
monitoring of the internal control procedures.
Rectification will be made according to findings of
the control procedures in order to improve internal
monitoring.

Risk Management and Internal Controls Team
Composition

A risk management and internal controls team has been
set up by the Group in 2016, which comprises Mr. Tang
Daoping (executive Director and chief operation officer),
Mr. Hui Tsz Wai (executive Director) and Mr. Ji
Zhongliang (executive Director), and members including
general manager and department head from each of our
operating units, and general managers and department
head of finance and human resources department of our
subsidiaries. Mr. Hong Tianzhu, an executive Director
and chairman of the Group and Mr. Zhu Yongxiang, an
executive Director and vice chairman and chief executive
officer of the Group act as advisors of the working team.
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Risk Management and Internal Controls Team

(Continued)

Major Tasks

Set out below are the major responsibilities of our risk

management and internal control team:

. The team shall formulate proposal and plan for
building and promotion of corporate culture in risk
awareness and to lead in providing risk
management training.

. The team shall prepare and conduct annual and
interim reviews on risk profile and formulate
mitigating measures.

. The team shall summarize and analyze the findings
of the review exercise, to advise any modification
to the risk management strategy, to lead and assist
relevant departments in formulating counter
measures in addressing any material risks.

. It shall conduct annual internal evaluation on its
own risk management function, to lead and
mobilize the establishment and modification of risk
management and internal controls system, to give
guidance to subsidiaries on initiation of setting up
of risk management system.

. It shall prepare the Annual Report on Risk
Management and submit the same to our Audit
Committee for review and approval.

. It shall be responsible to formulate or modify the
relevant risk management and internal controls
system and to oversee its implementation, to give
guidance and assist the subsidiaries on setting up
and optimizing their risk management practical
measures.

. It shall be responsible for the organization,
compiling of minutes and oversight of
implementation of relevant resolutions concerning
the risk management function in the meetings of
the Audit Committee and Board meetings.

. It shall strictly comply its plan to counter risks by
implementing the measures stipulated therein and
to monitor the work rate and efficiency of such
implementation on an ongoing basis, and advise
on remedy in a timely manner.

. It shall monitor the status and development of any
risk events and formulate and devise contingency
plan in a timely manner, to forthwith report or
inform the Audit Committee on such matters.
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Risk Management and Internal Controls Team
(Continued)

Work Accomplished in 2018

Our risk management and internal controls team held
two meetings in 2018, and reported twice to the Audit
Committee and the Board on the annual risk assessment
and findings of internal controls review. The team
accomplished the following work in 2018:

1. issued relevant documents on risk assessment and
internal controls within the Group to enhance its
risk management culture;

2. performed a general review on the major risk
exposure of the Group, especially in areas relating
to raw material purchase, foreign exchange and
exchange rate, credit management and taxation;

3. discussed the possible risk and impact on
operating result with department heads from each
of our operating units;

4. reviewed and improved corresponding internal
controls measure;

5. prepared and submitted the annual report on risk
assessment and internal controls to the Audit
Committee and the Board.

Details of the major risks of the Group are set out in the
“Management Discussion and Analysis” section on
pages 24 to 34.

Review of Internal Controls Effectiveness

For the year ended 31 December 2018, our Board had
reviewed the representations made by the management
in respect of risk management and internal controls, and
considered that our Group’s risk management and
internal controls system effective and adequate. No
significant areas of weaknesses and deficiency that
might have affected the financial, operational,
compliance controls and risk management functions of
the Group were identified. The Board is of the view that
the resources, qualification and experience of staff of the
Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions, and their training and budget are adequate.
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Review of Internal Controls Effectiveness (Continued)
The risk management and internal controls system is
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve our business objectives. Like all other
systems, it could not entirely eliminate the impact of all
unforeseeable risks and events beyond our control that
might emerge and occur during the course of our
operation. Consequently, the Board may only provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that there was
no significant misrepresentation or deficiency as to the
completeness and effectiveness of our Group’s risk
management and internal controls.

Disclosure of Inside Information

Regarding procedures and measures of internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information,
the Group:

1. is aware of its obligation under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the
overriding principle that inside information should
be announced on a timely manner;

2. conducts its affairs in strict compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations prevailing in Hong
Kong;

3. has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair
disclosure by pursuing broad, non-exclusive
distribution of information to the public through
channels such as financial reporting,
announcements and its website;

4. has included in the Code of Conduct a strict
prohibition on the unauthorized use of non-public
or inside information;

5. has communicated to all relevant staff regarding

the implementation of the Continuous Disclosures
Policy and relevant trainings are also provided.
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During the year, the remuneration paid and payable to
the Company’s external auditor, Messrs.
PricewaterhouseCoopers, is set out as follows:

RER - BN RENARRRINEZEEDE X
FAGEZ RN TSP Z B DI T

Paid/Payable
Services rendered to the Group A E RS Z R e ENER
RMB’000
ARBFT
Annual audit service FREEZRE 4,000
Non-audit services (including consulting service B (BIEERITED
for transfer pricing and agreed-upon procedures  EERI RS M AN E 42
for selected financial information of the Group, AR MHEEEAT
financial due diligence RANFEE DM
and preliminary announcement of results) WEEF) 1,430
Total: A5t 5,430

The Board recognizes the importance of good
communication with shareholders. Information in relation
to the Group is disseminated to shareholders in a timely
manner through a number of formal channels, which
include interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars.

The Company’s annual general meeting (the “AGM”) is a
valuable forum for the Board to communicate directly
with the shareholders. The chairman actively participated
in the AGM held during the year and personally chaired
the meeting to answer any questions from the
shareholders. A separate resolution had been proposed
by the chairman in respect of each issue to be
considered at the AGM. An AGM circular and AGM
notice had been distributed to all shareholders in
accordance with the requirements of the articles of
association of the Company and the Listing Rules,
setting out details of each proposed resolution, voting
procedures and other relevant information. The chairman
explained the procedures for conducting a poll at the
beginning of the AGM, and answered any questions from
shareholders regarding voting by way of poll.
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The following procedures for shareholders (the
“Shareholders”, each a “Shareholder”) of the Company
to convene an extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”)
of the Company are prepared in accordance with Article
64 of the articles of association of the Company:

1.

One or more Shareholders (the “Requisitionist(s)”)
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general
meetings shall have the right, by written notice (the
“Requisition”), to require an EGM to be called by
the Directors for the transaction of any business
specified therein.

Such Requisition shall be made in writing to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company
via email at the email address of the Company at
main@texhong.com.

The EGM shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such Requisition.

If the Directors fail to proceed to convene such
meeting within 21 days of the deposit of such
Requisition, the Requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the
Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Directors shall be reimbursed to the
Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Shareholders should direct their questions about
their shareholdings, share transfer, registration and
payment of dividend to the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, details of which are
set out in the section headed “Corporate
Information” of this annual report.

Shareholders may at any time raise any enquiry in
respect of the Company via email at the email
address of the Company at main@texhong.com.

Shareholders are reminded to lodge their questions
together with their detailed contact information for
the prompt response from the Company if it deems
appropriate.
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1. To put forward proposals at a general meeting of
the Company, a Shareholder should lodge a written
notice of his/her/its proposal (the “Proposal”) with
his/her/its detailed contact information via email at
the email address of the Company at
main@texhong.com.

2. The identity of the Shareholder and his/her/its
request will be verified with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong and upon
confirmation by the branch share registrar that the
request is proper and in order and made by a
Shareholder, the Board will include the Proposal in
the agenda for the general meeting.

3. The notice period to be given to all the
Shareholders for consideration of the Proposal
raised by the Shareholder concerned at the general
meeting varies according to the nature of the
Proposal as follows:

(i)  Notice of not less than 21 days in writing if
the Proposal requires approval by way of an
ordinary resolution in an annual general
meeting or a special resolution of the
Company;

(i)  Notice of not less than 14 days in writing if
the Proposal requires approval in meeting
other than an annual general meeting or
approval by way of a special resolution of the
Company.

Enhancing corporate governance is not simply a matter
of applying and complying with the CG Code but about
promoting and developing an ethical and healthy
corporate culture. We will continue to review and, where
appropriate, improve our current practices on the basis
of our experience, regulatory changes and development.
Any views and suggestions from our Shareholders are
also welcome to enhance our transparency.

On behalf of the Board

Hong Tianzhu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 7 March 2019
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Mr. Hong Tianzhu, aged 51, is an executive Director
and chairman of the Group. He is the founder of the
Group. He is responsible for the strategic development
and strategic deployment, project investment and
decision-making for major issues, leadership and policy
decision-making for establishment of corporate culture of
the Group. Mr. Hong is currently an executive vice
chairman of the Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles
Limited. He has over 20 years of experience in the textile
industry. Prior to establishing the Group, Mr. Hong was a
vice general manager of & T # 2 R &K & E FR A A
(Jinjiang Yifeng Garment Weaving Company Limited).
Mr. Hong'’s interest in the shares of HK$0.10 each in the
share capital of the Company (“Shares”) is disclosed
under the paragraph headed “Report of the Directors —
Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions in the Shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations” in this annual report.

Mr. Zhu Yongxiang, aged 52, is an executive Director,
vice Chairman and chief executive officer of the Group.
He is responsible for the strategy implementation,
operational planning and decision-making, decision-
making for major issues and organizational
implementation of the Group. Mr. Zhu graduated from
the 738454 T 7 (Nantong Textile Industry College)
in 1987. Prior to joining the Group in 1997, Mr. Zhu was
an assistant to the general manager of m 3B — 124745
% (Nantong No. 2 Cotton Textile Factory). Mr. Zhu's
interest in the Shares of the Company is disclosed under
the paragraph headed “Report of the Directors —
Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short
positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated
corporations” in this annual report.

Mr. Tang Daoping, aged 53, is an executive Director
and chief operation officer of the Group. He is
responsible for the operation management of the Group.
Mr. Tang graduated from & /| f& #& & 18 KX 2 (Xuzhou
Radio and TV University) in 1996 majoring in accounting
and administrative management. Mr. Tang has over 30
years of experience in the textile industry. He was a
workshop manager of Fff % 1% 47 # & (Suining Cotton
Textile Factory) prior to joining the Group in 1998 as a
vice general manager. Mr. Tang was promoted and
became a director of Jiangsu Century Texhong in
September 2002. Mr. Tang'’s interest in the Shares of the
Company is disclosed under the paragraph headed
“Report of the Directors — Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
any associated corporations” in this annual report.
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Mr. Hui Tsz Wai, aged 45, is an executive Director and
company secretary. He is responsible for the
management of finance, information system and treasury
management of the Group. Mr. Hui graduated from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor of
business administration (honours) degree. He is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and a Certified Public Accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
is also a Chartered Financial Analyst and a Certified
Fraud Examiner. He has more than 20 years’ working
experience in finance related area. Prior to first joining
the Group in November 2004, Mr. Hui had been working
at one of the big four international accounting firms for
about nine years. Mr. Hui had been the company
secretary of the Company and the chief financial officer
of the Group. Mr. Hui’s interest in the Shares of the
Company is disclosed under the paragraph headed
“Report of the Directors — Directors’ and chief
executives’ interests and short positions in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or
any associated corporations” in this annual report.

Mr. Ji Zhongliang, aged 55, is an executive Director. He
is responsible for the operations management of the
Group’s garment fabric and garment business segment.
Mr. Ji graduated from Jiangsu College of Engineering
and Technology of the PRC (/T & T 2 Bt 2 5 iT £ %)
(formerly known as Nantong Textile Industry School (7
BHEE T EH)) in July 1982. Prior to joining the Group
in August 2015, he had been the vice president of Black
Peony (Group) Co. Ltd. (B#HF(S£B)BRHBRAF)
(stock code: 600510), the shares of which are listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange from December 2011 to
May 2015. He had been the general manager of
Chanzhou K&J Import and Export Co., Ltd. (F /SN #
i O & BR 2 &), which is principally engaged in import
and export of cotton and fabrics in the PRC from October
1997 to May 2011, the general manger of Black Peony
Group Import and Export Co., Ltd. (24 F £ E# 1 O
A R 2 A1), which is principally engaged in import and
export of textile, garments and daily necessities in the
PRC from May 2011 to December 2011, and the
chairman of the board of directors of Black Peony (HK)
Limited, which is principally engaged in manufacture of
denim in the PRC, from December 2011 to May 2015.
Mr. Ji has more than 30 years’ working experience in the
textile industry. Mr. Ji is a director of Texhong Dyeing
and Printing Technology Limited, a indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company.

HFREL 455 WITEEMARWE -
WERAKENE - EEEM BSHER
ARERENTEPNAR  BRIEHER
(BRE) BB - FREABFFORGED
REERGERBEGHMAGHESED o
IR RRFRT B TG 0 i B SR SRR B AR AD MR
B IS AE B I S 8 — A TAEASER T oL
ER_ZFTNFE+—-AERMBEAREEA
—ERHEP -ROKBEBRSAMITERO N
FoFEEBEARBRBME RAEEE
BEE - FEENKRRRNBRMNERERF
RIEFGHRE - ESNITRAERE QAR
EAARREE 2 Bty - BB RIEERE 2
wmloKkE ] —BRIEE -

TRARKE 555 BITES - RAELE
ENERERESESINEEEE - FhE
R—NAN—FLAZERTPRTIHRTERE
T2 (fiBmBas g TE£E8R) RN_FT
—REFENAMAAEER AT —F
+ AR RAFERAETLEEEARS
FrEmAr B (EE)BRHERAR (BRHD
R5E 0 600510) 2 @l#@% - B — Lt
F+RAE-_E——FRAETEMIRNEL
OERAE (ZAFEBEFERERRAR
EEOER) 2AKE . A-Z——FFHAE
T —F4+ - AETEHAERERDS
RAB (ZABEBEFREREHER KK
MEAREHOER) 2HEE: AT
—— F+-_RAE_ZE—FHERAEFEHT
(BB)ERAR (ZAREBEFRBRLEEST
MZEZSEE T LEESHBEZER
0FTIRER - HEREALRABEIEEE
MBARRIABREERAGZES -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 =Z—N\FF# 63



Professor Tao Xiaoming, aged 61, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 3 March 2014.
Professor Tao is an elected fellow of The Textile
Institute, the American Society of Mechanical Engineers,
the Royal Academy of Arts and Design and Commerce
of the United Kingdom, and has been the chair professor
in Textile Technology at the Institute of Textiles and
Clothing of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University since
April 2002. She was elected as the world president of
The Textile Institute for a tenure of three years from May
2007. Professor Tao received a bachelor’s degree in
textile engineering from China Textile University (7 B4
& K22 (currently known as Donghua University (SRZE A
£)) of the PRC in January 1982 and a doctorate degree
in textile physics from University of New South Wales in
August 1987. From September 1987 to September 1988
and from October 1990 to September 1994, she had
been a scientist of the Commonwealth Scientific and
Industrial Research Organisation of Australia. From
October 1988 to January 1990, she had been a lecturer
of Donghua University. Professor Tao was the recipient
of two prestigious individual awards of the field: the
honorary fellowship by The Textile Institute in November
2010 and the founder award of the Fiber Society of the
United States in November 2013. With seven academic
monographs, over 800 research papers published and
over 30 patents granted, she has been internationally
recognised in particular for her pioneering work on smart
textiles and clothing and textile engineering such as low-
twist yarns, solospun yarns and fabric sensing
technology which have been widely applied in the textile
industry.

Professor Cheng Longdi, aged 59, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 21 November
2004. Professor Cheng obtained his doctorate degree in
textile engineering from Donghua University in 2002. He
is currently a professor (2nd grade) in College of Textiles
and a deputy director of the Key Laboratory of Textile
Science and Technology of Donghua University.
Professor Cheng is a member of the expert committee of
each of the following institutions: the China Cotton
Textile Association of New Technology (as a deputy
director), the China Knitting Industrial Association, the
China Bast And Leaf Fibers Textile Association and the
China Textile Machinery Association. Professor Cheng
was an engineer of the China Textile Academy (formerly
known as Textile Academy of Textile Ministry). Professor
Cheng is currently an independent director of Jiangsu
Lianfa Textile Co., Ltd. (stock code: 002394) which is a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and
Hengli Petrochemical Co., Ltd. (stock code: 600346) as
well as Zhejiang Taihua New Material Co., Ltd (stock
code: 603055) which are companies listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, MH, FCCA, FCPA
(PRACTISING), ACA, CTA (HK), FHKIoD, aged 65, was
appointed as independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 21 November 2004. Mr. Ting is an
accountant in public practice and has more than 30
years’ experience in this field. Currently he is a partner
and director of Messrs Ting Ho Kwan & Chan, Certified
Public Accountants (Practising) and Ting Ho Kwan &
Chan CPA Limited respectively. He is currently an
independent non-executive director of six other listed
companies in Hong Kong, namely China SCE Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 01966), Computer and
Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 00046),
Dongyue Group Limited (stock code: 00189), New
Silkroad Culturaltainment Limited (stock code: 00472),
Tong Ren Tang Technologies Company Limited (stock
code: 01666) and Tongda Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 00698) respectively. He is also a non-executive
director of Chow Sang Sang Holdings International
Limited (stock code: 00116).

Mr. Sha Tao, aged 53, is a vice president of the Group
and director of our grey fabric production and
management center. Mr. Sha obtained his bachelor’s
degree in textile from & # & T %¥ £ P (Wuxi Light
Industry University) in 1986. Mr. Sha has over 27 years
of experience in the textile industry. Prior to joining the
Group in 1998, he was a factory manager of one of the
factories of 7 i@ 25 — 18 47 4 & (Nantong No. 2 Cotton
Textile Factory).

Mr. Hu Zhiping, aged 55, is a vice president of the
Group and general manager of Taizhou business
segment. Mr. Hu graduated from #E £5 Bt % X B2 (Wuxi
Professional University) in textile in 1984. Mr. Hu has
over 27 years of experience in the textile industry. He
was a vice general manager of #8517 Z 44 15 G R A 7]
(Wuxi Xieda Weaving Company Limited) prior to joining
the Group in 1998.

Mr. Cao Youchang, aged 50, is a vice president of the
Group and director of the yarn production and
management center of the Group. He is responsible for
the yarn production of the Group. Mr. Cao graduated
from F93@4H 4% T 2P (Nantong Textile Industry College)
with a bachelor’s degree in textile engineering in 1994.
Mr. Cao has over 22 years of experience in the textile
industry. He joined the Group in 2000, and served as the
director of yarn technology of the Group.
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Mr. Hong Tianzhu (Chairman)

Mr. Zhu Yongxiang (Vice chairman and
chief executive officer)

Mr. Tang Daoping

Mr. Hui Tsz Wai

Mr. Ji Zhongliang

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA
(PRACTISING), ACA, FTIHK, FHKIoD (Chairman)

Professor Tao Xiaoming

Professor Cheng Longdi

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA
(PRACTISING), ACA, FTIHK, FHKIoD (Chairman)

Mr. Hong Tianzhu

Professor Tao Xiaoming

Professor Cheng Longdi

Mr. Hong Tianzhu (Chairman)

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen MH, FCCA, FCPA
(PRACTISING), ACA, FTIHK, FHKIoD

Professor Tao Xiaoming

Professor Cheng Longdi

Mr. Hui Tsz Wai

Mr. Hong Tianzhu
Mr. Hui Tsz Wai

Unit 18, 7th Floor
Lippo Sun Plaza
28 Canton Road
Tsimshatsui
Hong Kong

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands
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The Board of Directors of the Company is pleased to
submit their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2018.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of yarns, grey fabrics and garment fabrics as well as
garments. The principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 39 to the
accompanying financial statements.

The Group is engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
yarns, grey fabrics and garment fabrics as well as
garments. Business analysis of sales, segment results,
total assets and capital expenditure are set out in note 5
to the accompanying financial statements.

The Group operates in four main geographical areas, the
PRC, Vietnam, Cambodia and Macao. Geographical
analysis of sales, segment results, total assets, and
capital expenditure are set out in note 5 to the
accompanying financial statements.

For details of business review in relation to the
development, performance or position of the Company’s
business, please refer to the section headed
“‘Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report.

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
rules and regulations and the impact of non-compliance
of such rules and regulations on the business. During the
year ended 31 December 2018, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, the Group has complied with all the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group in relation to its business including
health and safety, workplace conditions, employment
and the environment.

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to
maintaining the highest environmental and social
standards to ensure sustainable development of its
business. The Group understands that a better future
depends on everyone’s participation and contribution. It
has encouraged all employees to participate in
environmental and social activities which benefit the
community as a whole.
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As a result of the Group’s active engagement in the
enhancement of management measures and technology
improvement, the Group incurred less unit electricity
consumption and expenses in production as compared
to that of last year. The Group also advocated
conservation of resources in office and encouraged
employees to develop good habits, conserve resources
and energy to build a green and comfortable office
environment.

Details of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report of the Group are set out on pages 90 to 125 of
this annual report.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 135 of this annual report.

The board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.2 per share in respect of the financial year
ended 31 December 2018.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in
note 17 to the accompanying financial statements.

Details of the movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in note 7 to the
accompanying financial statements.

Details of the movements in share capital of the
Company are set out in note 15 to the accompanying
financial statements.

The Company’s distributable reserves as at 31
December 2018 is set out in note 37 to the
accompanying financial statements.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association and the laws of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to
offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to its existing
shareholders.
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The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption
available to the shareholders of the Company by reason
of their holding of the Company’s securities.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 2 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed below, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2018.

The Share Option Scheme was adopted by the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general
meeting on 7 April 2014 (the “Adoption Date”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Group to grant options to selected participants as
incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group.
All directors, employees, suppliers of goods or services,
customers, persons or entities that provide research,
development or other technological support to the Group,
shareholders of any member of the Group, advisers or
consultants of the Group and any other group or classes
of participants who have contributed or may contribute
by way of joint venture, business alliance or other
business arrangement and growth of the Group are
eligible to participate in the Share Option Scheme.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years after the Adoption Date.

The total number of Shares which may be allotted and
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme adopted by the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 88,468,117 Shares, representing 10% of the
Shares in issue on the Adoption Date and 9.67% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report
respectively (the “General Scheme Limit”). The Company
may renew the General Scheme Limit with shareholders’
approval provided that each such renewal may not
exceed 10% of the Shares in the Company in issue as at
the date of the shareholders’ approval.
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The maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme adopted by the Group must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from
time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the
total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the
Group (including both exercised or outstanding options)
to each participant in any 12-months period shall not
exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company
for the time being (the “Individual Limit”).

An option may be accepted by a participant within 21
days from the date of the offer of grant of the option. A
nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance
of the grant of an option.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a
period to be determined and notified by the Directors to
each grantee, which period may commence on a day
after the date upon which the offer for the grant of
options is made but shall end in any event not later than

10 years from the date of grant of the option, subject to
the provisions for early termination thereof. Unless
otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the
offer of the grant of options to a grantee, there is no
minimum period required under the Share Option
Scheme for the holding of an option before it can be
exercised.

The subscription price for the Shares under the Share
Option Scheme will be a price determined by the
Directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the
offer of grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the
average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of the Shares.
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Movements of the share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31
December 2018 are summarised as follows and details
of which are set out in note 16 to the consolidated

financial statements:

List of
grantees

RRALE

Directors

£

Mr. Tang Daoping
AETEE

Mr. Hui Tsz Wai
i

Total
&t

Note: The vesting period of the share options is from the date

Date of grant (Note)

Rt AR (i)

23 March 2015
“3-RF=A=f=R

23 March 2015
—3-RF=A=1=R

23 March 2015
“E-RFZAZtZH

23 March 2015
“E-RF-A-1=A

23 March 2015
“E-RF-A-1zA

23 March 2015
Z2-RF=Azt=H

28 December 2015
Z2-REFZAZTNA

28 December 2015
Z2-REFZAZTNA

28 December 2015
Z2-REFZAZTNA

28 December 2015
Z2-1FtZAZTAR

28 December 2015
“E-REtCACTAR

Exercise period

fifes

1 January 2016 to 22 March 2025
ZZ-RE-A-EE
ZECREZAZTIA

1 January 2018 to 22 March 2025
—Z-\§-A-EZ
ECREZACTIR

1 January 2016 to 22 March 2025

1 January 2017 to 27 December 2025

“E-tF-A-RE
SRIRETIACTER

1 January 2018 to 27 December 2025

—2-\f-f-BZ
“RIRETIACTHR

1 January 2019 to 27 December 2025

“2-NF-A-BE
ZECRETCACTAR

1 January 2020 to 27 December 2025

CRCTE-A-RE
ZRCRETACTEA

1 January 2021 to 27 December 2025

“E-F-A-RE

Closing price
per Share
immediately
before the
date of grant
RERY
BEH SR
LG

HKS

AR

8.21

8.21

8.21

8.21

8.21

8.21

5.84

584

584

584

584

REBE-ZT—N\F+-_A=+—BILFE "
RIBBREAS RO BREZESH 2R
s FHIEERN R A M RRM 16

Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding
Exercise asat
price per 1 January
share 2018
RZB-NF
-A-8
SRITEE A
HKS
A
8.70 670,000
8.70 670,000
8.70 660,000
2,000,000
8.70 1,000,000
8.70 1,000,000
8.70 1,000,000
510 300,000
510 300,000
510 300,000
510 300,000
510 300,000
4,500,000
6,500,000

of grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

Outstanding

Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled asat
during during during during 31 December
the year the year the year the year 2018
R-2-NE

tZB=t-A

REARE  REATE  REARRR  REREE AT

- - - - 670,000

- - - - 670,000

- - - - 660,000

- - - - 2,000,000

- - - - 1,000,000

- - - - 1,000,000

- - - - 1,000,000

- - - - 300,000

- - - - 300,000

- - - - 300,000

- - - - 300,000

- - - - 300,000

- - - - 4,500,000

- - - - 6,500,000

v B RERhEL A REETREEN
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The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2018
and up to the date of this report were:

Mr. Hong Tianzhu

Mr. Zhu Yongxiang

Mr. Tang Daoping

Mr. Hui Tsz Wai

Mr. Ji Zhongliang

Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen*
Professor Cheng Longdi*
Professor Tao Xiaoming*

*

Independent non-executive Directors

In accordance with articles 108(A) and 108(B) of the
articles of association of the Company, Mr. Tang
Daoping, Mr. Ji Zhongliang and Prof. Cheng Langdi will
retire from office by rotation and they, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

Each of Mr. Hong Tianzhu, Mr. Zhu Yongxiang and Mr.
Tang Daoping, all being executive Directors, has entered
into a service contract with the Company for an initial
term of one year commencing from 21 November 2015,
and will continue thereafter for successive terms of one
year until terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other
expiring at the end of the initial term or at any time
thereafter. Mr. Hui Tsz Wai and Mr. Ji Zhongliang, both
being executive Directors, has entered into a service
contract with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing from their respective dates of
appointment as an executive Director, and will continue
thereafter for successive term of one year until
terminated by not less than three month’s notice in
writing served by either party on the other expiring at the
end of the initial term or at any time thereafter.

Each of Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen, Professor Tao
Xiaoming and Professor Cheng Longdi, all being
independent non-executive directors, has been
appointed for an initial term of one year commencing
from their respective dates of appointment as an INED
renewable automatically for a successive term of one
year each commencing from the next day after the expiry
of the then current term, unless terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing at the end of the
initial term or at any time thereafter.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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The service contracts entered into by the Company with
each of the Directors, which are currently in force and
were in force during the year ended 31 December 2018,
contain indemnity provisions which are permitted
indemnity provisions under the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) subject to the
limitations specified in sections 468 and 469 thereof, for
the benefit of the executive Directors. Pursuant to such
provisions, the Company shall indemnify and hold
harmless any Directors on demand from and against any
and all losses, claims, damages, liabilities, and
expenses, including without limitation, any proceedings
brought against such Directors, arising from the
performance of his duties pursuant to or his appointment
under the service contracts, so far as permitted by law,
except in any case where the matter in respect of which
indemnification is sought was caused by the default,
neglect, omission or fraud of the executive Directors.
The Company has also taken out and maintained
appropriate insurance cover to indemnify the Directors
for liabilities that may arise out of corporate activities.
The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
During the year ended 31 December 2018, no claims
were made against the Directors.

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors confirmation of his
independence and the Company considers that each of
them to be independent based on the guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Details of the emoluments of the Directors on a named
basis during the year under review are set out in note 38
to the accompanying financial statements.

Details of the five highest paid individuals during the year
ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 27 to the
accompanying financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
remuneration of the senior management by band is set
out as follows:

Remuneration bands

s E

Below RMB1,000,000
RMB1,000,001 to RMB2,000,000
RMB2,000,001 to RMB3,000,000
RMB3,000,001 to RMB4,000,000
RMB4,000,001 to RMB5,000,000

Remuneration policy of the Group is reviewed regularly,
making reference to the legal framework, market
condition and performance of the Group and individual
staff including the Directors). The remuneration policy
and remuneration packages of the executive Directors
and the senior management of the Group are reviewed
by the Remuneration Committee, which are contained in
the paragraph headed “Remuneration Committee” under
the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of
this annual report.

Particulars of the Group’s retirement benefit schemes
are set out in note 27 to the accompanying financial
statements.

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior
management as at the date of this annual report are set
out on pages 62 to 65 of this annual report.

AR® 1,000,000 TAT

A 1,000,001 7E 2 A K% 2,000,000 7T 1
AE2,000,001 7L A K 3,000,000 7T 1
A 3,000,001 7T E A K% 4,000,000 7T 0
A% 4,000,001 7T E A K# 5,000,000 7T 0
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As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short
positions of each Director and chief executive of the
Company in the Shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the
laws of Hong Kong (the “SFQ”)), as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and

the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code

contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Name of directors
of the Company
EARNESHE

Mr. Hong Tianzhu
HRREE

Mr. Zhu Yongxiang
RAKFERE

Mr. Tang Daoping
BB RE

Mr. Hui Tsz Wai
HFELE

Name of

Group member/
associated
corporation
REBMEERF
LB EE

the Company
ART
the Company
VNS
the Company

Z NG

the Company
PA/NE]

the Company
Pi/NE]

Nature of
interest

BN

Interest of controlled
corporation(s)

g oY 5

Beneficial owner

EREEA
Interest of spouse

fcEgs

Beneficial owner

EalEEA

Beneficial owner
EnBEAA
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Number of
ordinary
shares
(Note 1)
EEREA
(HtiF1)

544,742,400(L)
(Note 2)
(Htit2)

5,400,000(L)

219,900,000(L)
(Note 3)
(Ht:#3)

2,580,000(L)
(Note 4)
(fizt4)

4,500,000(L)
(Note 5)
(Hizts)

RZEBE—-NE+_A=+—0 AQF&E
ERTRAHEAA DR REABEE (EER
EBEPIESTMEEFRBEGRA(ESRR
HEKRO]) EXVED) 2% - HBRERG kE
EER B IRE AL E 053521 -
BHERARAAFTHFEZECLMAZERR
KB HRE ETARREHAIZEST AR E
BUAEM TN BIAARR T MR 2SR
KRBT ¢

Percentage
Aok

59.53%

0.59%

24.03%

0.28%

0.49%



Notes:

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the
Shares.

Among these 544,742,400 Shares, as to 392,842,400
Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by New Green Group Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which is beneficially owned by Texhong
Group Holdings Limited, a company wholly owned by Mr.
Hong Tianzhu and as to 151,900,000 Shares are
registered in the name of and beneficially owned by
Trade Partner Investments Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which is beneficially owned as to 57.44%
by Mr. Hong Tianzhu through New Green Group Limited.
Under the SFO, Mr. Hong Tianzhu is deemed to be
interested in all the Shares held by New Green Group
Limited and Trade Partner Investments Limited. Mr. Hong
Tianzhu is a director of Texhong Group Holdings Limited,
New Green Group Limited and Trade Partner Investments
Limited.

Among these 219,900,000 Shares, as to 68,000,000
Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Wisdom Grace Investments Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by Ms.
Zhao Zhiyang and as to 151,900,000 Shares are
registered in the name of and beneficially owned by
Trade Partner Investments Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which is beneficially owned as to 42.56%
by Ms. Zhao Zhiyang through Wisdom Grace Investments
Limited. Mr. Zhu Yongxiang is the spouse of Ms. Zhao
Zhiyang. Under the SFO, Mr. Zhu Yongxiang is deemed
to be interested in the same number of shares in which
Ms. Zhao Zhiyang is interested. Mr. Zhu Yongxiang is a
director of Wisdom Grace Investments Limited and Trade
Partner Investments Limited.

These interests includes 2,000,000 share options granted
to Mr. Tang Daoping pursuant to the share option scheme
of the Company.

These interests represent share options granted to Mr.
Hui Tsz Wai pursuant to the share option scheme of the
Company.
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% % 544,742,400 (& % 17 h 392,842,400 % LA New
Green Group Limited (New Green Group Limited &
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BEmih AR EEERHEEE 100% %)
BERIER/RERER AEE 151,900,000 A% SA
Trade Partner Investments Limited
(AR5 £ 35 B New Green Group Limited &
A AT EITRNAIE7.44% ) BE
RIERBE=REER ANER © RIBFH REE &G -

HERA S A 143 A H New Green Group Limited
X Trade Partner Investments Limited 54 2 F
ARG E o XL AL B Texhong
Group Holdings Limited * New Green Group
Limited % Trade Partner Investments Limited 2
EE-o

#% %219,900,000 % A% 17 A 68,000,000 8% LA
Wisdom Grace Investments Limited (£ 2 2 2
BITRAHMEBR T ESEE) BRERIEATE
A ABRE ¢ 151,900,000 A% A Trade Partner
Investments Limited (8 %% 2 + i i#8 Wisdom
Grace Investments Limited Bz A £ 230
BITIRNE42.56% ) R RIERERER
ABR e RKFRERABEEBL T Z0REB - 1R
BESLEEGRD - ROKEEERTEANEE
B tthB#E RSB RDFIEEER
& ok # % 4% BWisdom Grace Investments
Limited X Trade Partner Investments Limited 2.
EBEo

HZERDBEREBEARABRETIETSE
% A 92,000,000 17 B AR AEE ©
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So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December
2018, the interests or short position of the persons other
than a Director or chief executive of the Company in the
Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

MEEFRME RZE-N\E+-A=+—
B RARBSKEMEEERD - BEERGD
S EHEE T HERIEE S LY EIEH$336
BN ARRBETFHEEZE DAz R
FKAWA T (ERAF 2 EERITHARE
AN AR

Ordinary Shares of the Company:

Name of the
substantial shareholders

TERRHEEB

New Green Group Limited

Trade Partner Investments Limited

Wisdom Grace Investments Limited

Texhong Group Holdings Limited

Ms. Ke Luping
AR 22 £

Ms. Zhao Zhiyang
HEEHLL

Mr. Hui Ching Lau
FRAEmMEE

Event Star Limited

RRTEZ @K
Number of
ordinary
shares
Nature of (Note 1)
interests ZEREAR Percentage
EEME (Mt 1) BAL
Beneficial owner 392,842,400 (L) 42.93%
EmEa A (Note 2)
(Miz2)
Interest of controlled 151,900,000 (L) 16.60%
corporation(s) (Note 3)
PRIz GE AR (Btat3)
Beneficial owner 151,900,000 (L) 16.60%
EnEBA (Note 3)
(M7 3)
Beneficial owner 68,000,000 (L) 7.43%
EnEBA (Note 4)
(Kfzt4)
Interest of controlled 151,900,000 (L) 16.60%
corporation(s) (Note 3)
PRIEHE AR R (Btat3)
Interest of controlled 544,742,400 (L) 59.53%
corporation(s) (Notes 2 and 3)
P dlE AR (Mfat23)
Interest of spouse 550,142,400 (L) 60.12%
[N (Note 5)
(Mits)
Interest of controlled 219,900,000 (L) 24.03%
corporation(s) (Note 6)
FRiZEHIE AR (Mite)
Interest of controlled 55,058,000 (L) 6.02%
corporation(s) (Note 7)
FrizEtE AR (Btat7)
Beneficial owner 55,058,000 (L) 6.02%
Emla A (Note 7)
(Mt 7)
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Notes:

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the
Shares.

These 392,842,400 Shares are registered in the name of
and beneficially owned by New Green Group Limited, the
entire issued share capital of which is beneficially owned
by Texhong Group Holdings Limited, a company wholly
beneficially owned by Mr. Hong Tianzhu. Under the SFO,
each of Texhong Group Holdings Limited and Mr. Hong
Tianzhu is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held
by New Green Group Limited.

These 151,900,000 Shares are registered in the name of
and beneficially owned by Trade Partner Investments
Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is
beneficially owned as to 57.44% by Mr. Hong Tianzhu
through New Green Group Limited and 42.56% by Ms.
Zhao Zhiyang through Wisdom Grace Investments
Limited. Under the SFO, each of Mr. Hong Tianzhu, Ms.
Zhao Zhiyang, New Green Group Limited and Wisdom
Grace Investments Limited is deemed to be interested in
all the Shares held by Trade Partner Investments Limited.

These 68,000,000 Shares are registered in the name of
and beneficially owned by Wisdom Grace Investments
Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is
beneficially owned by Ms. Zhao Zhiyang. Under the SFO,
Ms. Zhao Zhiyang is deemed to be interested in all the
Shares held by Wisdom Grace Investments Limited.

Ms. Ke Luping is the spouse of Mr. Hong Tianzhu. Under
the SFO, Ms. Ke Luping is deemed to be interested in the
same number of Shares in which Mr. Hong Tianzhu is
interested.

Among these 219,900,000 Shares, as to 68,000,000
Shares are registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Wisdom Grace Investments Limited, the entire
issued share capital of which is beneficially owned by Ms.
Zhao Zhiyang and as to 151,900,000 Shares are
registered in the name of and beneficially owned by
Trade Partner Investments Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which is beneficially owned as to 42.56%
by Ms. Zhao Zhiyang through Wisdom Grace Investments
Limited.

These 55,058,000 Shares are registered in the name of
and beneficially owned by Event Star Limited, a company
which is 100% controlled by Mr. Hui Ching Lau. Under
the SFO, Mr. Hui Ching Lau is deemed to be interested in
all the Shares held by Event Star Limited.
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Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share
Options” above, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2018 was the Company, its holding company
or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements which
enabled the Directors (including their spouses or children
under 18 years of age), to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of Shares in or debenture of the Company or
any other body corporate.

Save as disclosed in the related party transactions as set
out in note 36 of the financial statements and in the
section headed “Connected transactions” in this annual
report, no Director nor an entity connected with such
director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party,
subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Save as disclosed in the related party transactions as set
out in note 36 of the financial statements and in the
section headed “Connected transactions” in this annual
report, no contract of significance has been entered into
between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the
controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company which were not contracts of
service with any Director or any person engaged in full
time employment of the Company were entered into or
subsisted during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
percentages of purchases and sales attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases
— the largest supplier 19.5%
— five largest suppliers combined 34.8%
Sales
— the largest customer 4.8%
— five largest customers combined 12.3%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
an interest in the major suppliers or customers of the
Group noted above.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
has conducted the following continuing connected
transactions which were required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 14A.71 of the Listing Rules:

Reference is made to (i) the announcement of the
Company dated 23 May 2017 in relation to the supply of
utilities and wastewater treatment services by Texhong
Industrial Park Vietnam Limited to each of Texhong
Galaxy Technology Limited (“Texhong Galaxy”) for its
uses on the Texhong Galaxy Land (as defined below)
and Texhong Dyeing And Printing Vietnam Limited
(“Texhong Dyeing”) for its uses on the Texhong Dyeing
Land (as defined below); and (ii) the announcement of
the Company dated 20 October 2017 in relation to
supply of gas by Texhong Industrial Park to Texhong
Dyeing Land.

On 23 May 2017, Texhong Galaxy, as customer, had
entered into the following agreements with Texhong
Industrial Park, as supplier, for its uses on two parcels of
industrial land located at Texhong Industrial Park, Hai Ha
District, Quang Ninh Province, Vietnam with a site area
of approximately 225,000 square metres and 215,000
square metres, respectively, and the infrastructure
erected thereon (“Texhong Galaxy Land”):

1. the power master supply agreement in relation to
the provision and supply of electricity (“Texhong
Galaxy Power Master Supply Agreement”);

2.  the steam master supply agreement in relation to
the provision and supply of steam (“Texhong
Galaxy Steam Master Supply Agreement”);

3. the wastewater treatment service agreement in
relation to the provision and supply of wastewater
treatment service (“Texhong Galaxy Wastewater
Treatment Service Agreement”); and

4. the water master supply agreement in relation to
the provision and supply of water (“Texhong
Galaxy Water Master Supply Agreement”)

(collectively, “Texhong Galaxy Agreements”)

RBE-_Z-NFt+= A= T—RIEFE-

AEBBETUTHERERS  AREL
TIREIE 14A17 EHRE -
ZRMOARBDBESHA-_T—+EAHA

ZT=R2ZAM ARBBERIL T EERE
MARRAR A RIRRIL IR ABR AT (R

UTSRJAT ) RUTERAT R (TR T ) K
FIT LB ETERD R ([RILREE ) R
B (TER T30 HEKEREHEGKE
BRE RV AATBRHA-_ZT—+E+A
ZHBEZAM RBRBBARIL T EREMR XTI
FREMIBEEAR o

R-ZE—+FHRA-+=H  RUFA(EA
ER)ERITHE(EAHER) LEFERA
RUEEEEEVEXT T EEREMARE
&9 B4 /225,000 F 75 K % 215,000 F 75 2K
ZTERAMURE FATEERE ([ R
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On 23 May 2017, Texhong Dyeing, as customer, had
entered into the following agreements with Texhong
Industrial Park, as supplier, for its uses on the a parcel of
industrial land located at Texhong Industrial Park, Hai Ha
District, Quang Ninh Province, Vietnam with a site area
of approximately 123,228 square metres and the
infrastructure erected thereon (“Texhong Dyeing Land”):

1. the power master supply agreement in relation to
the provision and supply of electricity (“Texhong
Dyeing Power Master Supply Agreement”);

2.  the steam master supply agreement in relation to
the provision and supply of steam (“Texhong
Dyeing Steam Master Supply Agreement”);

3. the wastewater treatment service agreement in
relation to the provision and supply of wastewater
treatment service (“Texhong Dyeing Wastewater
Treatment Service Agreement”); and

4. the water master supply agreement in relation to
the provision and supply of water (“Texhong
Dyeing Water Master Supply Agreement”)

(collectively, “Texhong Dyeing Agreements”)

On 20 October 2017, Texhong Dyeing, as customer, had
entered into a gas supply agreement with Texhong
Industrial Park as supplier, for its uses on the Texhong
Dyeing Land in relation the provision and supply of
liquefied petroleum gas (“Gas Supply Agreement”).

As it is anticipated that there will be additional usage, the
annual caps under the Texhong Dyeing Agreements and
the Texhong Galaxy Agreements are revised. Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 19
June 2018 for further details.

The tables below set out the actual transaction amount
for the year ended 31 December 2017 and for the year
ending 31 December 2018, the existing annual caps and
the revised annual caps for each of the Texhong Dyeing
Agreements, Texhong Galaxy Agreements and Gas
Supply Agreement.
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Texhong Dyeing Power Master Supply Agreement

RAFEEEAHH

Texhong Dyeing Water Master Supply Agreement

PRS2y Y

Texhong Dyeing Steam Master Supply Agreement

RAPBE SRR

Texhong Dyeing Wastewater Treatment

Service Agreement

RRBFKEE R

Gas Supply Agreement
ARG ek

Actual transaction amount
ERR 528

Existing annual caps

REFELR

Revised annual caps
BEITFE LR

Actual transaction amount
ERR 5%

Existing annual caps

REFELR

Revised annual caps
BEIIEE LR

Actual transaction amount
ERRS5e8

Existing annual caps

REFELR

Revised annual caps
BETFEELR

Actual transaction amount
ERR 528

Existing annual caps

BAEFELR

Revised annual caps
BEIEE LR

Actual transaction amount
ERR 528

Existing annual caps

REFELR

Revised annual caps
BETFELR

For the year

ended

31 December
2017
BZE-_Z—tf
+=ZA=+—-H
LEE

RMB1,247,000
ARHE1,247,0007T

Not applicable
TEH

Not applicable
TEH

RMB260,000
AE#260,0007T

Not applicable
ik

Not applicable
NiEm

RMB1,728,000
AER# 1,728,000 7T

Not applicable
NEA

Not applicable
ik

RMB116,000
A 116,000 7

Not applicable
il
Not applicable
TEH

No transaction
TERS

Not applicable
NEm

Not applicable
@A

For the year
ended

31 December
2018
BE-E-N\%
+=A=+-H
LEE

RMB3,874,000
AR 3,874,000

RMB19.4 million
AR #19,400,000 7T

Not applicable
TEH

RMB1,446,000
AR 1,446,000 T

RMB2.0 million
AR 2,000,00070

Not applicable
TEA

RMB11,166,000
AE# 11,166,000 7T

RMB20.0 million
A 20,000,000 7T

Not applicable
il

RMB1,991,000
AR#1,991,0007T

RMB299,250
AER#299,250 7T

RMB2.6 million
AE%2,600,00070

RMB1,434,000
AR 1,434,000

RMB950,000
AR# 950,000 7T

RMB2.0 million
AR 2,000,00070
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Texhong Galaxy Power Master Supply Agreement

RFARERHE ERRSeE

Existing annual caps

REFELR

Revised annual caps

BEITFEE LR
Texhong Galaxy Water Master Supply Agreement

RAFALKETHE ERRSeE

Existing annual caps

REFELR

Revised annual caps

BEIFEE LR
Texhong Galaxy Steam Master Supply Agreement

RAFA R TR B 3% ERRSeE

Existing annual caps
REFELR
Revised annual caps
RETFELR

Texhong Galaxy Wastewater Treatment
Service Agreement
RIS 57K ERIE R 5 hp

ERRFEH

Existing annual caps
REFELR

Revised annual caps
BETFE LR

Texhong Industrial Park is a connected person of the
Company by virtue of its being an associate of Mr. Hong
Tianzhu, the chairman of the Company and an executive
Director. Therefore, the transactions contemplated under
the Texhong Dyeing Agreements, the Texhong Galaxy
Agreements and the Gas Supply Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have, for the
purpose of Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed and
confirmed that the aforementioned continuing connected
transactions undertaken by the Group were entered into (i)
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(ii) either on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii) in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a
whole. PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditors of the
Company, has issued a letter to the Company to confirm
the matters stated in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.
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Actual transaction amount

Actual transaction amount
pe

Actual transaction amount

Actual transaction amount

For the year For the year
ended ended

31 December 31 December
2017 2018
BE-Z-+F BE-2-N\F
t=B=+-AH t=A=t+-H
LLFE LEE
RMB77,804,000 RMB99,893,000
ARH#77,804,000r  ARH99,893,0007T
Not applicable . RMB248 million
TER AR 248,000,000 T

Not applicable Not applicable
MiEr MiEm
RMB123,000 RMB876,000
AR™123,0007C AR 876,000 7T
Not applicable RMB380,000
TEH AR 380,0007T

Not applicable RMB880,000
MiEr AR 880,000 7T

RMB1.5 million RMB6.9 million
AR 1,500,0007C AR 6,900,000 7T
Not applicable RMB4.0 million
TEH AR 4,000,0007T

Not applicable RMB8.3 million
TEA  AK%8,300,0007T
RMB103,000 RMB1,593,000
AR#103,0007T AR 1,593,000 7T
Not applicable RMB283,000
NEm AR 283,0007T

Not applicable RMB1.6 million
TEA  AK%1,600,0007C
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On 7 December 2018 (after trading hours), the
Company as the purchaser entered into a sale and
purchase agreement (“S&P Agreement’) dated 7
December 2018 with the guarantors and Winnitex
Group Limited and Winnitex China Holdings
Limited as the vendors (the “Vendors”) in relation
to the sale and purchase of the entire issued share
capital Winnitex Holdings Limited, Winnitex Limited
and I B X% 4% 0 2 B R 2 7] (Zhejiang Qing
Mao Weaving, Dyeing, Printing Co., Ltd.) (“Target
Group”) for an aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$1.35 billion. The Target Group
is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of woven textile fabrics in the PRC and Hong Kong.

The aggregate consideration was approximately
HK$1.35 billion which shall be payable by the
Company in the following manner:

(1) 20.0% of the consideration (equivalent to
approximately HK$269.46 million) shall be
paid to the Vendors as deposit upon signing
of the S&P Agreement;

(2) 75.0% of the consideration (equivalent to
approximately HK$1.01 billion) shall be paid
to the Vendors on the completion date;

(3) 5.0% of the consideration shall be withheld by
the Company and paid to the Vendors after
the completion date after deduction (if any).

The consideration was determined after arm’s length
negotiation between the Company and the Vendors
on normal commercial terms principally with
reference to the total assets of the Target Group
less all liabilities of the Target Group as shown on
the combined pro forma financial statements of the
Target Group as at 30 September 2018, plus an
agreed premium attributable to the intangible brand
value of the Target Group.

As the applicable percentage ratios in respect of
the transaction contemplated under the S&P
Agreement are more than 5% but all applicable
percentage ratios are below 25%, the entering into
of the S&P Agreement constitutes a discloseable
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of
the Listing Rules.

Further details of the S&P Agreement is set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 10
December 2018.
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On 7 December 2018 (after trading hours),
Texhong Winnitex Holdings Limited (“Texhong
Winnitex”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company and the Mr. Wai Chi Kwok, Jacob and
Mr. Wai Chi Wah, Nelson as the subscribers (the
“Subscribers”) entered into the the subscription
agreement dated 7 December 2018 (“Subscription
Agreement”), pursuant to which Texhong Winnitex
has agreed to allot and issue, and the Subscribers
have agreed to subscribe for the subscription
shares at the subscription price calculated using
the following below. The subscription shares
represent 20% of the total number of shares of
Texhong Winnitex in issue upon Subscription
Completion (as enlarged by the allotment and issue
of the subscription shares) (“Subscription Shares”).

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, a
reorganisation shall take place, upon which
Texhong Winnitex shall become the holding
company of the Target Group, weaving and dyeing
operations in Nicaragua owned and controlled by
Texhong Winnitex Americas Limited (“Texhong
Americas”) and weaving and dyeing operations in
Vietnam owned and controlled by Merit Horizon
International Limited (“Merit Horizon”).

Upon the completion of the subscription, Texhong
Winnitex will cease to be a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, but will remain as a
subsidiary of the Company and the financial
information of Texhong Winnitex and its
subsidiaries will be consolidated to the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

The subscription price shall be determined based
on the formula set out below (“Subscription Price”):

Subscription Price = (A + B1 + B2) x (1/0.8-1)
A = total consideration of the S&P Agreement

B1 = the pro forma combined net asset value of
Merit Horizon as at the date of the completion
of the subscription if the reorganisation has
been completed or if the reorganisation has
not been completed, the relevant payment
dates (“Subscription Completion Accounts
Date”)

B2 = the consolidated net asset value of Texhong

Americas as at the Subscription Completion
Accounts Date

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE
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The Subscription Price was determined after arm’s
length negotiation between the Company and the
Subscribers on normal commercial terms
principally with reference to the total consideration
of the S&P Agreement plus the consolidated or pro
forma combined net asset value of Merit Horizon
and Texhong Americas.

The subscription constitutes a deemed disposal by
the Company under Rule 14.29 of the Listing
Rules. As one or more of the applicable percentage
ratios for the subscription under Rule 14.07 of the
Listing Rules are more than 5% but all applicable
percentage ratios are below 25%, the subscription
by the Subscribers constitutes a discloseable
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14 of
the Listing Rules.

Further details of the Subscription Agreement are
set out in the announcement of the Company dated
10 December 2018.

Save as disclosed above, there was no material
acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries or associated
companies by the Company during the financial year
ended 31 December 2018.

Pursuant to a term sheet dated 7 December 2018
and entered into between the Company, the
Subscribers and Texhong Winnitex regulating the
joint investment and management of Texhong
Winnitex and the rights and obligations for each
parties (“JV Term Sheet”), the Company granted a
put option to the Subscribers so that each of the
subscribers may request the Company to purchase
his shares in Texhong winnitex (“Put Option”). The
Put Option is exercisable by the Subscribers in
their sole discretion at any time after the
occurrence of an event of default on the part of the
Company or at any time after the fourth anniversary
of the completion of the subscription.

Pursuant to Rule 14.76(1) of the Listing Rules, as
the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the
grant of the Put Option are more than 5% but all
applicable percentage ratios below 25%, the Put
Option constitutes a discloseable transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

Further details of the JV Term Sheet and the Put
Option are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 10 December 2018.
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Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report, there was sufficient prescribed public float of the
issued shares of the Company under the Listing Rules at
any time during the financial year ended 31 December
2018.

The Company has established the Audit Committee
pursuant to a resolution of the Directors passed on 21
November 2004. The Audit Committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Ting
Leung Huel, Stephen, Professor Tao Xiaoming and
Professor Cheng Longdi. Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen
is the chairman of the Audit Committee. The rights and
duties of the Audit Committee comply with the code
provisions of the CG Code. The Audit Committee is
responsible for reviewing and supervising the Group’s
financial reporting process and internal control system
and providing advice and recommendations to the
Board.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the audited results of
the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2018.

The Company has established the Nomination
Committee pursuant to a resolution of the Directors
passed on 19 March 2012. The Nomination Committee
comprises an executive Director and the chairman of the
Company, Mr. Hong Tianzhu and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Professor Tao
Xiaoming, Professor Cheng Longdi and Mr. Ting Leung
Huel, Stephen. The chairman of the Nomination
Committee is Mr. Hong Tianzhu. The Nomination
Committee has adopted terms of reference which are in
line with the code provisions of the CG Code. The
Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its duties and has access to
independent professional advice in accordance with the
Company’s policy if considered necessary.
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The Company has established the Remuneration
Committee pursuant to a resolution of the Directors
passed on 21 November 2004. The Remuneration
Committee comprises three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen,
Professor Tao Xiaoming and Professor Cheng Longdi
and the chairman and executive Director, namely Mr.
Hong Tianzhu. Mr. Ting Leung Huel, Stephen is the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The
Remuneration Committee has rights and duties
consistent with those set out in the code provisions of
the CG Code. The Remuneration Committee is
principally responsible for formulating the Group’s policy
and structure for all remunerations of the Directors and
senior management and providing advice and
recommendations to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
made charitable contributions amounted to
approximately RMB611,000.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is
engaged in any litigation or arbitration of material
importance and no litigation or claim of material
importance was known to the Directors to be pending or
threatened against the Company or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2018.

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Hong Tianzhu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 7 March 2019
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The Group has a corporate mission of “becoming a
global leading cotton textile enterprise that emphasizes
creating a wonderful life; being committed to develop
products with high added value and providing
comprehensive all-rounded services; maximizing the
benefits of employees, customers and shareholders;
contributing to and serving the society in an earnest
way”. It adheres to the principles of “honest partner,
creativity and excellence, customer-oriented approach”
and insists on a sustainable development model to
promote the concept of humanity, environmental
friendliness and energy conservation, health and safety,
and integrity, with a view to becoming a socially
responsible corporation.

According to the requirements of the Appendix 27
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide” (the “ESG Reporting Guide”) to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Company has
prepared this report, which covers the main business
segments of the Group in the manufacturing of yarns,
grey fabrics, dyeing, apparels and garment fabrics,
including the environmental key performance indicators
(“KPI”) of the 18 production subsidiaries of the Group
that are situated in Mainland China, Vietnam, Cambodia
and Nicaragua, throughout the financial year ended 31
December 2018. Save for the inclusion of Taltex (Zhuhai)
Co., Ltd. (“Taltex (Zhuhai)”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group, there is no significant adjustments on the
scope of the ESG Report compared with the ESG report
contained in the annual report for the year ended 31
December 2017.

The Group performs an assessment over the relevant
aspects and KPlIs in terms of applicability and materiality
in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide. In full
compliance with the disclosure requirement “comply or
explain”, this report provides explanations as to why
certain disclosure rules do not apply to the Group,
thereby satisfying the reporting principles of materiality,
quantification, balance and consistency.
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The Group recognizes the importance of enhancing
its own environmental and social performances to
maintain business sustainability. In determining its
operation strategy, therefore, the Group considers
risks and opportunities affecting the environmental,
social and governance (“ESG”) issues, which will
provide guidelines for its daily business operations.

The Board of the Group endorses the Group’s
commitments to corporate social responsibility, and
assumes full responsibility for ESG strategies and
reporting. In charge of assessing and determining
the ESG risk exposure, the Board also ensures the
Group establishes appropriate and effective ESG
risk management and internal control systems.

It is the responsibility of the Group’s management
to confirm the effectiveness of the ESG system
with the Board. To carry out the full-scale ESG
management work, the Group’s ESG task group,
comprised of the major functional departments of
Texhong, is established, and all responsible
officers in charge of various functional departments
will directly participate in and designate personnel
to engage in the ESG management and reporting
work, the work progress of which will be reported
to the management of the Group.

The Group’s ESG strategies are built on the core
principle and practical objective of “Safety, Quality
and Environmental Sustainability”, providing ESG
management guidelines for daily operations. ESG
policies and strategies will be reviewed on a
regular basis to ensure their related contents are
appropriate and applicable to the business of the
Group.
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The Group attaches great importance to
communications with stakeholders and establishes
effective communication channels with key
stakeholders including shareholders, employees,
suppliers and customers. After identifying,
evaluating and selecting ESG issues of concern to
all stakeholders, the Group determines “Health and
Safety” and “Product Responsibility” as its two
major issues, which will be specifically disclosed by
the Group with corresponding responses in the
report.

The Group gives attention to the work, learning, life
and health of its employees, and remains
committed to improving the workplace conditions.
A sound communication mechanism is established
to facilitate self-improvement of our employees and
enrich their cultural and amateur activities.

In addition to strictly complying with the
relevant local laws and regulations, such as
the “Production Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases”,
“Measures for the Supervision and
Administration of Occupational Health
Surveillance”, and “Design Standards for
Occupational Safety and Health for
Businesses in the Textile Industry”, the Group
is committed to achieving the balance
between work and life of our employees by
introducing a series of internal rules and
systems to safeguard the workplace safety
and prevent occupational diseases.
Furthermore, the Group also strengthens the
protection of female employees.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

AEEGESREN AR NER
EIBNREESBERE BT - #
EEMEXPEHEET T HRNBERE
BNz B/ T RO ESGE B ETT
THER - FHEEER BT T [EE
Bz RIERET] EMESEE
B WKERESPETERKENE

REBETIETI I 828 £EMNE
B BORSENRETIFRE B
DEBRT  EBETaREN 2%
BT 3eETE -

REBEERETEMEE TR
S 2 REBEERER - (P E
ARFKMBEZ2EER) (PE
ARKMBBEBERRE) - (B
HRFEEEEEIE)NE BT
EOEBEREHLERRE)
F BB RIIH A EBAR E BIE 2R
RBARNLEEERBERD
EIE MBRLZMETRE  ®
ARB I TFRARR T4 -



2.1.1 Safe production

In accordance with the requirements of
the “Policy on Production Accidents”,
“Policy on Production Standardization”,
“Policy on Regular Safe Production
Meetings”, “Policy on Safe Production
Education”, “Policy on Accident
Reporting and Handling”, “Policy on
Emergency Response”, “Three
Simultaneities” of Construction
Projects”, and “Policy on Facilities and
Equipment Maintenance”, the Group
strengthens its management on
accidents and violations to regulate
safe production and prevent non-
compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations. With regard to onsite
inspection of non-compliance, relevant
disciplinary schemes are executed and
lessons are learnt through accident
analysis meetings to prevent repeated
violation. The principle of “four
prohibition” on incomplete cause
investigation, incomplete disciplinary
action for responsible staff member,
incomplete rectification measures and
incomplete training for relevant staff
member is upheld to improve safety
education and implement rectifying
measures.

The Group strictly adheres to the
requirements to provide training and
learning sessions to its employees in
relation to workplace safety, which
primarily include the safety procedures,
management system, hazard
identification skills and a three-level
safety induction program. Cases of
industrial accidents occurred in the
Group and other comparable
companies would be used for learning
and discussion during the training
session. Comparison and rationalization
are based on the three aspects of
“system and procedure, operation
environment, and personnel education”
so that our employees will be able to
put things into proper perspective for
record and filing.
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2.1.1 Safe production (Continued)

In 2018, Shandong Texhong Textile
Co., Ltd. (“Shandong Texhong”)
established the “Implementation Plan
for Dual Prevention System” and
organized training and examination
sessions for the “Dual Prevention
System” among all employees, which
sets an example for other subsidiaries
of the Group in establishing the dual
prevention system.

To further strengthen workplace safety
and continue the promotion of 6S
management and backup support, the
Group held a special meeting on “Safe
Production, 6S Management and
Backup Support” for all subsidiaries in
May 2018. Announced at the meeting
were the “Policy on Workplace Safety
Management” and “Regulations on
Handling Workplace Accidents”, which
contain the workplace safety
accountability system and the safety
compliance duties of management
personnel at all levels and specify the
workplace accident levels and
corresponding penalties, alongside a
notice on safety inspection throughout
the Group. In addition, the Group
makes general arrangements for
workplace safety in the future, including
the establishment of a safety
compliance system and the top-to-
bottom development of workplace
safety management accountability. Only
by making great efforts to enhance
workplace safety and safety training
among all subsidiaries can the three-
level safety management system be
more than a management concept and
put into practice.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE
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2.1.1 Safe production (Continued) 211 REEEE)

In 2018, the subsidiaries of the Group —E-N\F EEZTA
actively carried out various activities RIERFERBENEE W
such as fire drills, flood-control drills ABRMZ 2 EEFIE
and workplace safety training to EE) - MNse BB A RAIEE
strengthen its capability to prevent 7 RERAREERSE -

workplace accidents and save lives and
safeguard its production safety.

R = 5 1

Fire Drill Carried out by Texhong Dyeing and Printing Annual Joint Fire Drill Carried Out by Texhong Galaxy

Vietnam Limited (“Texhong Dyeing”) Technology Limited (“Texhong Galaxy”) and the Police
and Fire Departments
B RILABREEARDA RALERABHR AR A A
(TR RE ) RRBEREE ([RELEROA ) R ZER i & F R ER R B
2.1.2 Occupational disease prevention and 2.1.2 B¥mEE
protection
In accordance with various policies and AEBKRE(EE LTS
procedures, including the “Management B IR YA S R E A
of Occupational Hygiene and Safety” REE IR EYE | E R
and “Distribution and Management of B AR EEES
Labor Protection Equipment”, the Group RN 2 Ba TIE o

continues its commitments to
occupational health management and
occupational disease prevention and

protection.

. Employees are provided with . HETHETEELYSD
health and safety education HE  BIABIIZ
sessions, safety induction training, PEINMEZETLS
and ongoing safety training BE
sessions (in case of incumbent
employees);

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 =Z— \FF#§ 95



Medical Experts Invited by Changzhou Texhong
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2.1.2 Occupational disease prevention and
protection (Continued)

Inspections over occupational
hazards at workplaces, such as
noise and dusts, are carried out.
Notices and warning signals at
workplaces where the
occupational hazards exist are
posted to raise the awareness of
self-protection;

IS

';..\___ f

2.1.2 BERGE(E)

YA ERZREN
MESRERTET
Rl EERARE
BEMMITEITE A
MER RSEIAR
HOTEER

Textile Co., Ltd. (“Changzhou Texhong”) to Provide Health
Consultation for Employees with Different Ethnicities

BEMRIHBERAR(EMNRIL]) BFEEEER RS RER IARREEZ A

Protection gears, such as
earplugs and masks, are regularly
distributed among our staff
members, who will also receive
training on use of these gears;

Occupational health profiles have
been compiled and occupational
health checkups have been
arranged to prevent occupational
diseases effectively.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI#5#EBAERA A
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2.1.3 Protection for female employees

Female employees assume a wide
variety of posts on different levels in the
Group. In strict compliance with relevant
local laws and regulations, such as the
“Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Protection of Women’s Rights
and Interests”, “Labor Protection of
Female Employees” and “Healthcare
Work of Female Employees”, the Group
protects the rights of female employees
from the sources. We are concerned
about the problems encountered by
employees in their work and life and
constantly improve the working
environment and condition for female
employees. A “Three-period”
requirement and regular physical
examination system have been put in
place to promote female employees’
physical and mental health.

213 ZBIRE

EAREE ZHEBETEZ
DHETRER - NEHE
B AL E o K B R
BTEHABREEEAR
R EE A R AN B R 22
HREE) (LB TY

RERT I LBTRE
EREYE R LM
ZEHIMEZ  KMET
BTEIEMEE LEBE
HIRIE - T =Lt 4
HIRIBMEHIEH BE
ZIT=8REMTHE
BEIE BLOLXBISDL
BEEE -

Health Training for Female Employees at Texhong Thai Binh Garment Company Limited

(“Texhong Thai Binh Garment”)
R AKTFREBR AT ([RIAFARE ) A TRAEEEE
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2.1.4 Promote work-life balance

May Day Fun Games held at Xinjiang Texhong
Foundation Textile Co., Ltd. (“Xinjiang Texhong”)

In 2018, the Group arranged various
forms of cultural and sports
competitions and work campaigns to
create a positive atmosphere and
promote work-life balance. In addition,
coffee klatches are held monthly among
general managers, and seminars
among workshop heads, chief operator
and chief mechanist as well as after-
hours meetings among employees are
held regularly to help employees
maintain a positive work attitude,
enhance work enthusiasm and
strengthen corporate cohesion.

To provide pleasant workplace
conditions for our employees and
safeguard their wellbeing during their
amateur life, the headquarters and
subsidiaries of the Group underwent
comprehensive upgrades of in the
workplace areas and amenity areas.
For example, Texhong Yinfeng
constructed facilities like leisure room,
television room, basketball court and
badminton court to enhance the overall
living and work standard of employees.

In addition, the Group endeavors to
support employees in need and offers
relief and condolence to hospitalized
employees, employees who lose
immediate family members and
employees in severe difficulties.

BRI EXSBER QR

LBh—BREDS

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED RiI#5#EBAERA A
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Chinese and Vietnamese Employees at
Texhong Thai Binh Garment
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The Group strictly complies with relevant
local laws and regulations, such as the “Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China” and
“Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China”. In accordance with internal rules
and regulations, such as “Employee Manual”,
“Recruitment Management System”,
“Employee Induction and Loss of Office
Management Requirement”, “Employee
Promotion Management Requirement” and
“Performance Management Measure”, the
Group regulates recruitment process,
improves the mechanism of talent selection,
and actively protects employees’ legal rights,
human rights and privacy.

The Group does not discriminate against
recruitment candidates because of gender,
age, ethnicity, race and nationality. Right
protection covers the following aspects:

. Labor contract: We enter into a legally
binding labor contract with every
employee in accordance with relevant
laws and regulations, and our
employees are entitled to annual leave
according to the legal requirements

. Child labor: Recruitment of young
workers under the age of 18 will be
subject to the requirements of the laws
and regulations, and use of child labor
is prohibited by the Group.

. Forced or compulsory labor: Use of
forced labor is prohibited.

. Working hour: We complies with all
the requirements of the national laws
and regulations on working hour and
overtime arrangement for employees is
on a voluntary basis.

. Labor union and collective
bargaining agreement: We recognize
and respect employees’ right to
organize and participate in a labor
union and collective bargaining.

. Discrimination: Discrimination against
ethnicity, race, religious belief, disability,
personality, etc. is prohibited.

ANEEBFREST SRR R
JERR G (P E AREMBE L E)
EVFKHREARKLFNHLEER
SEVE o (RIBCE T F M) - (REE
EEHIEY (BT ABBEIESR
EV(BIBEAEEREE
REBEEBERE)SRIBRES
B AEBBREETHERRE
A EBRAKS  BIBRES
TAKED  REB T AERE
ABEFL o

REEREASTERMLR - F
e Bk B B EUT
HETTERE B T

- BEHER: HMREAH
FREERESRRERER
ARABRORNNEHA
Rl - WHEOELETREFR

. BT BE18mIATRK
FETINEAFRERE AR
R Bk  RNEBEZE FRE

I

. BBRBHSD HEE

. THER: BTREZE
B ORRERNIEREY
Ek  EETHBENEBR
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. Harassment and torture: The Group
cares for the physical and mental health
of each and every employee and
prohibits harassment, torture and
corporal punishment.

. Promotion and development: Based
on the Group’s stratified talent nurturing
plan, every employee is provided with
fair “branched” promotion and
development paths. The Group
enhances career advancement
programs for employees and expands
their development paths. For
employees with development
preferences, promotion is based on a
combination of skill examination and
daily performance, which promotes
professionalism, diversified and
extended development, and helps
rationalize promotional criteria.

. Dismissal: Any dismissal of employees
is in strict compliance with local laws
and regulations.

The Group regulates the management of
labor and employment according to all the
relevant local laws, regulations and policies
to build a harmonious and stable labor
relation. Based on the principles of “equality,
willingness and mutual agreement”, we enter
into a written labor contract with every
employee (the success rate of which is
100%). Our annual leave policy is established
according to legal requirements. In order to
protect employees’ rights, the Group provides
updates through different means to
employees on recent production and
operation conditions of the Group, as well as
rules, regulations, and systems that are
closely related to their interests.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE
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The Group provides comprehensive and
systematic support to the employee
development. Based on the needs of
strategic development of the Group, the
Group prepared “Training and
Implementation Measures of Texhong Textile
Group” to set up the structure for training,
learning course, technician, mechanist/
engineer skill assessment, mid-to-entry level
training and senior leadership. The Group
puts in place a “branched career path” for
every employee and nurtures talent in a
systematic manner through “budding
program” (for university graduates with less
than one year of experience), “flourishing
program” (for university graduates with one to
three years of experience) and “stratified
talent nurturing program” (for all employee
with more than three years of experience).

RAHE BB

Texhong Institute of Education
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>  Career path for university graduates >  REBERBELEFEREL

Senior engineer Senior leadership training
ERRTIZER BARRENIE|

%
%

Associate senior engineer Mid-level leadership training

Bl R TIZE AR EE
D Trainings undertaken Trainings undertaken D
Engineer by respective operation by the human Entry-level leadership training
Ti2fH units resources office MREZ AL
i BEBBEAE R ANERBAEE i
Assistant engineer Middle-management training
B3R TH2ED hEXE

%
%

Technical staff

The flourishing program Entry-level management training
B B4R EEEEY

ES

The budding program
HEE

>

Graduate induction training

AB4H B T3
»  Career path for frontline employees > —REIBXETERET
Senior mechanist Mid-level leadership training
AR AR R 35|

%
%

Mechanist Entry-level leadership training
A REE N5
D Trainings undertaken Trainings undertaken D
Senior technician | by respective operation by the human | Middle-management training
BARKT units resources office hEEE
BEBEMAREI ANBREBEELE

%
%

Mid-level technician Entry-level management training
HEEEE

ok
%

Entry-level technician Reserve leadership training
MEFET EhtEE R

Skilled staff
RIS T

>

Frontline induction training
— A8 T3
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In 2018, companies under the Group have
organized various training activities, including
production training, management skills, safety
training, skills training and safe production,
and targeted training was also provided to all
new employees, entry-level management,
middle management and reserve
management personnel to meet the needs of

—E-N\F AEESARAE
TEELEERI  BEEKIT &
2 RN L2 EES
ZRIBIEES LAMABRE
T -EEEEAR HEEEA
BMREERBABSREETR
HEAFHEMENEI - HESE
AR FE R o

all levels.

Team Leader Lecturer Training Camp for Texhong Renze Training for Human Resources Practitioners of
Textile Joint Stock Company ( “Texhong Renze”) Texhong Galaxy
RITCEGBIROBRAF ([ RIE]D) RATIA A N EIRWEZE A BT
A RBAFIRE

The Group strictly complies with relevant local laws AEBBERETEMNBBERER
and regulations, such as the “Product Quality Law IKHPEARAFNBEREEE) (F
of the People’s Republic of China”, “Law of the # AR AFEDE B & E S REFFICH
People’s Republic of China on the Protection of KANBE mBEARR 2R E#)F -

Consumers’ Rights and Interests”, and “National
General Safety Technical Code for Textile
Products”.

The Group places great emphasis on quality
management by establishing and obtaining
the certification of the 1ISO 9001 quality
management system. Meanwhile, with
increased investments in scientific
instruments, the Group adopts advanced
equipment for effective control over product
quality and integrates quality management
throughout production process.

AEESEEREEEE  BY
TISO 9001 Z E BB R Ml
REE - A AEBIMARRR
BEERA > BEENRBEER
HEETAUMNEGE  KEET
BERBIEMEENZBIE -
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In order to ensure product quality and safety,
provide better services for downstream
customers and boost customer satisfaction,
the Group has taken the following measures:

[ Quality management policy and training
for addressing quality issues

>

Establishment of a quality
management system

Clear and specific work
requirements

. Job description for each
person-in-charge

. Quality control for delivery

Establishment of quality
management policies

. “Quality assurance
structure”

. “Quality work manual”

. “Rules on order assessment

and product modification”

. “Rules on production and
storage”
. “ Quality management and

shutdown policy”

. “Rules on quality issue
handling”
. “Responsibility and

accountability policy for
quality issues”

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE
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® Customer complaint handling and o EHREBLEFMEEIR
customer satisfaction improvement vas

o
b

> Establishment of quality concept

A\

BImEED

o

. Quality meeting is organized
for every new product type
to analyze quality control
points at each level
according to customer’s
requirements and production
features.

. Quick responses to internal
control quality fluctuation.

. Cause analysis for
substandard quality to
prevent reoccurrence.

. Comprehensive
investigation of quality
anomalies. Quality control
department is responsible
for producing monthly
quality control report.

Regular customer visit

. Monthly market visits with
customers to understand
market demands, cooperate
to develop new products,
and foster mutual
understanding and trust.

Countermeasures for quality
anomalies and reasonable
handling of customer complaint

. Receipt of feedbacks from
operators and sampling
analysis or customer visit to
understand quality
information.

. Cause analysis of quality
issues and communication
with customer to achieve
resolution.
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In 2018, the Group improved the operating ZE-N\F AEEBRRAEE

skill level of our employees, strengthened the EOME  AINBEEEN - 2B
awareness of standard operation, and ELL BE R RIZFA B THIRME
improved product quality through monthly BegkT gt RERIENE
quality analysis meetings, internal and #BoRSEREBE-

external quality training sessions, operation
competitions, etc.

'I:exhong Renze Equipme-nt Operator ontest Texhong Renze Monthly Quality Analysis Meeting
RIT# RICEAEEELME
REEMNEHIRESHLE

Lecture Given by national-level experts invited by Training Sessions Offered by USTER® Quality University

Xuzhou Texhong Times Textile Co., Ltd to Texhong Textile Group
(“Texhong Times”)
MR RGBER AR ([RIFR) BHREEEIEZNR
BABRRRBERKEMR FEER UL S BT
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3.2.1 Customer relations

The Group assigns specific staff to
different customers in order to handle
their enquiries in a timely manner,
including enquiries on order quality,
quantity requirement, delivery schedule
and customer feedback.

The business philosophy of the Group
is to expand market share with brand
name and improve customer
satisfaction. Consumers’ opinions
would be analysed comprehensively in
order to boost customer satisfaction in
every possible way.

3.2.2 Customer satisfaction

Market intelligence department of the
Group conducts biannual satisfaction
surveys on major customers who have
purchased the Group’s products and
invites them to complete “Survey form of
customer satisfaction”. In past sampling
done by national, provincial and city
supervising authorities on the Group,
there has been no unsatisfactory result
and the objective of “consistent product
quality to meet customers’ needs” has
been achieved. In accordance with after-
sales quality management requirements,
professionals of the Group offer all-
rounded services for products sold and
have been widely recognized by
customers.
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3.2.3 Customer complaints

The Group strictly adheres to the
relevant local laws and regulations,
such as the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of
Consumers’ Rights and Interests” to
prepare documents like “Flow chart on
the handling of quality feedback from
customers on yarns of the Group” to
ensure speedy and effective resolution
for quality issue reported by customers.
The Group registers and records every
enquiry and requirement on quality
raised by customers. For handling
customer complaints, we meet with
relevant staff to analyze the cause and
identify responsible department to
devise and implement countermeasures.
Reply to customer and handling record
will be made within 20 days.

The quality department of the Group
categorizes customer feedback and
analyzes existing issues, followed by
the preparation of after-sales service
report. The Group boosts its product
quality constantly to create a leading
edge in the market. Customer
satisfaction and product quality also
benefit significantly from such practices.
Customer service managers of the
Group are responsible for supervising
and examining after-sales services and
providing monthly and annual report to
after-sales service department at the
headquarters. Customer visits are
arranged for the general manager of
the Group, if necessary.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE
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3.2.4 Protection of customer’s privacy
Recognizing the importance of
customer relations and respecting the
privacy of every customer, the Group
actively safeguards the privacy and
security of each customer. For instance,
Shandong Texhong strictly implements
“Regulation on Employee Management”
so that employees who disclose without
authorization any customer, technology
and other confidential information in
relation to business operation or internal
department operation shall be put on
probation and it may result in
termination of employment contract in a
serious case.

Since its establishment in 1997, the Group
has invested a large amount of funds and
resources in technological innovation and
technological transformation. With our
laboratories as the technical center, the
Group has developed a number of new
technologies and products, namely pure
cotton products, including elastic pure cotton
core-spun yarn series, high-end yarns and
garment fabrics for knitting, through
independent R&D and cooperation with
renowned domestic and international fabric
developers and research institutions.

The Group has established a national
research and development institute under
Texhong Times. The person-in-charge of the
institute is our technical director. The Group
has established several entrepreneur-scholar
researcher joint development bases in
cooperation with major renowned institutions
and universities, and developed 25 new
products, with significant results after a year of
operation in 2018. It has not only boost local
economy, but also created approximately
3,000 jobs for residents in Xuzhou.
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The Group focuses on cotton core-spun yarn
and produces series such as weaving single
yarn as well. The Group expands market
share with top-notch, superb, premium and
advanced products and its product quality
reaches the level between 5% to 25% of
Uster Technologies, which is the exceptional
level for domestic standard and caters for
both the domestic and international market
primarily focused on product diversification
and sophistication.

The Group pays close attention to the
protection of intellectual properties and
observes relevant local laws and regulations,
such as the “Trademark Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, “Patent Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, “Regulation for
the Implementation of Patent Law of the
People’s Republic of China” and “Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the People’s Republic of
China”. In 2018, the Group continued to take
care of the Group’s logos and trademarks to
protect our legal rights and intellectual
properties and maintain fair competition in the
market.

The Group requires its subsidiaries to use
legitimate software, such as IP telephony
service, SAP and OA, and prohibits the
installation of pirated software.

In response to the urge for accelerating the
development of a “conservation-oriented
society”, the Group has complied with
relevant local laws and regulations like the
“Energy Conservation Law of the People’s
Republic of China” and “Water Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, as well as
“Energy Management Implementation
Details” prepared by the Group to become an
efficient, conserving and energy-saving
pioneer.
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The Group has put in place “Measures for
peak-and-trough electricity Consumption and
Management for Management Staff”,
“Operation Standard for Cooling Equipment
in a Workshop in Summer”, and “Notice on
Enhancement of Placement, Disposal and
Classification Management of Domestic
Waste Bin ” to facilitate environmental
protection and energy management in the
Group.

While actively implementing the national laws
and regulations as well as internal systems,
the subsidiaries of the Group revise and
update relevant systems and policies every
year to mobilize the enthusiasm of relevant
personnel for energy conservation and
emission reduction, and promote energy
conservation and emission reduction
throughout the Company, thereby exploiting
maximum economic benefits from resources.

4.1.1 Energy conservation

The Group actively promotes the
concept of electricity conservation with
enhanced energy management, truly
encourages our employees to practice
energy conservation in work and life. As
a result, the Group not only evangelizes
the practice of energy conservation but
also becomes conscientiously active in
energy conservation:

. Establish the energy management
policy by installing more energy
measure instrument, formulating
energy consumption standard,
and conducting energy efficiency
assessment;

. Step up analysis on the efficiency
of the energy-consuming
equipment in order to enhance
their operational efficiency for
energy saving;
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4.1.1 Energy conservation (Continued)

Designate management unit and
personnel for energy
conservation, build a stronger
team of energy-saving workers,
and strengthen energy-saving
training;

Conduct analysis on the energy
consumption to identify any
insufficiency of our energy
management in a timely manner
with a view to raising our energy
management capacity;

Intensify monitoring of the quality
of parts and components to
improve the quality of
maintenance and repair. ldentify
and fix any possible malfunction
of equipment in a timely manner
to ensure that equipment is
always in good technological
condition. Meanwhile, eliminating
energy-inefficient equipment to
enhance the energy efficiency.
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4.1.1 Energy conservation (Continued)

In 2018, the Group invested significant
resources to promote energy saving by
transforming inverter and energy-
efficient ventilator, replacing LED light,
and using air heat water heater.
Changzhou Texhong managed to
improve the energy efficiency and
utilization rate by implementing various
measures, including transforming
variable-frequency spinning frames,
configuring compensatory circuits,
enhancing the efficiency of cooling
towers, and restructuring air ducts of
research and development workshops.
Texhong Dyeing optimised the
production processes of the pre-
treatment workshops by upgrading from
joint bleaching processes to the
processes combining cold pad-batch
dyeing with desizing, thereby
successfully conserving approximately
70% of water, electricity, and steam
consumption.
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4.1.2 Water conservation

To become a water-saving enterprise,
the Group actively nurtures the culture
of water conservation by encouraging
employees to develop the water-saving
habit:

. Use water saving productions and
implement water recycling;

. Turn off taps after use;

. Check the water pipes regularly to
avoid water leakage and prevent
any unintended use of water;

. Install separate water metres in
office, living and production areas
and assign dedicated staff to
record monthly water consumption
and analyze the data collected
from each department.

In 2018, the Group launched a range of
water-saving projects, such as
installation of water-saving equipment,
promotion of water recycling and
reclaimed water recycling, which saw
remarkable results. Texhong Renze
installed a water collection system to
the rooftop drainage system of
workshops, which can direct raindrops
on the rooftop to the water tank of the
cooling station for air-conditioning
purposes. Shandong Lanyan Textiles
Co., Ltd. (“Shandong Lanyan”) further
introduced automated heating devices
for plastic carpets and blankets,
achieving automation for production
procedures. Meanwhile, the heating
pipeline of workshops was successfully
upgraded, effectively minimizing the
steam consumption.
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4.1.3 Conservation of packaging materials

The Group attached great importance
to the utilization of packaging materials
and implemented control over the
consumption of packaging materials to
boost the resource efficiency.

The following table sets out the
consumption rate of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018 and
2017:

2018 A2: Use of Resources KPIs
2018 F A2 &R fF AR ETIER

KPls
REEMIER

A2.1
A2.1
A2.2
A2.2
A2.5

A2.5

Specific Indicator

AEBER

Energy Consumption (MWh)

R ERERE ORRR)

Energy intensity (MWh/RMB million sales)

BEREE KRR BB TARKIHER)

Water consumption (tonne)

FAKE (8)

Water intensity (tonne/RMB million sales)

FkEE (M B8 TARKHER)

Packaging material (tonne)’

BEME () 1

Intensity of packaging material used
(tonne/RMB million sales)

BEMBMEAEE (M, B8 TARKHER)

! During 2018, the Group further improved the statistics regarding
packaging materials. In addition, to ensure data consistency,
recalculation of the intensity of packaging materials for 2017 is
based on the calculating methods adopted for 2018.
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B+
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In strict compliance with the requirements of
relevant local laws and regulations, such as
the “Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, “Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the People’s
Republic of China” and “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Waste”, the Group adhered to green and low-
carbon operation and actively adopted
emission reduction measures as well as
promoting environmental awareness of our
staff in order to reduce environmental impacts
arising from sewage, exhaust, greenhouse
gas, hazardous and non-hazardous wastes
generated from our production and operation
processes. The Group primarily discharges
effluent and domestic sewage, exhaust and
solid waste.

The Group has identified no environmental
non-compliance case over the past three
years.

4.2.1 Effluent
The Group requires separate treatment
for production effluent and domestic
sewage:

. Production effluent is reused or, if
not reusable, directly discharged
to the sewage pipeline of factory
zone and discharged up to
standard after passing through
the sewage treatment device;

. Processed by the biological
treatment system of the factory
zone, domestic sewage will meet
the first grade emission standard
and be transported to the
municipal wastewater treatment
system through the sewage
pipeline of the factory zone.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE
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4.2.1 Effluent (Continued)
For example, at Texhong Renze:

All septic tanks throughout the
factory zone are cleaned on a
daily basis;

Three rounds of cleaning are
carried out for effluent filtration
tanks each month;

Daily inspection is performed over
effluent filtration tanks, while spot
checks are conducted for septic
tanks to determine the cleanness;

Environmental team is arranged
to inspect the cleaning and
isolation conditions of the factory
environment and sewage and
drainage systems on regular basis
each month so that any identified
issue can be timely reported and
rectification can be made under
supervision.

4.2.2 Exhaust
The Group primarily produces fiber
dusts and boiler exhaust in production
process. To minimize the negative
environmental impact of fiber dusts, the
Group requires workshops to close
windows during production for close
operation. The Group installs dust
removal units in every workshop to
handle fiber dusts to reduce exhaust
emission.
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4.2.2 Exhaust (Continued)
In 2018, subsidiaries of the Group
actively worked on all kinds of waste
reduction and emission reduction
training publicity and implementation,
technical renovation projects and
equipment replacement:

. Taltex (Zhuhai) adopted the cold
pad-batch dyeing process for
knitted fabrics to replace the
traditional overflow dyeing
process, annually reducing
emissions of CO,, SO,, and COD
by 6,000 tons, 5.6 tons, and 3.6
tons, respectively. The
15-tonnage coal-fire boiler was
removed, and two forming
machines were upgraded to use
natural gas for combustion.
Furthermore, the 10-tonnage
natural gas boiler was purchased.
As a result, annual emissions of
SO, and NOx were reduced by 32
tons and 34 tons, respectively;

. Shandong Lanyan installed the
connected VOC monitoring
equipment for the finishing
workshops, and the exhaust
treatment facility was installed to
the quasi paste workshops for
color dyeing processes;

. Shandong Texhong arranged
personnel to promote emission
reduction campaigns inside and
outside the Company so as to
raise the public awareness of
environmental protection and
emission reduction.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE
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4.2.3 Greenhouse Gases

The Group primarily produces
greenhouse gases due to energy
consumption in the production process,
which comprise Scope 1: direct
emissions (petrol, diesel oil and natural
gas) and Scope 2: Energy indirect
emissions (electricity). The Group
actively adopts energy-saving
measures to reduce energy
consumption and adopts clean energy
and photovoltaic power generation for
the purpose of reducing greenhouse
gas emission.

4.2.4 Solid waste

The Group primarily produces waste
cotton, office and domestic waste,
waste equipment parts and components
and oily waste yarns in the production
process. The Group has prepared
documents such as “Notice on
Enhancing Customized Placement of
Rubbish Bin and Classified
Management” and “Notice on
Enhancing Management and Classified
Deposit of Industrial Waste and
Domestic Waste”, bringing classified
management of domestic waste and
industrial waste into the scope of
enterprise management and requiring
classified collection of the above-
mentioned solid waste. According to
these documents, the Group sorts the
said solid waste and stores such waste
by category in the temporary deposit
zone of factory where a banner is
hanged and category, volume and
storage period are displayed. Waste
from the production process, such as
cotton waste, can be reused as raw
material, while the remaining scrap
cotton and impurities are collected for
sale and integrated use. Dangerous
waste should undergo detoxification
treatment by a competent organization
according to requirements. General
solid waste, such as domestic waste, is
collectively handled by the Office of
Environment and Sanitation.
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The following table sets out the gas emission
and waste disposal data of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017 and 2018:

2018 A1: Emissions KPIs
2018 F A1 HE Y B8R 1A BUEE

KPIs

Specific Indicator

BEAMER ABER

A1A1

A1.1

A1.2

A1.2

A1.3

A13

A1.4

A14

120

Effluent discharge (tonne)

RERK PR E (W)

Effluent discharge intensity
(tonne/RMB million sales)

FEKBEREE (M, B8 TARBHER)

Greenhouse gas emission (tonne)

BEREEEE (M)

Greenhouse gas emission intensity
(tCO2e/RMB million sales)

BRERBHMEE (1C0e /EEBTARKIHER)

Hazardous waste discharge (tonne)

BEEEYHHE (W)

Hazardous waste discharge intensity
(tonne/RMB million sales)

BEREDHREE (W, BETAREHEER)

Non-hazardous waste discharge (tonne)

EEREEYHE (HE)

Non-hazardous waste discharge intensity
(tonne/RMB million sales)

EEZREEVHREE (W, B8 TARKHER)

The Group is principally engaged the
production and sales of yarns and grey
fabrics. The production process and
techniques of yarns and grey fabrics involve
only physical changes which mean neither
chemical reactions nor additives are involved.
As described in section 4.1, primary
resources used in the production process are
electricity and a small amount of water. Other
than that, the Group will not make extensive
use of other environment and natural
resources.

TEXHONG TEXTILE GROUP LIMITED XRIUI#&EEBRAAE

TREJNAEERBE_T—LFR_
E-N\F+ZA=+—HIFENER
PEmR R BRI R R BUR

2017
—E—+tF
6,614,207

405.6

1,219,903

74.8

4,850

0.3

7,722

0.5

REBELEEBRYENEMD
HEREE  ERMEMNEE
MEMIT BB RIBKE - &
EpiEh B tBRE  BELE
SERM £EBEPIRER
WERREHFIK  BKE4L
BEET TR - RILZIN &
EregREFMAEMHNRERX
REIR



The Group believes that the fundamental task and
obligation of supply chain management is built on
the promotion of social responsibility performance
among suppliers. Through visits and exchanges,
the Group delivers its messages of anti-unfair
competition, respect for intellectual property and
anti-bribery to every part of the supply chain. The
Group has formulated guidelines, such as the
“Policy on the Management of Procurement
Operation of Daily Supplies of Subsidiaries”, and
“Policy on the Procurement of Certain Supplies of
the Headquarters and Texhong China” to regulate
the supply chain system. Moreover, the Group
infuses the practices of environmental and social
sustainability into the supply chain management:

. Open tender for selection of logistic services.

. Logistic contract: in case of newly signed or
renewed contracts, certain clauses requiring
the practices of environmental and social
sustainability will be included, which is legally
binding on the cooperating parties.

. Assessment policy: certain terms in relation
to the practices of environmental and social
sustainability (which detailing and quantifying
contract requirements) are included to the
existing assessment system of transportation
companies as a regular management tool.

In 2018, the Group’s subsidiaries exchanged
experiences with suppliers on environmental
protection, energy conservation and sustainable
management by visits to suppliers and onsite
inspections. For example, the representatives of
Texhong Renze, together with Vietham Special
Trade Missions during the period from 21 July to
27 July, visited the United States to explore the
plantation conditions and scientific management for
local cotton, and visited the American cotton
companies in North Carolina and the farms in
McAllen of Texas to develop first-hand
understanding of the concepts and practices on
sustainable management, environmental protection
and protection of practitioners’ rights in local cotton
plantations.
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In strict compliance with the requirements of
relevant local laws and regulations, such as the
“Company Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
“Bidding Law of the PRC”, “Anti-Unfair Competition
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, and
“Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial
Bribery”, the Group requests its customers and
suppliers to sign a memorandum on anti-
commercial bribery.

Every employee of the Group based in the
headquarters, as well as middle and senior
management members of subsidiaries, is subject
to “Building business integrity for employees of the
enterprise” on-site training and must sign an
“Undertaking of business integrity as an employee
of Texhong Textile Group”. The Group has a
stringent system for procurement for bulk supplies
and has set up a whistle-blowing mechanism.

The Group complies with all the national and local
laws and regulations regarding extortion, fraud and
money laundering. Due to the nature of the
industry, the Group does not have the policy
regarding extortion, fraud and money laundering at
the moment. However, the Group will discuss from
time to time the need for adoption of such policy in
the future and will adopt such policy should the
need arise.
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The Group has been committed to giving back to
society over the years. For instance, we acquired
bankrupt cotton textile enterprises in the People’s
Republic of China and offered better remuneration
package and living security for retained staff. In
response to state policy of “One Belt One Road”
initiative, we proactively implemented industrial
support in Xinjiang by recruiting ethnic minority
employees in order to improve their living quality
with job and education opportunities. Being
enthusiastic in social welfare, we made donations
every year and hired disabled employees so that
they can support themselves financially. The Group
established Charity and Social Welfare
Management System of Texhong Textile Group for
organizing charity and welfare activities.

. In July 2018, Jiangsu Century Texhong
Textile Co., Ltd (“Jiangsu Texhong”)
donated RMB10,000 to Suining County
Federation of Industry and Commerce,
RMB50,000 to the Dream Scholarship
Program under the Suining Hope and
Charity Foundation, RMB20,000 to
national defence education and
promotion; and RMB20,000 to the
Golden Autumn Education Support
Program, respectively;

. In December 2018, Nantong Century
Texhong Textile Co., Ltd. (“Nantong
Texhong”) donated RMB11,829 to the
County Red Cross.

During Mid-autumn Festival, Texhong Renze
and Labor Union distributed moon-cakes to
the poverty-stricken children in Longshou
Community of Renze County ({=/2&#ES4t)
and orphanages in Fulin (#&#F).
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Facing the severe post-disaster restoration
conditions, such as inaccessible roads and
ruins caused by the super typhoon that hit
Zhuhai in September 2018, Taltex (Zhuhai)'s
employees joined the local volunteer team to
clear obstacles on inaccessible roads.

In 2018, Nantong Texhong employed a total
of 118 ethnic minority staff members,
including Shui people, Miao people, Dai
people and Bouyei people, and established
“Yunnan and Guizhou Villages” to celebrate
their traditional festivals. The Company had a
total of 9 physically challenged employees
and showed loving care to them when they
were at work.

In November 2018, more than 100
employees from Shandong Texhong planted
and grew more than 300 Oriental planes by
participating a voluntary plantation event to
improve factory zone environment.
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While maintaining stable production and
enhancing management standard since its
establishment, Texhong Galaxy has devoted
itself to public affair and education. The
company has provided VND36,500,000 for
scholarships to schools such as Quang Ninh
University of Industry, Hanoi Industrial Textile
Garnment University, Faculty of Foreign
Languages, Hué University and Hanoi
University of Industry.

Texhong Yinlong Technology Ltd. (“Texhong
Yinlong”) always supports the local education
in Vietham. In 2018, the company made
donations in aggregate of VND10,000,000 for
technology innovation competition fund or
other funding to Faculty of Foreign
Languages and Quang Ninh University of
Industry. Meanwhile, Texhong Yinlong
attached great importance to development of
talent by recruiting nearly 100 new graduates
from tertiary institutions every year.
Outstanding trainees are promoted to junior
management and receive trainings in different
subsidiaries across the country in respect of
advanced management model and
production experience.

Texhong Thai Binh Garment made annual
donations to orphanages and poverty-stricken
people in Vietnam in 2018.
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To the Shareholders of Texhong Textile Group
Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

The consolidated financial statements of Texhong Textile
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 133 to 276, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2018;

. the consolidated income statement for the year
then ended;

. the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for
the year then ended;

. the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements,
which include a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

' PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: +852 2289 8888  Fax: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of this
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

[y

BMERBEESAMAGEMNEBET
ZR([FBE LR ETER - BIARZ
FEA TR EERATRE R A E XS
EMBRRAAENEE—HAFL -
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A key audit matter is identified in our audit as follows:

Key Audit Matter
BRENEE

Revenue recognition: Sales of goods

Refer to Note 2.28 to
the consolidated financial statements
BB A IBREN 1228

During the year ended 31 December 2018,
the Group recognised RMB19,155,709,000 of
revenue from sales of goods.
REZE-Z-\FT-A=1+—HILFE - EXE
ERREMEERARARE19,155,709,0007T ©

Revenue is recognised when control of the
underlying products has been transferred to
the customers.

WARREERNOER R EREEBETRPRHR o

We focused on this area due to the high volume of
sales generated in various locations and
from decentralised customers, and thus
significant audit time and resources were
devoted in this area, in particular relating to
the occurrence, accuracy and timely
recording of such transactions.
BRETRMERDBENEFPELEEHE -
HEMZELAE  TRAXEEREHEER
Bl REs  CHREFBRZMEL - ERY
EREBCHERNEE -

oz

XA AKE

BAEFZT R —ERREZERLT

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BREERTNEERRERSENS &

WARR : BRHEE

We understood, evaluated and validated management’s controls in
respect of the Group’s process to recognise sales transactions,
including contract approval, recording of sales based on contract
terms, and reconciliations with cash receipts and customers’ records.

B EEEERRER G 2 EGIE 22 BRANMA « TR
BRBRIZHERBRRRE PSR  BR R EEEE -

We tested the revenue derived from different customers and different
locations for selected samples by examination of the sales contracts,
invoices and goods delivery notes to revenue recorded. We compared
the delivery dates based on delivery notes with the timing of revenue
recognition, and we also examined transactions which occurred
immediately before and after the balance sheet date for their recording
as revenue in the proper periods.

BRREHERH  BEREZRRAZZELH  BFREHKEDN
BARUSTRAEP RTAMEHESEARA « RMBREBEXEHHLR
x5 A REEARARR  RATREEEENEE BREFIRR
WERm R AR R ERARETHZS -

Based on our audit procedures, we found the Group’s revenue
recognition in relation to sales of goods was supported by the relevant
evidence that we gathered.

HERERRR  BMERERERREMHEENRAERGIIRE
ERER SR
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises all of
the information included in the 2018 annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

BERAKE

ERREFAHEMENAERE - EBE
HEREN_T - N\FEHRNMAER (ET
BREGEMEHRRREFINZBREDRS)

BB SFEMBERRFLNER L EREH
R MU E A E RS RAE
AR R i o

REMBZEEVMBERERME  RANEE
REEEMER  tMZEEEMEN SR
REMBRRARMAEETZEETRENE
BEEEAN » U FFEERFRRL -

HERMERERMETHITERREMLE
FHERBAREREL - HAIBAREFHEE -
st - RAIBAEL RS

BERREFARERETESHEIASRM
M EEW R EEL RIRREE R AR
WEMRT  REAEMA TGS MEHRE
NREEBEBVENAMER  UERE
WA MBEHRER A FEARNGFFRERME
HHERERERAL

ERESEAVMBHRRE EFARETMEE
SEFELENRD  URBEESELESR
ER(ER) MRBARSERLE SER
MEFE RIFEFHRKESRBBRIFL
218 - BRI 2 SN B A B A TT AV HEA
AlfERIE -

ERZESREREESRENMBHRERIE -
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

[y
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From the matters communicated with the audit
committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Arthur Chi Ping Kwok.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 7 March 2019
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As at 31 December 2018
RZZE-NF+ZA=+—H

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Freehold land and land use rights

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Investments accounted for using
the equity method

Deferred income tax assets

Other non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories

Properties under development

Trade and bills receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Derivative financial instruments

Pledged bank deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to
owners of the Company

Share capital: nominal value

Share premium

Other reserves

Retained earnings

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

&E

FRBDEE
KAERELI R ik A
ER B
BEE
NERENRZ RE

BIEMEHEE
HiPRBEE

RBEE

#E

BRPME
EWE 5 R REHOR
ANFOE - RERAM
FEUR R X
ITEERTA
EHEMRTER

Re kB EEY

BERE

B
FUNGIE 2PN AT £

BA: mE
Bini (&
HibfE
REME R

FEEIR R

2017

—E—+F

Note RMB’000
iFa ARETFT
6 863,083
7 6,660,122
8 -
9 182,789
22 107,558
34 =
7,813,552

11 3,764,189
11 =
12 1,630,144
13 637,229
19 134,350
14 88,249
14 1,466,718
7,720,879

15,534,431

15 96,709
15 433,777
17 616,374
17 4,763,267
5,910,127

65,586

5,975,713
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As at 31 December 2018
RZZE—NF+=-A=+—8H

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities
Borrowings

Deferred income tax liabilities
Finance lease obligations
Long-term payables

Current liabilities
Trade and bills payables
Contract liabilities
Accruals and other payables
Current income tax liabilities
Borrowings
Derivative financial instruments
Finance lease obligations
Long-term payables due

within 1 year

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

The notes on pages 140 to 276 are an integral part of

Note

k23
af
FRBAR
&E 18
EIEFEH AR 22
BERERE 20
REEFAERER 21
rEaE
ERESREERE 23
AbafE 2.2(b(v))
HREBRA R EAEMAER 24
BHGEHARE
&E 18
fTESmMTE 19
RERERE 20
1EREIH 2 REBEMER

21
aE4E
BERRERE

these consolidated financial statements. RK2—EH °

The consolidated financial statements on pages 133 to
276 were approved by the Board of Directors on 7 March

RE140E276 B 2 AL ZF

2017
—E—+tF
RMB’000
AREFIT

2,987,229
149,172
1,587

3,137,988

2,961,729
741,451
36,562
2,562,369

112,996
5,623

6,420,730
9,558,718

15,534,431

e ME®

REIBBEBAZHEAPBHRREN_F
—NFE=-ZALREEESHE XA TIE

2019 and the consolidated balance sheet was signed on FRXEZEESRBHIPNEGEAEERGBER

its behalf by:

Hong Tianzhu
Director

Zhu Yongxiang HAM KK
Director EE BEFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z—/\F+-A=+—HILFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t-HLEE

2017
—E—+F
Note RMB’000
Hrat ARSFT
Revenue WA 5 16,306,375
Cost of sales SHEM AR 26 (13,866,416)
Gross profit ER 2,439,959
Selling and distribution costs HERDHAE 26 (581,717)
General and administrative expenses —#f% &1THRH X 26 (511,930)
Net reversal of impairment losses on ~ #[E 4 F &7 2 HifE
financial assets EiRFHE 3.1(b) -
Other income HAt A 25 169,555
Other losses — net Hip5iE — 358 25 (64,690)
Operating profit A 1,451,177
Finance income BT I 28 9,162
Finance costs B%ER 28 (85,697)
Finance costs — net MBER— F8 28 (76,535)
Share of profits less losses of DIEAEREARZ
investments accounted for using & 8% AR E R
the equity method 9 (12,820)
Profit before income tax BRET BB AT ST 1,361,822
Income tax expense PSR 30 (187,097)
Profit for the year FERF 1,174,725
Attributable to: BHUTE TR :
Owners of the Company /NG 2N 1,151,862
Non-controlling interests FErEH MR 2R 22,863
1,174,725
Earnings per share for profit FAREE AEMGERRZ
attributable to owners of SREF
the Company
— Basic earnings per share — BRELRERN RMB1.26
31 ARE1.267T
— Diluted earnings per share — BREERMN RMB1.26
31 AR#1.26 7T

The notes on pages 140 to 276 are an integral part of RE140E276 B 2Kl i Atk S5 4 B H
these consolidated financial statements. R85 e
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z—N\F+-A=+—HLFE

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income/
(losses)

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Share of other comprehensive
income/(losses) of investments
accounted for using the equity
method
— share of currency translation

reserve
Currency translation differences

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

The notes on pages 140 to 276 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.

Note
Hta

FEEF

Hit2E K (FR)
HEEFEFHSEE

Rz HH
DIEAERIEARZ
BREZHMEE

Wzs(E1R)

— DIEER LIRS
BN 17

FEZHEWSEAE
BT & 5 B4

ZA/NCIE 2PN
FEHE IR 2R
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Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-HLEFE
2017

T —LF

RMB’000

ARETFT

1,174,725

11,175
(8,878)

1,177,022

1,154,159

22,863

1,177,022

RE140E2T6 A2 M R F A MK
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-T-/\F+-A=1—

Balance at 1 January 2017

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive
income/(losses):

Share of other comprehensive
income of investments
accounted for using the
equity method
— share of currency

translation reserve

Currency translation differences

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Transactions with owners
Dividend relating to 2016
Dividend relating to 2017
Employee share option scheme
Transfer to statutory reserves
Transfer from revaluation reserve

to retained earnings

— gross

— deferred income tax

Total transactions with owners

Balance at 31 December 2017

The notes on pages 140 to 276 are an integral part of

HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

Share
capital

B
Note  RMB'000
Wi ARETT

R=2-t£-A

— B 96,709

2l
FEEH -

e 2ENE (B8 :

DEMEREARZ
REZEM2E
Yz

— HiEEEES
i -
SHENZE 17 .

FERENHAR

HREREAZRS
—Z-RERE
“E—+tHERE
EEBRIET 2
BEEETHE
HEGREEES
REEF
— g -
— EIEFAER -

32 -

16 -
17 -

HREFAALZ
RERE =

R-E-t&+=A

=t-Bi&H 96,709

these consolidated financial statements.

RATHER AR
Share Other
premium reserves
Kiva® At
RMB'000  RMB000
ARETT AREFTL
433,777 566,590
- 1,175
- (8,878)
- 2,297
- 3,319
- 48,202
- (6,362)
- 2,328
- 47,487
433,777 616,374

RZ—HBD ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Non-

Retained  controlling Total
earnings interests equity
JEEEHIE BRR

REEM s s
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
ARETT AREFT AREFT
4,051,645 42,723 5191444
1,151,862 22,863 1,174,725
- - 11,175

- - (8,878)
1,151,862 22,863 1,177,022
(210,137) - (210,137)
(185,935) - (185,935)
- - 3,319
(48,202) - -
6,362 - -
(2,328) - -
(440,240) - (392,753)
4,763,267 65,586 5,975,713
B 7 R
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE_Z—/\F+-A=+—

Balance at 31 December 2017
as originally presented

Change in accounting policy
Balance at 1 January 2018

Comprehensive income
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income:
Currency translation differences

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Transactions with owners
Non-controlling interests arising
on business combination
Dividend paid to non-controlling
interests
Transactions with non-controlling
interests
Dividend relating to 2017
Dividend relating to 2018
Employee share option scheme
Transfer to statutory reserves
Transfer from revaluation reserve
to retained earnings
— gross
— deferred income tax

Total transactions with owners

Balance at 31 December 2018

HIEFE

Note
Wit

RZB-—t&F+=R
=t-RIER
(RE25)

BHREY

R=8-NE-A-H
ik

2.2

2ENE
FROET

At 2N
ERERZR 17

FEZEREAE

HREBEAZRS
EBAHELR

ElRllegy Fas 34
BEEZE 5

R ZRE
BIERHIMEENR S

“ZERS 32
2 \ERE 32
B BB RE 2 16
BREATERE 17
mEGREERE

RERT

—#8

— EEMEH

BRERAAZ
RHAE

RZEB-NF+=R
=t-RIER

The notes on pages 140 to 276 are an integral part of
these consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE_Z-/\F+-_A=+—HLFE

Cash flows from operating
activities

Cash generated from operations

Interest received

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating
activities

Cash flows from investing
activities
Proceed from disposal of subsidiaries
Proceed from disposal of
joint-ventures
Newly set-up and acquisition of
associates and joint ventures
Purchases of property,
plant and equipment
Purchases of land use rights
Proceeds from sale of property, plant
and equipment and land use rights
Payments on acquisitions of
subsidiaries, net of cash and
cash equivalents acquired
Purchase of financial instruments
Net proceeds from settlement of
financial instruments

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing
activities

Proceeds from borrowings

Repayments of borrowings

Repayments of finance lease
obligations

Dividends paid

Dividend paid to non-controlling
interests

Transactions with non-controlling
interests

Interest paid

(Increase)/decrease in pledged
bank deposits

Net cash generated/(used in)
from financing activities

Net decrease in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year

The notes on pages 140 to 276 are an integral part of

No{e
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REMEL RS 33
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these consolidated financial statements. Z— 8o e

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLFE

2017
—E—+F
RMB’000
ARETFTT

2,413,303
9,162
(229,854)

2,192,611

(113,122)

(817,806)
(41,043)

49,679
(396,013)
(39,141)
19,725
(1,337,721)

5,252,310
(5,839,824)

(396,072)

(310,746)
92,952

(1,201,380)
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Texhong Textile Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales
of yarn, grey fabrics and garment fabrics as well as
garments.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 12 July 2004 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Law of
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered
office is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box
2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 9 December
2004.

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”), unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on
7 March 2019.

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of the
Company have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs) and
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The
consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the revaluation of buildings,
financial assets and financial liabilities
(including derivative instruments) at fair value
through profit or loss, which are carried at fair
value.
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The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures

(a) New standards, amendments and
interpretation of HKFRSs adopted by
the Group in 2018
A number of new standards,
amendments and interpretation to
existing standards became applicable
for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2018 and the Group had to
change its accounting policies. The
adoption of these new standards,
amendments and interpretation did not
give rise to any significant impact on
the Group’s financial statements. These
new standards, amendments and
interpretation are set out below:

(i) HKFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’

(i) HKFRS 15 ‘Revenue from
Contracts with Customers’

The impact of the adoption of the above
two new standards and the new
accounting policies are disclosed in
Note 2.2 below.
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Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

New standards, amendments and
interpretation of HKFRSs adopted by
the Group in 2018 (Continued)

(@)

(iii)

Amendments to HKFRS 2
regarding classification and
measurement of share-based
payment transactions clarify the
measurement basis for cash-
settled share-based payments
and the accounting for
modification that change an award
from cash-settled to equity-
settled. They also introduce an
exception to the classification
principles in HKFRS 2. Where an
employer is obliged to withhold an
amount for the employee’s tax
obligation associated with a
share-based payment and pay
that amount to the tax authority,
the whole award will be treated as
if it was equity-settled provided it
would have been equity-settled
without the net settlement feature.

Entities with the following
arrangements are likely to be
affected by these changes:

. equity-settled awards that
include net settlement
features relating to tax
obligations

. cash-settled share-based
payments that include
performance conditions, and

. cash-settled arrangements
that are modified to equity-
settled share-based
payments.
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Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures (Continued)

(a) New standards, amendments and
interpretation of HKFRSs adopted by
the Group in 2018 (Continued)

(iv)

Amendments to HKFRS 4
‘Insurance Contracts’ address the
concerns of insurance companies
about the different effective dates
of HKFRS 9 ‘Financial
Instruments’ and the forthcoming
new insurance contracts standard.
The amendments provide two
different solutions for insurance
companies: a temporary
exemption from HKFRS 9 for
entities that meet specific
requirements (applied at the
reporting entity level), and the
‘overlay approach’. Both
approaches are optional.

HKFRS 4 (including the
amendments) will be superseded
by the forthcoming new insurance
contracts standard. Accordingly,
both the temporary exemption
and the ‘overlay approach’ are
expected to cease to be
applicable when the new
insurance standards becomes
effective.
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Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

New standards, amendments and
interpretation of HKFRSs adopted by
the Group in 2018 (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle which were
finalised in December 2016:

HKFRS 1 — deleted short-
term exemptions covering
transition provisions of
HKFRS 7, HKAS 19 and
HKFRS 10 which are no
longer relevant.

HKAS 28 — clarifies that the
election by venture capital
organisations, mutual funds,
unit trusts and similar
entities to measure
investments in associates or
joint ventures at fair value
through profit or loss should
be made separately for each
associate or joint venture at
initial recognition.
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Changes in accounting policies and BB REERBE (&)

disclosures (Continued)

(a) New standards, amendments and (a) AXEER_F—-NFERA
interpretation of HKFRSs adopted by 2 EER WG ERZF
the Group in 2018 (Continued) FTER -~ ASETIA R 2 FE ()
(vij Amendments to HKAS 40 (viy BB G EAZE40

regarding transfers of investment
property, clarify that transfers to,
or from, investment property can
only be made if there has been a
change in use that is supported
by evidence. A change in use
occurs when the property meets,
or ceases to meet, the definition
of investment property. A change
in intention alone is not sufficient
to support a transfer. The list of
evidence for a change of use in
the standard was re-characterised
as a non-exhaustive list of
examples to help illustrate the
principle.

The Board provided two options
for transition:

. prospectively, with any impact
from the reclassification
recognised as adjustment to
opening retained earnings as
at the date of initial recognition,

or

. retrospectively — only
permitted without the use of
hindsight.

Additional disclosures are
required if an entity adopts the
requirements prospectively.
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Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

(@)

New standards, amendments and
interpretation of HKFRSs adopted by
the Group in 2018 (Continued)

(vii) HK (IFRIC) 22 ‘Foreign Currency

Transactions and Advance
Consideration’, clarifies how to
determine the date of transaction
for the exchange rate to be used
on initial recognition of a related
asset, expense or income where
an entity pays or receives
consideration in advance for
foreign currency-denominated
contracts.

For a single payment or receipt,
the date of the transaction should
be the date on which the entity
initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or liability arising
from the advance consideration
(the prepayment or deferred
income/contract liability).

If there are multiple payments or
receipts for one item, a date of
transaction should be determined
as above for each payment or
receipt.
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Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures (Continued)

(a) New standards, amendments and
interpretation of HKFRSs adopted by
the Group in 2018 (Continued)

Entities can choose to apply the
interpretation:

retrospectively for each
period presented

prospectively to items in
scope that are initially
recognised on or after the
beginning of the reporting
period in which the
interpretation is first applied,
or

prospectively from the
beginning of a prior
reporting period presented
as comparative information.

No retrospective adjustment has
been made in respect of the
adoption of the above new
standards, amendments and
interpretation of HKFRSs in 2018.
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Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures (Continued)

(b) New standards, amendments and
interpretation of HKFRSs issued but are
not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2018 and have
not been early adopted by the Group
() HKFRS 16 ‘Leases’

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January
2016. It will result in almost all
leases being recognised on the
balance sheet by lessees, as the
distinction between operating and
finance leases is removed. Under
the new standard, an asset (the
right to use the leased item) and a
financial liability to pay rentals are
recognised. The only exceptions
are short-term and low-value
leases.

Impact

The Group has set up a project
team which has reviewed all of
the Group’s leasing arrangements
over the last year in light of the
new lease accounting rules in
HKFRS 16. The standard will
affect primarily the accounting for
the Group’s operating leases.

As at 31 December 2018, the
Group has non-cancellable
operating leases commitments
(excluding lease relating to land
use rights) of RMB206,511,000
(Note 35). Of these commitments,
approximately RMB3,333,000
relate to short-term leases and
RMB614,000 to low value leases
which will both be recognised on
a straight-line basis as expense in
profit or loss. The management
will take the exemption for short-
term leases and low value leases.
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Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

New standards, amendments and
interpretation of HKFRSs issued but are
not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2018 and have
not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

(b)

(i)

HKFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

For the remaining lease
commitments the Group expects to
recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities of approximately
RMB182,630,000 on 1 January
2019. Overall net current assets
will be RMB33,478,000 lower due
to the presentation of a portion of
the liabilities as current liabilities.

The Group expects that net profit
after tax will decrease by
approximately RMB2,322,000 for
2019 as a result of adopting the
new rules.

Operating cash flows will increase
and financing cash flows will
decrease by approximately
RMB39,517,000 in 2019 as
repayment of the principal and
interest of the lease liabilities will
be classified as cash flows from
financing activities.
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Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures (Continued)

(b) New standards, amendments and
interpretation of HKFRSs issued but are
not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2018 and have
not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

(i) HKFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

The Group’s activities as a lessor
are not material and hence the
Group does not expect any
significant impact on the financial
statements. However, some
additional disclosures will be
required from next year.

Date of adoption by the Group
The Group will apply the standard
from its mandatory adoption date
of 1 January 2019. The Group
intends to apply the simplified
transition approach and will not
restate comparative amounts for
the year prior to first adoption. All
right-of-use assets will be
measured at the amount of the
lease liability on adoption
(adjusted for any prepaid or
accrued lease expenses).
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Changes in accounting policies and
disclosures (Continued)

New standards, amendments and
interpretation of HKFRSs issued but are
not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2018 and have
not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

(b)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

HKFRS 17 ‘Insurance Contracts’,
effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

HK (IFRIC) 23 ‘Uncertainty over
Income Tax Treatments’, effective
for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019.

Amendments to HKFRS 9
regarding prepayment features
with negative compensation,
effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

Amendments to HKAS 28
regarding long-term interests in
associates and joint ventures,
effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January
2019.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle, effective for
annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019.
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Changes in accounting policies and

disclosures (Continued)

(b) New standards, amendments and
interpretation of HKFRSs issued but are
not effective for the financial year
beginning on 1 January 2018 and have
not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

(vii) Amendments to HKAS 19
regarding plan amendment,
curtailment or settlement, effective
for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019.

(viii) Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 regarding sale or
contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint
venture, originally intended to be
effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January
2016. The effective date has now
been deferred/removed.

(ix) Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8 regarding definition of
material, effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020.

(x) Amendments to HKFRS 3
regarding definition of a business,
effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

This note explains the impact of the adoption
of HKFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ and
HKFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’ on the Group’s financial
statements.
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(a)

HKFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’

Impact of adoption

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of
HKAS 39 that relate to the recognition,
classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities,
derecognition of financial instruments,
impairment of financial assets and
hedge accounting.

There is no impact on the Group’s
accounting for financial liabilities, as the
new requirements only affect the
accounting for financial liabilities that
are designated at fair value through
profit or loss and the Group does not
have any such liabilities which are
subject to HKFRS 9.

The adoption of HKFRS 9 ‘Financial
Instruments’ from 1 January 2018
resulted in changes in accounting
policies. The new accounting policies
are set out in Notes 2.12 and 2.14
below. In accordance with the
transitional provisions in HKFRS 9
(7.2.15) and (7.2.26), comparative
figures are not restated with the
exception of certain aspects of hedge
accounting. The Group does not have
any hedge instrument, hence the
exception is not applicable to the
Group. The Group used modified
retrospective approach while adopting
HKFRS 9. The adjustments arising from
the new impairment rules are therefore
not reflected in the balance sheet as at
31 December 2017.

(@) BEERMBHEEAFIR
[&@TA]
Rz &
FR T RE RIS 9 HREL
REBSEAFER L
GREHETREEN SR
BEZHER  DBEKEE -
TRMTAZERIER &
BEEZBENETEF -

AEETBMBEZGTR
BEIRTE  RAR/H
RERFEEERERF
Bt A\BfRZERMEBEZ
SR MAKEYN &
EMXZE BB RELER
FOHmTELAE -

BE-ZE—N\F—A—H#
BB ISHRELERE9
RIEMTE| BRI
RHIREE - I MK
RER T X FE2.12%
214 - REB BV HHRE
A Bl N (7.215) &
(7.2.26) &Y 3@ E 163 - I &
BHLRET  HEHAFE
ST E TESRIN o ANE
EWELEREHFTE B
SLRZ BN E AR A LR -
AEBERMNE B ISR
RIS 9SRIF I AR IE L
ZBPE Bt FRE
RANFTS| e 2 AL ER
—E—+tF+=-A=+—
BzEEAERTRME -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 =Z— N\FF#H 153



For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z—)/\F+-A=+—HILFE

154

(a)

HKFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’
(Continued)

Impact of adoption (Continued)

The Group has trade receivables for
sales of products that are subject to
HKFRS 9’'s new expected credit loss
model, and the Group was required to
revise its impairment methodology
under HKFRS 9 for these receivables.
The Group applies the HKFRS 9
simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance for all
trade receivables from initial
recognition. To measure the expected
credit losses, trade receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the ageing
days. On that basis, the loss allowance
as at 1 January 2018 was determined
as follows for trade receivables:

1 January 2018 “B-N\f-5-8
Gross carrying amount REZE

Expected loss rate RHEEX

Loss allowance BiEkE

The Group has performed the
assessment and concluded that no
material financial impact exists, and
therefore no adjustment to the opening
balance of equity at 1 January 2018
was recognised.
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(a)

HKFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’
(Continued)
Impact of adoption (Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement
From 1 January 2018, the Group
classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement
categories:

. those to be measured
subsequently at fair value
(either through other
comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at
amortised cost.

The classification depends on the
entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and
the contractual terms of the cash
flows.

For assets measured at fair value,
gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or OCI.
For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for
trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of
initial recognition to account for
the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI).
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(@) HKFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’
(Continued)
Impact of adoption (Continued)

(i)

Classification and measurement
(Continued)

The Group has reviewed its
financial assets and liabilities and
concludes that there is no
significant impact on the
classification and measurement of
the financial assets and liabilities
upon the adoption of the new
standard since 1 January 2018,
as the Group does not have the
following financial assets or
liabilities:

. Debt instrument or equity
instrument that are classified
as available-for-sale;

. Debt instrument classified
as held-to-maturity and
measured at amortised cost;

. Equity investments
measured at fair value
through profit or loss;

. Financial liabilities
designated at fair value
through profit or loss.
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(a)

HKFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’
(Continued)
Impact of adoption (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Derivatives and hedging activities
The Group’s derivatives include
forward foreign exchange
contracts, cross currency swap
contracts, and cotton accumulator
swap contracts, which are initially
recognised at fair value when a
derivative contract is entered into
and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at the end of
each reporting period. Derivative
instruments held by the Group do
not qualify for hedge instruments
and are accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore
there is no impact on the
measurement of the derivatives
upon the adoption of the new
standard since 1 January 2018.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group has trade receivables
for sales of products that are
subject to HKFRS 9’s new
expected credit loss model, and
the Group was required to revise
its impairment methodology under
HKFRS 9 for these receivables.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9
simplified approach to measuring
expected credit loss which uses a
lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables. The
impact is immaterial to the loss
allowance for trade receivables on
1 January 2018.The loss
allowance increased by
RMB1,858,000 for all trade
receivables on a net basis during
the current reporting period
compared with the amount under
the incurred loss model of HKAS
39.

While cash and cash equivalents
are also subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was
immaterial.
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(b)

HKFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts
with Customers’

Impact of adoption

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15
‘Revenue from Contracts with
Customers’ from 1 January 2018 which
resulted in changes in accounting
policies. The Group adopted HKFRS 15
using the modified retrospective
approach which means that the
cumulative impact of the adoption (if
any) will be recognised in retained
earnings as of 1 January 2018 and that
comparatives will not be restated.

Revenue is recognised when control of
the products has transformed, being
when the customer has inspected and
accepted the products. The Group does
not expect to have any contracts where
the period between the transfer of the
promised goods to the customer and
payment by the customer exceeds one
year. Sales are made with a credit term
of less than 90 days to its customers in
Mainland China and 120 days to its
customers in other countries, which is
consistent with market practice. As a
consequence, the Group does not
adjust any of the transaction prices for
the time value of money as there is no
significant financing component. There
is no material impact for adopting the
HKFRS 15 on revenue recognition.
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(b)

HKFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts
with Customers’ (Continued)
Impact of adoption (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Accounting for discounts

The Group rarely sold products
with discounts. Revenue from
these sales is recognised based
on the price specified in the
contract, net of the estimated
discounts. Accumulated
experience is used to estimate
and provide for the discounts, and
revenue is only recognised to the
extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal will not
occur.

Accounting for refunds

The Group’s obligations to provide
a refund for faulty products are
under the standard warranty
terms. Accumulated experience is
used to estimate such returns at
the time of sale. Because of the
large size and low value of each
individual product, the amount of
products returned were
immaterial. It is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the
cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur. Therefore, no
refund liability for goods return
was recognized. The validity of
this assumption and the estimated
amount of returns are reassessed
at each reporting date. As a
result, no accounting impact for
refunds while applying HKFRS
15.
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(b) HKFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts

with Customers’ (Continued)

Impact of adoption (Continued)

(i) Accounting for customer loyalty
programme
The Group did not introduce any
customer loyalty programmer
which is likely to be affected by
the HKFRS 15.

(iv) Accounting for costs to fulfil a
contract
No additional cost occurs to fulfill
the contract was identified.

(v) Presentation of assets and
liabilities related to contracts with
customers
The Group has also voluntarily
changed the presentation of the
following amounts in the balance
sheet to reflect the terminology of
HKFRS 15.

. Contract liabilities in relation
to deposits from customers
were previously included
in accruals and other
payables, and are now
separately disclosed in the
balance sheet.
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2.3.1 Consolidation

(@)

(b)

A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity) over which the
group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the group
is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition
method to account for business
combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are
measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.
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2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Business combinations
(Continued)

The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree
on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present
ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in
the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the
recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value,
unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is
achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the
acquisition date; any gains or
losses arising from such re-
measurement are recognised in
profit or loss.
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2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

Business combinations
(Continued)

Any contingent consideration to
be transferred by the Group is
recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability
is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or
as a change to other
comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within
equity.

The excess of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of
consideration transferred, non-
controlling interest recognised
and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference
is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on
transactions between group
companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred
asset. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the
Group’s accounting policies.
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2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of
control

Transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in loss
of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as
transactions with the owners in
their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the
carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have
control, any retained interest in
the entity is re-measured to its fair
value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial
carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for
the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously
recognised in other
comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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2.3.2 Separate financial statements
Investments in subsidiaries are
accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the
company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
a dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is
declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is also required according
to Note 2.11.

An associate is an entity over which the
Group has significant influence but not
control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recognised at cost, and
the carry amount is increased or decreased
to recognise the investor’s share of the profit
or loss of the investee after the date of
acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any
difference between the cost of the associate
and the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.
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If the ownership interest in an associate is
reduced but significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit
or loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date
whether there is any objective evidence that
the investment in the associate is impaired. If
this is the case, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the
associate and its carrying value and
recognises the amount adjacent to ‘share of
profit of investments accounted for using
equity method’ in the consolidated income
statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream
and downstream transactions between the
Group and its associate are recognised in the
Group’s financial statements only to the
extent of unrelated investor’s interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been
changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interests
in associates are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint
arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either
joint operations or joint ventures depending
on the contractual rights and obligations of
each investor. The Group has assessed the
nature of its joint arrangements and
determined them to be joint ventures. Joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity
method.

Under the equity method of accounting,
interests in joint ventures are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements
in other comprehensive income. The Group’s
investments in joint ventures include goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition
of the ownership interest in a joint venture,
any difference between the cost of the joint
venture and the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the joint venture’s identifiable assets
and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.
When the Group’s share of losses in a joint
venture equals or exceeds its interests in the
joint ventures, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of
the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint ventures have
been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided
to the chief operating decision-maker. The
chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the
Committee of Executive Directors of the
Company that makes strategic decisions.

(@) Functional and presentation

currency

Items included in the financial
statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements
are presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are
translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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(b)

Transactions and balances
(Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses that
relate to borrowings and cash and cash
equivalents are presented in the
consolidated income statement within
‘finance costs — net’. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated income
statement within ‘other losses — net'.

Changes in the fair value of debt
securities denominated in foreign
currency classified as available for sale
are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in
the amortised cost of the security and
other changes in the carrying amount of
the security. Translation differences
related to changes in amortised cost
are recognised in profit or loss, and
other changes in carrying amount are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets, such as
equities classified as available for sale,
are included in other comprehensive
income.
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(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all
the Group’s entities (none of which has
the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each
balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each
consolidated income statement
are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting currency translation
differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences
arising from the translation of any net
investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other financial
instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are recognised in
other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to
profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss
on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on the acquisition of a foreign
entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate. Currency
translation differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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Buildings comprise mainly factories and
offices. Buildings are shown at fair value,
based on periodic, but at least triennial,
valuations by external independent valuers,
less subsequent depreciation for buildings.
Any accumulated depreciation at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset, and the net
amount is restated to the revalued amount of
the asset. All other property, plant and
equipment is stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on
revaluation of buildings are recognised in
other comprehensive income. Decreases that
offset previous increases of the same asset
are charged to other comprehensive income;
all other decreases are charged to the
consolidated income statement. Each year
the difference between depreciation based
on the revalued carrying amount of the asset
charged to the consolidated income
statement and depreciation based on the
asset’s original cost is transferred from
‘revaluation reserve’ to ‘retained earnings’.

BFEXZEEIBRMPAE - 12
FAR SN AR 9E 3 E A E B (18
BLB=F—R)ETHHER
NFEBRERNTESIR - EE
BERNEARATEREEDN
FREEAREYE  MFREANED
EEEMNEMGLSE - IAEMLY
% BE RERERE LR AR
Bk - BEERABREBZE
HEEREENRAX

RAEEIA R BRI ER
SAAERAREKE  Saesma
S ERERANBERLT A
SETERERKAGFAREE
EHEz —MORERRBEILE
EHBE (WER) - BBz ED
W AR E B O MER HERR - T A
HERFRERBERAHTFRELRR
Z B HIRE 2 AR A W R ANER o

BFERRZEEEENEME
Y as FERR - B[R] — B ST AT IR
EHHENBERSD  REMEE
Wk - ST 2T RIERE
AN &R A W R AFORR - B4
RERGERERNFZEEDN
ERFEEESHZTE  BRE
BERRKABH ZITENER
DR [EhEFHE] BREBE [REE
Rl

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 =Z— N\FF#H 171



For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z—)/\F+-A=+—HILFE

172

Depreciation on property, plant and
equipment is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate their costs or revalued
amounts to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Buildings 15to 40 years 2.5%—6.7%

— Machinery and 6to15years 6.7%—16.7%
equipment

— Furniture and fixtures 3to 10 years  10.0%-33.3%

— Motor vehicles 5to 7 years 14.0%—20.0%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.11).

Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing the proceeds with
the carrying amount and are recognised
within ‘other (losses)/gains — net’ in the
consolidated income statement.

When revalued assets are sold, the amounts
included in revaluation reserve are
transferred to retained earnings.

Construction-in-progress, representing
buildings on which construction work has not
been completed and machinery pending
installation, is stated at cost, which includes
construction expenditures incurred, cost of
machinery, interest capitalised and other
direct costs capitalised during the
construction and installation period, less
accumulated impairment losses, if any. No
depreciation is provided in respect of
construction-in-progress until the construction
and installation work is completed and put
into use. On completion, construction-in-
progress is transferred to appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment.
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Freehold land is not amortized.

The premiums paid to acquire land use rights
are recorded as prepayment for operating
lease, and are amortised using the straight-
line method over the period of the land use
rights of 45 to 50 years.

(i)

(ii)

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in
note 2.3.1. Goodwill on acquisition of
subsidiaries is included in intangible
assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it
is tested for impairment annually, or
more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains
and losses on the disposal of an entity
include the carrying amount of goodwiill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units for the purpose of impairment
testing. The allocation is made to those
cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected
to benefit from the business
combination in which the goodwill
arose. The units or groups of units are
identified at the lowest level at which
goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the
operating segments.

Customer Relationship

Customer relationship acquired in a
business combination is recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. They
have a finite useful life and are
subsequently carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses.
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(iii) Amortisation methods and periods
The Group amortises intangible assets
with a limited useful life using the
straight-line method over the following
periods:

Customer Relationship 15 years

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are
not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets that are
subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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2122

Classification

From 1 January 2018, the Group
classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

. those to be measured
subsequently at fair value (either
through OCI or through profit or
loss), and

. those to be measured at
amortised cost.

The classification depends on the
entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual
terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value,
gains and losses will either be recorded
in profit or loss or OCI. For investments
in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether
the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at
fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI).

The Group reclassifies debt
investments when and only when its
business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition
Regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership.
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2123 Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group
measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are
expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their
entirety when determining whether their
cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt
instruments depends on the Group’s
business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

. Amortised cost: Assets that are
held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these
financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss
and presented in other gains/
(losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented
as separate line item in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2123 Measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash
flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest, are
measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken
through OCI, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest income and
foreign exchange gains and
losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in OCI is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other gains/(losses).
Interest income from these
financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Foreign
exchange gains and losses are
presented in other gains/(losses)
and impairment expenses are
presented as separate line item in
the statement of profit or loss.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet
the criteria for amortised cost or
FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A
gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at
FVPL is recognised in profit or
loss and presented net within
other gains/(losses) in the period
in which it arises.
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2123

2124

Measurement (Continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all
equity investments at fair value. Where
the Group’s management has elected
to present fair value gains and losses
on equity investments in OCI, there is
no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses to profit or loss
following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised
in profit or loss as other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial
assets at FVPL are recognised in other
losses in the statement of profit or loss
as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are
not reported separately from other
changes in fair value.

Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group
assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated
with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied
depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach
permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be
recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables, see note 12 for further
details.
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2125 Accounting policies applied until 31

December 2017

The Group has applied HKFRS 9
retrospectively, but has elected not to
restate comparative information. As a
result, the comparative information
provided continues to be accounted for
in accordance with the Group’s previous
accounting policy.

Until 31 December 2017 the Group
classifies its financial assets in the
following categories:

(a) Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the short-
term. Derivatives are also
categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category
are classified as current assets if
expected to be settled within 12
months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-
derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in
current assets, except for the
amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than
12 months after the end of the
reporting period which are
classified as non-current assets.
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2125 Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(b)

Loans and receivables
(Continued)

Gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of the
‘financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss’ category are
presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘other
losses — net’, in the period in
which they arise. Dividend income
from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised
in the consolidated income
statement as part of ‘other
income’ when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

Impairment for assets carried at
amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of
each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A
financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred
only if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset
(a ‘loss event’) and that loss event
(or events) has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.
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2125 Accounting policies applied until 31
December 2017 (Continued)

(b)

Loans and receivables
(Continued)

Impairment for assets carried at
amortised cost (Continued)
Evidence of impairment may
include indications that the
debtors or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that
there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows,
such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

For loans and receivables
category, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is
reduced and the amount of the
loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the
amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment
was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit
rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment
loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount reported in the balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise
the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or
the counterparty.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair
value on the date a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently re-
measured to their fair value at the end of
each reporting period. The method of
recognising the resulting gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is
designed as a hedging instrument, and if so,
the nature of item being hedged. Derivative
instruments held by the Group do not qualify
for hedge accounting and are accounted for
at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in
fair value of these derivative instruments that
do not qualify for hedge accounting are
recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement within ‘other losses-net’.

Grants/subsidies from government authorities
are recognised at their fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grant/
subsidies will be received and the Group will
comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants/subsidies relating to
assets are presented in the balance sheet by
deducting the grant in arriving at the carrying
amount of the asset.

Government grants/subsidies relating to
compensation for relocation are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period when the relocation
takes place.
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Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads
(based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

Properties under development are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value takes into account the price
ultimately expected to be realised, less
applicable variable selling expenses and the
anticipated costs to completion.

Development cost of properties comprises
cost of land use rights, construction costs,
borrowing costs and professional fees
incurred during the development period. On
completion, the properties are transferred to
completed properties held for sale.

Properties under development are classified
as current assets unless the construction
period of the relevant property development
project is expected to complete beyond
normal operating cycle.
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Trade receivables are amounts due from
customers for merchandise sold or services
performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not,
they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at the amount of consideration that is
unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the
trade and other receivables with the objective
to collect the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents include cash in hand
and deposits held at call with banks.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Trade payables are obligations to pay for
goods or services that have been acquired in
the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one
year or less (or in the normal operating cycle
of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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Borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently carried at
amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended
use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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The tax expense for the period comprises
current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is
calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised,
using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill and deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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(b)

Deferred income tax (Continued)
Inside basis differences (Continued)
Deferred income tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are
provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except for
deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group
and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Generally the Group
is unable to control the reversal of the
temporary difference for associates.
Only where there is an agreement in
place that gives the Group the ability to
control the reversal of the temporary
difference in the foreseeable future,
deferred tax liability in relation to
taxable temporary differences arising
from associate’s undistributed profits is
not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are
recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries and associates only to the
extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and
there is sufficient taxable profit available
against which the temporary difference
can be utilised.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave
are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet
date. Employee entitlements to sick
leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations (defined
contribution plans)

A defined contribution plan is a pension
plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions
if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits
relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the
Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The
Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or
a reduction in the future payments is
available.

Bonus plan

The Group recognises a provision for
bonuses where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan, under which the
entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options)
of the Group. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The
total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options
granted:

. including any market performance
conditions (for example, an entity’s
share price);

. excluding the impact of any service and
non-market performance vesting
conditions (for example, profitability,
sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified
time period); and

. including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the
requirement for employees to save or
holding shares for a specified period of
time).

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number of
options that are expected to vest based on
the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision to original estimates, if any, in the
consolidated income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

UESEHUROGAER AR
z5

RNEBRE - EUEREE AR
DRERZMETE Bt &
BEESMEHRE RN EERE
AT HEBRE) HRE - EEH
BREREMEHEREH A FE
BARAR/AX - BT XHASER
RAAREEREN D FEME
T

g BREEM TS RRIGE
N E R RE -

. TEREEARSE RIETS
RIREBIRIEOZE - B
maFEEn HELERR
BRAERERBEAZEER
EBREE X

. BREIMEFBHRINE
€ PlnEFERRAR
ERERESIIHARD

MNERER - NEBEREID
BB KRB R IHER] B A R
BZERAESBFREZfAE X
iR B W R ERIERT R R AR
EEZFE(NE) LS E
AR

ANNUAL REPORT 2018 =Z— N\FF#H 189



For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE-_Z—)/\F+-A=+—HILFE

190

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions (Continued)

In addition, in some circumstances
employees may provide services in advance
of the grant date and therefore the grant date
fair value is estimated for the purposes of
recognising the expense during the period
between service commencement period and
grant date.

When the options are exercised, the
Company issues new shares. The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital
(and share premium).

Provisions are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation
as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation; and the amount has
been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will
be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of
obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value
of the expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.
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(a)

Sales of goods

The Group manufactures and sells
yarns, grey fabrics and garment fabrics
as well as garments in the market.
Sales are recognised when control of
the products has transferred, being
when the customer has inspected and
accepted the products. The Group does
not expect to have any contracts where
the period between the transfer of the
promised goods to the customer and
payment by the customer exceeds one
year. Delivery occurs when the products
have been shipped to the specific
location.

If discount is granted to customers,
revenue from these sales is recognised
based on the price specified in the
contract, net of the estimated discounts.
Accumulated experience is used to
estimate and provide for the discounts,
and r